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{} Vision

{

Beginning a leading economic group in Vietnam and in the region in which major area
is manufacturing and distributing building materials through sustainable development
strategy that focuses on core competitive advantages as well as community development,
environment protection in order to maximize values for shareholders, employees, customers
and society.

} Mission
Providing Hoa Sen products and services that ensuring infernational quality, reasonable prices,
diverse designs and environmental friendliness in order to qualify customer’s demands, fo
contribute to changing the country’s architectural landscape, and to develop community. Hoa
Sen Group continues innovating and developing to affirm the position and mission of dynamic,

creative, vanguard Vietnamese enterprise in both business and community activities, reaching
higher position in global market.

} Core values

Integrity — Community — Development

} Business philosophy

Product’s quality is Customer's benefit '
the focus Sl is the key w

i

Sharing to community
the obligation

Employee’s income i
the responsi




MESSAGE FROM
CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 IN' THE CONTEXT OF DIFFICULTIES AND INSTABILTY OF THE MARKET, THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, ALL UNITS, DEPARTMENTS
AND EMPLOYEES OF HOA SEN GROUP HAVE MADE THE BEST EFFORTS TO STABILIZE
AND IMPROVE THE MANUFACTURING AND BUSINESS SITUATION. B

THE CONSUMPTION REACHED NET REVENUE REACHED
1,393,973 o 28,035
IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 — 2019 BILLION VYND

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

The steel sheet and steel market in 2019 underwent a difficult and challenging period. Trade conflicts continue to
escalate, causing the increase of production protection policies, upsetting the global trade order. This makes the price of
raw materials fluctuate sharply and negatively affects the consumption demand in export markets. In the domestic market,
the level of competition is becoming fiercer, while businesses in the same industry are still affected by the situation of
cheap and poor quality steel massively imported from other countries although the Authorities have implemented many
preventive measures.

In the face of negative market developments, the Board of Directors has directed all units and departments to continue
drastically, proactively and creatively in implementing governance — management measures, restructuring of the system,
restructuring all assets in response to difficulties and instability. In particular, the focus revolves around the following
solutions: Effectively controlling inventories and costs for production and business activities; Regulating business operations
in the direction of focusing on products that make large and stable profit margins; Completing the restructuring of distribution
system and putting into operation distribution system organized according to the model of Provincial Branch; Streamlining
the organizational structure of the Group to ensure optimization and reduce operating costs....

At the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, in the context of instable and fierce market, Hoa Sen Group has made the best
effort to stabilize and improve the situation of production and business. Net profit from business activities has been recorded
steadily, cash flow has been guaranteed, loans has continued to be reduced and projects have been put into operation
stably according to the schedule and plan set out by the Board of Directors.

- The consumption of finished products reaches 1,393,973 tons, fulfilling 73% of the plan. Net revenue reached VND
28,035 billion, fulfilling 89% of the plan. Profit after tax reached YND 361 billion, fulfilling 72% of the plan.

- The difficulties of the market appearing from the end of 2018 and the beginning of 2019 have significantly affected the
Group's business targets in the first quarter of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019. However, with the initiative and timely restructuring
and governance - management resolutions of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management and all units, the Group has
recorded net profit from business activities in the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Quarter. In particular, the 4th Quarter fell into the low
season of the industry but the Group still recorded net profit from business activities. Gross profit / net revenue ratio is
maintained at over 11%, a high level compared to the industry average.

- In the domestic market, the distribution system continues to expand. By the end of 2019, the Group has a total of 536
distribution locations across the country, including 55 Provincial Branches, 10 Warehouses and 471 Stores. With a wide
distribution network from North to South, the Group continues to consolidate, promote its core competitive advantages
and improve the supply chain. In parallel, the export market has been expanded to 80 countries / territories, export
products have been increasingly diversified.

- Plant projects on all 3 regions (such as Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant - phase 2, Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant - phase
2, Hoa Sen Phu My Hot Dip Galvanized Steel Pipe Plant...) was completed and put info operation stably, addressing



demand for consumption, product diversification, taking
advantage and  promoting competitive advantages of
geographical location, optimizing energy of production -

supply - transportation forces. WORLDWIDE SALES CHANNELS

The steel sheet and steel market in 2020 will continue to face 80

with great challenges and stronger impacts on enterprises in

the same industry. Therefore, in order to cope with the 80 COUNTRIES/TERRITORIES
challenges and complete the production and business plan, the ‘ ‘ N ei_ revenue exceed i N g

Board of Directors aims to perform the following key tasks:

10
- Completing the restructuring process, strengthening the USD 102 bllllon

management efficiency in the spirit of modern management In the fiseal year 2018, net revenue reEREHRIND

models, ensuring a streamlined, professional management i T s i
' uring a - ined, profess! geme R 28,000 billion, exceeding USD 1.2 billion , ’
system, well controlling risks, reducing costs , increase competifiveness. R

- Promoting business activities, affirming the leading position
through effectively taking advantage of core competitive
advantages from flexible, dynamic distribution system and
diverse export markets.

- Optimizing production activities in combination with technical
improvements to reduce costs, lower price and improve product
quality, and arrange efficient and reasonable operations for
supply, transport.

- Consolidating, training and improving the professional skills,
responsibilities and quality of the human resources, ensuring
the organizational structure is streamlined, professional and
tied to Hoa Sen culture.

- Implementing a reasonable, creative communication strategy
to meet production and business demand, combined with
community events, sponsorship, charity and social security.

The way ahead of the Group needs the solidarity, efforts and

determination from the Board of Directors and all employees.

Therefore, the Board of Directors firmly believes that, with 19 \ i 2, = YIS | ; v
years of establishment, development and association with the . ! ;
culture of " Integrity - Loyalty - Dedication - Talent - Friendliness",

Hoa Sen Group will stand firm in front of the challenges and

achieve successes in the future.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and all employees of Hoa
Sen Group, | would like to express my deep gratitude for the
trust and support of Shareholders. Hopefully, You will devote
the highest trust and stand side by side with us on the journey

to reach new heights.

We wish your health, happiness and success.
Best regards,

Chairman of the Board of Directors

N

LE PHUOC VU
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Viethamese name

CONG TY ¢O PHAN TAP POAN HOA SEN

English name

HOA SEN GROUP

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 3700381324 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh
Duong Province on 8 August 2001, as amended.

Chartered capital

VND 4,234,694,890,000

Headquarters  No.09, Thong Nhat Boulevard, Song Than Il Industrial Park, Di An Ward, Di An
District, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam.
Telephone 028 3999 0111 | Fax: 028 3847 9882
Website  http://www.hoasengroup.vn

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange in accordance with Decision
No.117/QD-SGDHCM dated 5 November 2008.

12| ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES:

+ Manufacturing roofing sheets by galvanized steel, zinc alloy, paint galvanized

zinc plating and plating of other alloys;
» Producing steel purlins, galvanized purlins;
+ Manufacturing black steel pipes, galvanized steel pipes and other alloys;
+ Manufacturing steel mesh, galvanized steel wire, steel wire;
+ Manufacturing and trading plastic building materials.
+ Buying and selling building materials, capital goods and consumer goods;
» Renting warehouse and transporting goods;
« Building industrial and civil constructions;
+ Producing cold rolled steel coils;

+ Leasing machinery and equipment and other tangible belongings.

INTRODUCTION | 13



OUTSTANDING ACTIVITIES

OUTSTANDING ACTIVITIES
IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

;  LE KHANH THANH NHA MAY ONG KEM N

Net revenue exceeding
WP/ oiion s e i mamfaciorer and USD 1.2 Billion

trader of steel sheets in Vietnam, accounting

for 34% of the domestic market. In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group's net
revenue reached VND 28,000 billion, exceeding
USD 1.2 billion.

GO
Qe
R

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen
Group owns the nationwide distribution —
retail network with 536 Branches/
Stores, increasing 45 Branches/ Stores in
comparison with the previous fiscal year.

)
C) By the end of the fiscal year 2018 -

2019, Hoa Sen's products have been
exported to more than 80 countries and
territories. Hoa Sen Group's products
meet all standards of difficult markets
such as: AS Standard of Australia, JIS
Standard of Japan, ASTM Standard of
Us, efc...

INTRODUCTION | 15

14| ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019



TAP DOAN HOA SEN XUAT KHAU LO HANG 15.000 TAN TON BEN ANH, BUC, Y
ERPCSTS )5, 000 TOMS O3 SANANITID STEEL O0E 10 THE LI GERMASY. AND ALK

HIOA SEM CROUP E
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AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

E HO DONG THUONG HIEWD cﬁ_m:: GIA

CONGTY CP TAP DPOAN HOA SEN

HOA SEN

May 10, 2019

Hoa Sen Group won the National Brand for 3 product lines: Hoa Sen Steel Sheet — Hoa Sen Plastic Pipe — Hoa Sen

Galvanized Steel Pipe

June 23, 2019

Hoa Sen Group was honored to receive
National Quality Award 2018 for Hoa Sen Steel
Sheet and Hoa Sen Galvanized Steel Pipe.

November 30, 2019

Hoa Sen Group was honored in Top100
Sustainable Development Enterprises.

18| ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019
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January 09, 2020

Hoa Sen Group was honored to be ranked 36" of
Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietham by VNR500
in 2019. In addition to that, Hoa Sen Group ranked

12" in Top 500 Largest Private Enterprises in Vietnam
in 2019.

April 6, 2019

Hoa Sen Group continues to achieve the title of
"Top 50 strong Vietnamese brands"

INTRODUCTION | 19



HISTORY

OF ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

8/8/2001

Hoa Sen Joint Stock Company,
precursor of Hoa Sen Group
Joint Stock Company, was
established with an initial

charter capital of

S AR

30 22
Billion Employees
08/8/2004

Inaugurating Hoa Sen
Group headquarters at No.9
Thong Nhat Boulevard,
Song Than 2 Industrial Park,
Di An Ward, Di An District,
Binh Duong Province.

11/2006

Establishing Hoa Sen Steel Sheet
Join Stock Company with charter
capital of VND 320 billion.

01/2007

Inaugurating Hoa Sen Cold
Rolling Mill with capacity of
180,000 tons/year.

12/2007

Hoa Sen Joint Stock Company
renamed to Hoa Sen Group
Joint Stock Company and
merged 3 companies: Hoa
Sen Steel Sheet Joint Stock
Company, Hoa Sen Building
Materials Joint Stock
Company and Hoa Sen
Building Mechanical Joint
Stock Company.

$ Increasing the $
charter capital
570,39 1,007.91

billion billion

Putting into operation Galvanizing line
(NOF technology) with capacity of
450,000 tons/year and Color coating
180,000
tons/year that belong to Hoa Sen Phu

My Steel Sheet Plant Project.

line with capacity of

EXPORT SALES ACHIEVED
USD 180 MILLION

Becoming the leading exporter of
steel sheets in Southeast Asia.

ANNOUNCING THE NEW
BRAND IDENTITY SYSTEM

iﬁi 150 Branches

08/01/2014

Putting production lines of Phase 2 of Hoa Sen Phu My Steel
Sheet Plant Project to increase the total designed capacity of
current production lines of Hoa Sen Group to nearly 1
million tons of cold rolled coils/year and 1.2 million tons of

Kingdom).

coated steel sheets/year.

Forbés

Asia 2014" by Euromoney Magazine (the

production capacity of the Group.

Hoa Sen Group is the first Vietnames enterprise in Metal
and Mining sector awarded “Best Managed Company in

United

- Investing in Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Steel Pipe Plant Project and
Hoa Sen Nghe An Steel Sheet Plant Project to enhance

Hoa Sen Group changed its fiscal year.
Accordingly, Hoa Sen Group's fiscal year
begins from October 1st and ends in
September 30th of the following year.

Stocks of Hoa Sen Group (code: HSG) were
listed on Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

/‘/ <2

@l

57,038,500 82
shares branches

Starting the construction of Phase 1 of Hoa Sen
Phu My Steel Sheet Plant Project at Phu My 1
Industrial Park, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province.

20 ANNUAL REPORT
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01/10/2008

5/12/2008

EXPORT SALES ACHIEVED
USD 101 MILLION

Completing Phase 1 of Hoa Sen
Phu My Steel Sheet Plant Project

106

Branches

=
Third-grade Labor Medal

A OLE

I

S |

o = |

‘%‘wﬂl\‘* |

Top 10 of Vietnam ~ Top 10 of Corporate Social,
Gold Star 2013 Responsibility

I
I

I
Putting Galvanizing line (NOF technology) of Phase :
2 of Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Sheet Plant Project with |
a capacity of 120,000 tons/year into operation. 1

I
I
HOA SEN GROUP ACHIEVED TOP 100 OF |
LARGEST VIETNAMESE ENTERPRISES AND TOP |

30 OF LARGEST VIETNAMESE PRIVATE !
ENTERPRISES 2012 !

115 Branches :

04/2015

Hoa Sen Group was the only
company in Vietnam selected to the
list of Global Growth Companies by
World Economic Forum.

19/6/2015
Inaugurating the Hoa Sen Nghe An
Steel Sheet Plant at Nam Cam
Industrial Park, Dong Nam Economic
Zone, Nghe An Province and
starting to invest in Hoa Sen Nghe
An Plant Project at Dong Hoi
Industrial Park, Nghe An Province.

iﬁi 190 Branches

11/2014

Hoa Sen Group was awarded “Vietham
Value 2014" by Ministry of Industry and

Trade.

HOA SEN STEEL SHEET PRODUCT
HOA SEN PLASTIC PIPE PRODUCT
HOA SEN STEEL PIPE PRODUCT

i

Vietnam Value

28/3/2015
Inaugurating Phase 1 of Hoa Sen Binh
Dinh Steel Pipe Plant

INTRODUCTION | 21



$ Increasing the $

charter capital

1,008 1,965
billion billion

Hoa Sen Group was honorably awarded
“Brand Gold Cup for Environment to Develop
2015”, and was also awarded “Top 10
Vietnam Friendly Environment Product 2015”
for the Hoa Sen Plastic Pipes.

08/01/2016

Hoa Sen Group started construction of Hoa
Sen Steel Sheet Plant Project at Nhon Hoi -
Binh Dinh province with capacity of 180,000
tons of coated steel sheet/year and 90,000

‘tons color coated steel sheet/year.

}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
: 09/10/2015
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}
}

17/3/2016

Hoa Sen Group invested in Hoa Sen Ha
Nam Plant Project at Kien Khe | Industrial
Park, Ha Nam Province. The project
invested in the production lines with
modern technology.

15/4/2016

Hoa Sen Group operated Hoa Sen Binh
Dinh Plastic Pipes with capacity of 24,000
tons/year.

19/5/2016

Investing in the Hoa Sen Yen Bai Hotel and
Residence Complex, marked officially the
development strategy of Hoa Sen Group in
the future.

06/6/2016

Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant at Dong Hoi
Industrial Park — Nghe An province put
Galvanizing line with NOF technology
with capacity of 400,000 tons/year into
operation and produced successfully the
first finished steel coil.

22/7/2016

Opening the Representative Office No.2
at Vietcombank Tower — No.5 Me Linh
Square, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, to
timely respond to the demands of human
resources and facility for strong growth as
well as serve for the Group’s orientation
of investment expansion.

06/8/2016

REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM.

HONORABLY RECEIVING THE SECOND-GRADE i
LABOR MEDAL BY PRESIDENT OF THE SOCIALIST
R @
9/2016
Hoa Sen Group was continuously
awarded “Best Managed Company in

Asia 2016" in mefal and mining secfor by
Euromoney  Magazine (the  United

Kingdom).
HR Forbes

COMPANIES
2016

Hoa Sen Group was honorably awarded
“50 Best Vieamese Listed Companies” by
Forbes Vietnam in four consecutive years.

Hﬁ” 250 Branches

October 2018
Hoa Sen Group officially put ERP system into

operation, marking a great step of the Group
in consolidating, tightening and optimizing
the management, coordination and arrange-

June 9, 2018
Hoa Sen Group was honored in the Top 50 Best Performing
Companies in Vietnam 2018 (5 consecutive years).

July 9, 2018

ment of resources.

January 20, 2018

visit and work.

May 8, 2018

Quy Nhon port.
May 18, 2018

Materials Plant.

Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant was honored to
welcome Prime Minister Nguyen Xuan Phuc to

Hoa Sen Group exported 15,000 tons of
Steel Sheet to Europe at Quy Nhon Port, Binh
Dinh Province. This was the first big shipment

The Group's charter capital was increased from VND
3,500 billion to VND 3,850 billion.

July 27, 2018
Hoa Sen Group was honored in the list of Top 50 best Listed

Companies in Vietnam 2018 voted by Forbes Vietnam (6

consecutive years).

exported by Hoa Sen Group to Europe via

From July, 2018
Officially deploying the restructuring of Distribution System
according fo the model of Provincial Branch.

ﬁﬁi 491 Branches

Inauguration of Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building

Forbés

29/5/2017

Hoa Sen Group was honorably voted for
“50 Best Vietnamese Listed Companies” by
Forbes Vietnam (5 consecutive years)

6/2017

Hoa Sen Group was honorably awarded
for “Top 50 Vietnam's Best Performing
Companies awarded by  Business
Review Magazine (4 consecutive years)
7/2017

Hoa Sen Group achieved “Top 30 Best
Annual Reports 2017”

9/2017
Hoa Sen Group was honorably awarded for
“Typical South East Enterprise 2017

22| ANNUAL REPORT
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Hoa Sen Group started the construction of
Hoa Sen Yen Bai Steel Pipe Plant Project - the
11" plant of Hoa Sen Group and the 5™ Plant

$ Increasing the $

charter capital

1,965 3,500
Billion Billion
30/11/2016

Achieving "Vietnam Value" in 2016
for three major product groups:

‘lt HOA SEN STEEL SHEET
a

HOA SEN PLASTIC PIPE
Vietnam Value HOA SEN STEEL PIPE.

01/3/2017

in the North market.

iﬁi 343 Branches

October, 2018

The model of Provincial Branch was piloted
for 03 provinces of Tay Ninh, Binh Dinh and
Thanh Hoa that came into stable operation.

January 10, 2019

Successfully exported a shipment of 17,000
tons of steel sheet from Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant
to the U.S, worth more than 14 million USD.
Officially signed Strategic Cooperation
between Hoa Sen Group and SK Shipping
Company in the field of bulk cargo transport
to international markets.

January 17, 2019

Hoa Sen Group continues to be honored in
the Top 500 largest Enterprises in Vietnam.

11/2018 - 02/2019
From November 2018 to February
2019: Based on the results of the pilot
model, Hoa Sen Group officially
implemented restructuring the
nationwide distribution network under
Provincial Branch model, in parallel
with the application of ERP system into
Provincial Branches. The Group has
established 55 Provincial Branches in
Provinces / Cities across the country
and more than 400 Stores (Business
Locations) under the Provincial Branch.
At the same time, during this period,
the Group has applied ERP system
which has been refined to suit the new
management  model of  Provincial
Branches and implemented the electronic
invoice system for Provincial Branches.

March 2019

Completing the restructuring of Distribu-
tion System according fo Provincial
Branch model. From March 1, 2019,
55 Provincial Branches and more than
400 Stores across the country began to
operate stably. From this point of time,
the Group began implementing
procedures fo terminate the legal form
of branches under the old model, to
ensure streamlining and synchronizo-

tion throughout the system.

March 18, 2019

Officially inaugurated Hoa Sen Phu
My Hot Dip Galvanized Steel Pipes
Plant at Phu My | Industrial Park, Phu
My Ward, Phu My Town, Ba Ria -

Vung Tau Province. The plant has a total

INTRODUCTION | 23



design capacity of 85,000 ftons / year,
corresponding to the scale of 01 hotdipped
galvanized steel pipes line, 06 steel pipes
rolling lines and 01 slitting line.

Officially announced the successful operation
of ERP system after nearly 2 years of implemen-
tation. ERP system is applied synchronously to
the whole Group, including Parent Company,
Plant / Subsidiaries Provincial Branches and
Distribution Stores across the country.

Successfully exported a shipment of 15,000
tons of steel sheet worth 11.5 million USD to
European market (UK, Germany and ltaly) from
the plants in Phu My Industrial Park, Ba Ria -
Vung Tau Province.

April 22, 2019

Officially inaugurated Phase Il of Hoa Sen
Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant at Nhon Hoi
Economic Zone, Hoi Son Hamlet, Quy Nhon
City, Binh Dinh Province. Phase Il of the plant
has a total design capacity of 430,000 tons /
year, corresponding to the scale of 01
galvanized / aluminum - zinc alloy line (NOF
line), 01 color coating line, 01 cold rolling line
with two racks, 01 pickling line and 01 acid
regeneration system.

Continuing fo successfully export a shipment of
5,000 tons of steel sheet, valued at over US $
4 million, to Malaysia from Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi Plant.
April 23, 2019

Successfully exported a shipment of 15,000

tons of steel sheet worth US § 12 million to Mexico from Hoa Sen Nghe
An Plant. This is the largest consignment of galvanized steel sheet
exported to Mexico after the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement
for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP or TPP-11) came into effect.

June 24, 2019

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liability Company (Subsidiary of
Hoa Sen Group) was first honored at the National Quality Awards 2018
for 02 product lines: Hoa Sen Steel Sheet and Hoa Sen Galvanized Steel
Pipes.

July 6, 2019

Successfully organized the first award ceremony for the promotion
program "Buying Hoa Sen Plastic Tubes - Win Camry Car", with total
prize value of more than 3.6 billion VND.

July 31, 2019

Hoa Sen Group continues to be the companion unit for the 4th
consecutive year with Vietnam Television and Vietnam Volleyball
Federation to organize the "International Women's Volleyball - VTV Hoa
Sen Cup 2019”

August 30, 2019

Hoa Sen Group accompanies with Vietnam Television Station, Vietnam
Bicycle and Motorcycle Federation to organize the International Bicycle
Tournament - VTV Hoa Sen Cup 2019, starting from Hanoi capital, the
route along the road "Heritage Journey" through provinces / cities
including Bac Ninh, Hai Duong, Quang Ninh, Hai Phong, Thai Binh, Nam
Dinh, Ninh Binh, Thanh Hoa, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh, Quang Tri, Thua Thien
Hue and Da Nang and end in Hoi An city, Quang Nam province.

October 10, 2019
Hoa Sen Group continued to be honored for the 3rd consecutive year in

the List of 1,000 largest corporate income taxpayers in Vietnam in 2018
announced by the General Department of Taxation.

24| ANNUAL REPORT INTRODUCTION | 25
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MODEL OF
HOA SEN GROUP

HOA SEN GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Parent Company /Unit in charge of
the entire Group of Companies / Subsidiaries)

l l l l

BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES IN MANUFACTURING SECTOR SUBSIDIARIES IMPLEMENTED
e TRANSACTION OFFICES UNDER [ (Own 100% Capital) —| SUBSIDIARIES IN OTHER SECTOR | — ASSOCIATE COMPANIES PROJECTS IN NINH THUAN
PROVINCE
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN e Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Mcteric:ls CO.,LTD
. HO CHI MINH CITY Céng ty C8 phan Hoa Sen Yen Bai Hoa Sen International Port J.S.C
(EXECUTIVE OFFICE HOA SEN GROUP) (95%] (49%]
—e Hoa Sen Ha Nam Co.,L[TD
BRANCH OF HOA SEN GROUP:
—e Hoa Sen Nghe An Co.,LTD L Hoa Sen Quy Nhon J.5.C
HOA SEN PHU MY STEEL SHEET PLANT - 99%)
(including Nam Cam and Dong Hoi Factory) °
Units of the Distribution - Business —e Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Co.,LTD
system, including:
. | *® Provincial Branches and Store system
(“Sell location”)
—e Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi — Binh Dinh Co.,LTD
o Steel sheet and General Warehouse
Hoa Sen Phu My Co.,LTD
(Producing steel pipes hot dipped galvanized)
— Hoa Sen Building Materials Co.,LTD
—e Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Co.,LTD
26| ANNUAL REPORT INTRODUCTION | 27
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF
HOA SEN GROUP

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF SHAREHOLDERS

ASSISTANT BOARD TO THE B.O.D
& GENERAL DIRECTOR

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Committees under the BOD:

e Strategic Development Committee

® Human Resources & Restructuring
Committee

e Internal Auditing Committee

e Joint Stock Finance

& Investor Relations Committee

1

TECHNICAL, SUPPLY PRODUCTION
& PROJECT SECTOR

DOMESTIC BUSINESS,
IMPORT, EXPORT AND MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM DISTRIBUTION SECTOR

e Technology — Quality Division,
Industrial Project Management

e Supply Division

e Service — Purchasing Division

e Construction & Investment Division

OFFICE SECTOR

e Export Division

® Import Division

® Management System Distribution
e General & Business Policy Division
e Plastic Sales Division

o Steel — sheet, Steel sales Division

® HR — Administration Division

® Recruitment - Training Division

e [T Division & ERP Division

¢ Internal Control Division

® Finance — Trade Remedies Division
® Marketing Division

e Accounting Division




MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

<&

Mr. LE PHUOC VU - Chairman

Mr. Le Phuoc Vu started his business with a steel sheet retail outlet in 1994. In 2001, after 7 years of accumulating capital
and experience, he founded Hoa Sen Joint Stock Company (the precursor of Hoa Sen Group Joint Stock Company) with an
initial charter capital of VND 30 billion.

After over 17 years of building and developing, with intelligence, assertiveness, responsibility and integrity, he developed
Hoa Sen Group from a small company to the leading manufacturer and trader of steel in Vietnam and the region.

For his dedication and considerable contributions to the development of the Group, the General Assembly of Shareholders
elected him as Chairman of the Board of Directors for many consecutive terms.

Currently, Mr. Le Phuoc Vu is holding the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors cum the first Legal Representative of
the Group, performing the functions of general management and leadership in giving orientations and strategies for the
Group and in charge of direct and organize the implementation of powers, duties and functions of the Board of Directors. At
the same time, he is assigned by the Board of Directors to take responsibility for subcommittees under the Board of Directors,
including: Strategic Development & Investment Subcommittee and Restructuring and HR Subcommittee.

In addition to his position as Hoa Sen Group’s Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Le Phuoc Vu is currently holding the
position of Chairman of Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Integrated Iron & Steel Complex Investment One Member Limited
Liabilities Company.

He is the person who directly gives the guidelines, strategies and orientations that are important and breakthrough for the
Group's development process.

With outstanding achievements in leadership, management of production, business activities and community activities,
Mr. Le Phuoc Vu was honored to receive the Second - class Labor Medal by the President of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
He was also the Co - Chair at Vietnam - India Business Forum and a Global Entrepreneur honored by Ernst & Young in
Monaco in 2015.

As the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Le Phuoc Vu is together with all the members of the Board of Directors to make
resolutions and decisions timely leading Hoa Sen Group to achieve outstanding accomplishments during the past 18 years.
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Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Vice Chairman

Joining Hoa Sen Group since the early days of its establishment,
Mr. Tran Ngoc Chu has made important contributions during the
development period of Hoa Sen Group.

Mr. Tran Ngoc Chu graduated from Finance and Accounting
University Ho Chi Minh City with much experience in the sectors of
finance, accounting, taxation and corporate governance. He was
elected in the Board of Directors for many consecutive terms by the
General Assembly of Shareholders. At the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2017 - 2018, he continued to be elected to the
Board of Directors and was appointed to be the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors cum the second Legal Representative of the
Group.

In the position of Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Tran
Ngoc Chu is assigned to hold executive duties at the Board of
Directors to handle the regular tasks of the Board of Directors and
Subcommittees under the Board of Directors, and directly on behalf
of the Chairman of the Board of Directors handles the work of
foreign affairs, finance - credit - banking, investment promotion,
industrial projects and other projects of the Group. In addition to his
position at Hoa Sen Group, Mr. Tran Ngoc Chu currently holds
several key positions at the Group's Subsidiaries / Related Compoa-
nies.

On October 15, 2018, Mr. Tran Ngoc Chu was honored fo receive
the Second - class Labor Medal by the President, and was awarded
the Certificate of Top 10 Excellent Entrepreneurs in 2018 of Binh
Duong Province by Binh Duong People's Committee.

Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI - Executive
Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Tran Quoc Tri graduated from Ho Chi Minh City
University of Economics - majoring in Accounting -
Auditing. Joining Hoa Sen Group since 2004, Mr.
Tran Quoc Tri has proved his management ability in
the sectors of business and administration. He has
been trusted by the Board of Directors, appointed
many management - operating positions, from the
entry level to the senior level during the process of
working with the Group...

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
2017 - 2018, Mr. Tran Quoc Tri was elected to the
Board of Directors by the General Assembly of
Shareholders and appointed to the position of
Executive Member of the Board of Directors cum
General Director, and also the third Legal
Representative of the Group.

As an Executive Member of the Board of Directors,
Mr. Tran Quoc Tri is assigned to take charge of
directing, supervising and being responsible for all
management activities of the Board of Management.

In 2014, he was commended by the Binh Duong
People's Committee for his contributions to the
development of businesses and localities.

In 2017, he was awarded a Certificate of Merit by
the Prime Minister.
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MEMBERS OF

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

O

Mr. LY VAN XUAN -

Non - Executive Member of the
Board of Directors

Mr. ly Van Xuan is a loyal individual
shareholder of Hoa Sen Group from the
first days of establishment. With his
personal reputation and dedication to
the Group, he was elected by the
General Assembly of Shareholders as a
member of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisor for many terms.

At the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2017 - 2018, Mr. Ly Van
Xuan was elected by the Generadl
Assembly of Shareholders to the Board
of Directors, appointed as a Non-Executive
Member of the Board of Directors.

Currently, as a Non - Executive Member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. ly Van
Xuan is assigned to oversee and
approve transactions with affiliated
parties and implement shareholder
relations activities.

M-r. Ly Van Xuan is an Associate Professor,
Doctor of Medicine and a Head of
Training Department of Ho Chi Minh
City Medicine and Pharmacy University
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Mr. NGUYEN VAN LUAN -
Independent Member of the

Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Van Luan was elected to
the Board of Directors by the General
Assembly of Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
2017 - 2018, and at the same time,
due to fully meeting the criteria
prescribed in the Enterprise Law and
the Securities Law, he was appointed to
the position of Independent Member of
the Board of Directors.

As an Independent Member of the
Board of Directors with accumulated
knowledge from many years of teaching
at universities, Mr. Nguyen Van Luan is
assigned to hold the position of Chairman
of Internal Audit Subcommittee, directly
giving guidelines for the Internal Audit
Department under the Board of Directors,
supervising the internal control system,
and performing the function of overseeing
transactions with affiliated parties.

Mr. Nguyen Van Luan is currently an
Associate Professor of Economics, and
a Lecturer at the University of Economics
- Law under Ho Chi Minh City National
University.

&

Mr. DINH VIET DUY -
Independent Member of the
Board of Directors

M:r. Dinh Viet Duy is currently a Member
of the Board of Directors for the term of
20182023, elected by the General
Assembly of Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2017 -
2018. He is also appointed as an
Independent Member of the Board of
Directfors due to fully meeting the criteria
prescribed in  Enterprise law and
Securities Law.

Currently, Mr. Dinh Viet Duy is assigned to
hold the position of Chairman of Financial
& Investor Relations Subcommittee, and to
participate in overseeing transactions
with offiliated parties.

In addition to his position as an
Independent Member of the Board of
Direcfors at Hoa Sen Group, Mr. Dinh
Viet Duy is also holding the position of
General  Director  of  Commercial
Consfruction Joint Stock Company 2
(ACSC).

M:r. Dinh Viet Duy has a Master degree
in Project Management, Construction
Engineer.

MEMBERS OF

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI - General Director

With many years of working, dedicating and developing at
Hoa Sen Group, in the Fiscal year 2017 - 2018, Mr. Tran
Quoc Tri was appointed to the position of General Director
by the Board of Directors of Hoa Sen Group.

As the Head of the Executive Board cum the third Legal
Representative, Mr. Tran Quoc Tri performs the functions of
general management of all daily production and business
activities of the Group and related parties following the
guidelines and policies of the Board of Directors, and also
responsible to the Board of Directors and the General
Assembly of Shareholders on all activities of the Board of
Management.

In addition to the general management function, Mr. Tran
Quoc Tri is also assigned to guide and directly manage:
Exports, Imports, Distribution Management, Business
Planning & Policies, Human Resources, Recruitment &
training.

In 2017, he was awarded a Certificate of Merit by the
Prime Minister.

Mr. HOANG DUC HUY -
Deputy General Director

Mr. Hoang Duc Huy is currently the Deputy General
Director in charge of Internal Control of Hoa Sen
Group, directing and managing professional
operations of Hoa Sen Group's Internal Control
Department. He is one of the founding shareholders of
Hoa Sen Joint Stock Company since 2001 (precursor
of Hoa Sen Group Joint Stock Company today).

Mr. Hoang Duc Huy has over 15 years working in
finance, accounting and internal control at large
companies under the Department of Transportation of
Tay Ninh Province. As Deputy General Director of
Internal Control, he has made great contributions to
the Group’s development. In 2014, he was awarded
Certificate of Merit by Binh Duong Province People’s
Committee for his contributions to the development of
the enterprise and Binh Duong Province.
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Mr. VU VAN THANH -
Deputy General Director

Mr. Vu Van Thanh graduated with a Master
Degree in Economics Development,
currently he is the Deputy General
Director in charge of Finance and Hoa
Sen North Executive Office, managing
the operations of the Finance - Trade
Remedies Department, and directing
the entire operation of the North
Executive Office and all Provincial
Branches in the Northern region.

At the same time, Mr. Vu Van Thanh is
currently holding the position  of

Chairman at Subsidiaries of the Group:

- Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member
Limited Liabilities Company;

- Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member
Limited Liabilities Company;

- Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials
One  Member Limited Liabilities
Company.

Joining Hoa Sen Group since 2008 as
the Chief Financial Officer, with his
knowledge and  experience in
operating previous businesses, he has
made important contributions to the
Group. In 2017, he was awarded a
Certificate of Merit by the Prime
Minister.
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Mr. NGUYEN MINH KHOA -
Deputy General Director

Joining the Group since early 2008, Mr.
Nguyen Minh Khoa is currently the
Deputy General Director in charge of
Supply, Production & Project of Hoa Sen
Group.

Mr. Nguyen Minh Khoa is assigned to
direct the operation of the Supply -
Service Department and Production -
Project Department, and is responsible
for organizing the implementation and
promotion  of projects
investment of the Group following the
guidelines of the Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Minh Khoa obtained a
Construction Engineering Degree from
University of Architecture Ho Chi Minh
City and a Master Business Administration
Degree from Industrial Management

industrial

Department of University of Technology
Ho Chi Minh City.

Mr. HO THANH HIEU -
Deputy General Director

Joining Hoa Sen Group in early 2002,
he was appointed to many positions
such as Deputy Director of the
Distribution Network, Director of the
Distribution Network, Director of Sales.
Currently, Mr. Ho Thanh Hieu is in the
position of Deputy General Director in
charge of Sales, ERP and the South
Executive Office.

Specifically, Mr. Ho Thanh Hieu is
directing the operations of the Sales -
Distribution Department; in charge of
managing the [T Department and
implementing the ERP Project according
to the guidelines of the Board of
Directors; at the same time directing the
operation of all activities of the South
Executive Office and its related units in
the Southern Region.

Mr. Ho Thanh Hieu also undertakes as
Chairman in Hoa Sen Group's
subsidiaries such as Hoa Sen Binh Dinh
One Member Limited Liabilities
Company and Hoa Sen Nhon Hoéi -
Binh Dinh  One Member Limited
Liabilities Company.

Mr. Ho Thanh Hieu graduated from
University of Economics Ho Chi Minh
City with major of Accounting and
Auditing.

MEMBERS OF

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr. TRAN QUOC PHAM -
Deputy General Director

Mr. Tran Quoc Pham graduated as
constructive engineer with major of
industrial and civil construction in
1998. Before joining Hoa Sen Group,
he has 18 years of experience in
construction area, and has taken many
important  positions in  construction
companies. He was honorably awarded
Certificate  of Merit by Ministry of
Construction for great achievements in
2009, 2010 and 2012.

Mr. Tran Quoc Pham is currently the
Deputy General Director in charge of
Investment & Construction activities of
the Group, assigned to direct the
operation of the Investment &
Construction Department and  the
primary construction of the Group. At
the same time, he is assigned to
organize: Investment & Construction;
Organizing the implementation and
supervision of construction, finishing
and pre-acceptance test of works,
infrastructure and workshops at the
Group's  Projects; In  charge of
investment  promotion  activities of
projects in Ninh Thuan.

Mr. NGUYEN NGOC HUY -
Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Huy has joined Hoa
Sen Group since 2011 and has
experienced many professional
positions in Export sector of Hoa Sen
Group such as Director of Region 3 -
Export Department; Deputy Director of
Export Department, ...

On December 25, 2018, Mr. Nguyen
Ngoc Huy has been appointed by the
Board of Directors as Deputy General
Director who is directly responsible for
the export activities of Hoa Sen Group.

Mr. TRAN THANH NAM -
Acting Deputy General Director

Mr. Tran Thanh Nam was born in 1988,
holds a Master's degree in Business
Administration and has been with the
Group for nearly 10 years. During his
time working at Hoa Sen Group, he was
appointed fo many positions in the field
of business and management of
Distribution System...

On December 17, 2019, after
reviewing and evaluating Mr. Tran
Thanh  Nam's  competence, quality,
standards and dedication process at the
Group, the Board of Directors appointed
him to the position of Acting Deputy
General Director cum Director  of
Distribution System, responsible for the
management and administration of the
entire Distribution System of the Group.
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PRODUCTION
CAPACITY

HOA SEN YEN BAI GALVANIZED STEEL PIPES PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Steel Pipe Line 82,800

HOA SEN NGHE AN PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Steel Pipe Line 700,000
Steel Sheet Producing Line

with NOF Technology 800,000
Color Coating Line 240,000

HOA SEN NAM CAM PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Steel Pipe Line 120,000

HOA SEN BINH DINH GALVANIZED STEEL PIPES - PLASTIC PIPES PLANT

(Owned by Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity
100,000

12,000

Steel Pipe Line

Plastic Pipe Line
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- . HOA SEN BINH DUONG STEEL SHEET PLANT

(Owned by Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Cold Rolling Line 980,000
Steel Sheet Producing Line

with NOF Technology 150,000
Color Coating Line 45,000

(*) Owned and managed by Hoa Sen Group

. (uPVC, HDPE, PPR)

DN Hoang Sa

HOA SEN HA NAM PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Steel Pipe Line 217,800

Plastic Pipe Line 19,800

HOA SEN NHON HOI - BINH DINH PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Cold Rolling Line 350,000
- . Steel Sheet Producing Line R
- with NOF Technology !
Piie Color Coating Line 195,000
. 4
’
7’
7’
’
’
’
’
g ’ HOA SEN - PHU MY BUILDING MATERIALS PLANT
, - (Owned by Hoa Sen - Phu My Building Materials One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity
332,040

97,891

Steel Pipe Line

Plastic Pipe Line

(uPVC, HDPE, PPR)

HOA SEN PHU MY HOT DIP GALVANIZED STEEL
PIPES PLANT
(Owned by Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liabilities Company)

Production line Total designed capacity

Hot Dip Galvanizing Line 85,000

HOA SEN PHU MY STEEL SHEET PLANT

(Owned by Hoa Sen Group)

Production line Total designed capacity

Steel Sheet Producing Line
with NOF Technology

Color Coating Line

1,150,000

330,000

Notes: The designed capacity is based on unit of tons/year,
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PRODUCT CATEGORY

HOA SEN STEEL SHEET
COLD ROLLED COIL

With the investment in the most modern fechnologies in the world from
the suppliers of Esmech-SMS (Germany), CMI (India), cold rolling line
can produce thicknesses from 0.0115 - 3.0 mm combined steel quality
control automation (flatness, thickness, deformation controlling). The cold
rolled coil meets the strictest requirements and improves the effective
resolution of losses during production process.

GALVANIZED STEEL SHEET (Gl)

Being manufactured by the advanced and environmentally friendly NOF
technology of Danieli (ltaly), the Gl products meet the strictest
requirements of galvanized steel sheet with coating up to Z450 (450
g/m?). Thank to good corrosion resistance and smooth coating layer,
Hoa Sen galvanized steel sheet products are the top choice of
consumers, ensuring high quality according to ASTM A653/A653M
(U.S), AS 1397 (Australia), EN 10346 (Europe), MS 2384, MS 2385
(Malaysia), SNI 07-2053 (Indonesia) and IS 277 (India) standards.

PRE-PAINTED GALVANIZED STEEL SHEET (PPGI)

The variety of colors and sizes of Hoa Sen pre-painted galvanized steel
sheet always meets the customer's needs, ensure high quality under JIS
G 3312 (Japan), ASTM/A755 A755M (U.S), AS 2728 (Australia),
EN 10169 (Europe) , MS 2383 (Malaysia) and IS 14246 (India)

standards.
ALUMINUM-ZINC ALLOY COATED STEEL SHEET (GL)

Being manufactured by the modern NOF technology line, investing in
the world leading wind - blade technology with automatic adjustment of
coating amount, ensuring coating evenly, quality and coating coverage
of up to AZ200 (200 g/m?, meets the requirements of ASTM
A792/A792M (U.S), AS 1397 (Australia), JIS G3321 (Japan), MS
1196 (Malaysia), EN 10346 (Europe), SNI 4096 (Indonesia) and IS
15961 (India) standards. The surface of the product is bright and
beautiful with silver color, outstanding corrosion resistance, effective
heat resistance, flexibility in design and has 4 times longer life than
normal galvanized steel sheet.

PRE-PAINTED ALUMINUM-ZINC
ALLOY COATED STEEL SHEET (PPGL)

The application of the leading technology of coating on aluminum-zinc
alloy base enables it to paint two identical surface in order to increase
aesthetics, diversity of colors, high durability makes the PPGL product
outstanding durability, ensure high quality under: JIS G 3322 (Japan),
ASTM/A755 A755M (U.S), AS 2728 (Australia), EN 10169 (Europe),
MS 2383 (Malaysia) and IS 15965 (India) standards and the warranty
is from 10 to 20 years.
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WOOD PATTERN STEEL SHEET

The outstanding feature of wood pattern steel sheet is their surfaces which
are coated with the paint of wood pattern. Therefore, they are highly
aesthetic, and can be applied to make outdoor products and furniture
which bring the subtlety and luxury to the house. Being different from
traditional steel sheet, the applications of wood pattern steel sheet are
extremely diverse. The products are used flexibly for construction works
and houses such as ceilings, walls, wardrobes, shelves, furniture, etc.
These are the products which have many advantages such as high
aestheticism, good heat resistance, high durability, no mold, easy
cleaning, high temperature resistance, efc. The product can be used
without drawbacks of earlier materials such as dinginess, mold, rapid
degradation, etc.

PRE-PAINTED GL/GI WITH PVDF

Pre-painted GL/GI uses paint of which main factor is high grade
Fluoropolymer plastic on GL/Gl steel sheet surfaces, and combination of
the carbon-fluoro associated with carbon-hydrogen atoms of PVDF to
increase significant prevention of erosion, acid and to strenghthen paint
durability than normal polyester paint. Moreover, the product can prevent
UV ray in severe weather conditions and ensure high quality in
accordance with standards of JIS G3322, JIS G3312 (Japan), ASTM
A755/A755M (U.S), AS 2728 (Australia), EN 10169 (Europe), MS
2383 Malaysia, IS 14246 and 1S 15965 (India).

HOA SEN GOLD

HOA SEN GOLD color coating aluminum-zinc alloy steel sheet is a
high-class and high-quality product line of Hoa Sen Group. HOA SEN
GOLD products are coated with aluminum-zinc alloy coating and
high-class paint, therefore, they have outstanding durability, chemical
resistance, superior weather resistance, suitable for applications
requiring high durability, long service life, especially suitable for exterior
applications such as roofs, walls and panels. Especially, HOA SEN
GOLD products are guaranteed against leaking up to 30 years and
warranty against fading within 10 years from the date of manufacture.

METALLIC STEEL SHEET

An outstanding feature of mefallic steel sheet is that its mefallic surface
creates a very high aestheticism and is widely favored by the customers.
Metallic steel sheet is applied to interior decoration which brings the
elegance and sophistication fo the houses.

WRINKLE STEEL SHEET

Wrinkle steel sheet is GL/GI steel sheet painted with special wrinkle
pattern on its surfaces. The outstanding features of wrinkle steel sheet is
high aestheticism, high durability, good heat resistance, good moisture
resistance, easy installation, etc. The products are used flexibly for
construction works and houses such as ceilings, walls, roofs, etc.

HOT DIP GALVANIZED STEEL (HGI)

With the input material of high quality cold rolled coil of Hoa Sen Group
and the advanced NOF technology, Hoa Sen hot dip galvanized steel
meets diversified requirements in industrial and civil construction. Hoa Sen
hot dip galvanized steel always meets standards of JIS G3302, JIS G3321
(Japan), ASTM A653/A653M, ASTM A792/A792M (America), AS
1397 (Autralia), EN 10346 (Europe), MS 2384, MS 2385, MS 1196
(Malaysia), IS 277 v& IS 15961 (India).
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PRODUCT CATEGORY

HOA SEN STEEL PIPE

GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE

Being manufactured through the process of pickling, cold rolling,
annealing, galvanizing, slitting, formed rolling, Hoa Sen galvanized steel
pipe has clean and smooth surface, steady thickness, high plasticity and
good adhesion as well as high quality in accordance with international
standards: JIS G3344, JIS G3466 (Japan), ASTM A500/A500M (U.S),
AS 1163 (Australia/New Zealand) and MS 1862 (Malaysia).

HOT DIP GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE

Hoa Sen Hot-Dip Galvanized Steel Pipe is our new product which is
widely used in various fields such as: fire alarm system, gas transmis-
sion system, scaffolding, construction structure... This product is the top
choice of mass consumers. Being manufactured through following
process: pipe shaping, surface pickling and cleaning, surface
treatment, hot-dip galvanizing, Hoa Sen Hot-Dip Galvanized Steel
Pipe has high durability and high quality in accordance with various
international  standards: BS 1387, BS EN 10255, ASTM
A53/A53M-12, AS 1074 and MS 863 (Malaysia). Hoa Sen Hot-Dip
Galvanized Steel Pipe has a wide range of dimensions: thickness from
1.2mm to 8.2mm, coating mass from 320g/m? to 705g/m? (coating
thickness from 45pm to 100pm), size from @21.2mm to @219.1mm,
which facilitates construction and installation process.
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HOA SEN PLASTIC PIPE

UPVC PLASTIC PIPE
AND ACCESSORIES

Being manufactured by the modem production line with the advanced
Europe technology and the centralized blending system, the plastic
products are homogeneous and high-quality in accordance with
standards of ISO 1452-2, 1ISO 1452-3, TCVN 8491-2, TCVYN 8491-3,
AS/NZS 1477 (Australia), Hoa Sen Group successfully produced uPVC
with 630mm in diameter, 24.1mm in thickness and 10 bar in pressure.
Hoa Sen Group's plastic pipe is widely used in various fields such as
public and civil drainage system, electricity works, telecommunication
and sand pumping, etc.

ELASTIC CONDUIT
(COILS)

Being manufactured in accordance with BS EN 61386-22:2004+A11:2010
(Europe) standard with various sizes from @16-50 mm. The product has
advantages of fire resistance, electrical insulation, safety protection for
civil and industrial power system. With light weight and easy to
transport and installation, Hoa Sen elastic conduit is able to construct
easily, flexibly in narrow place and difficult condition.

RIGID CONDUIT
(PIPE CONDUIT)

Being manufactured in accordance with BS EN 61386-21:2004+A11:2010
(Europe) standard, fire resistance, electrical insulation, safety
protection for civil and industrial power system, easy bending and
installation. Hoa Sen pipe conduit has various sizes from &16-63mm
with pressure resistance capacity from 320N, 750N, 11250N which
is suitable to customer’s demand and using purpose.

HDPE PLASTIC PIPE

Using high quality imported plastic materials and being manufactured
with the advanced European technology (Germany), HDPE plastic
pipe product meets high demand of water supply and drainage. Hoa
Sen HDPE plastic pipe is produced in accordance with standard of
TCVN 7305-2 (ISO 4427-2) with the maximum size up to 630mm and
the pressure from 6 to 20 bar.

PPR PLASTIC PIPE -
2 LAYERS PPR PLASTIC PIPE

Using high quality imported plastic materials and being manufactured
with the advanced European technology (Germany) and being
controlled tightly in accordance with standard of DIN 8077, DIN
8078, Hoa Sen PPR plastic pipe tolerates heat of water up to 95°C and
is used in hot watering for civil and industrial constructions. The PPR
plastic pipe is made by 2 layers: inside layer can tolerate temperature
up to 95°C, outside layer which has sunlight protection can prevent the
product surface from UV ray, and increases longevity of the product
when installing and using outside.

The inside and surface of product is smooth, no moss, no dregs,
non-oxic fo ensure water sanitation and healthy safety. The PPR plastic
pipe also has high chemical durability, not affected by salts, acids and
alkaline salts, etc.

Light weight and easy to transport, construction and installation; high
sound insulation, no noise and no vibration when water flowing;
smooth surface and inside of product, color harmony, modern
accessory shape.
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CORE COMPETITIVE

ADVANTAGES
FOUNDATION FOR
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT |

-

Vertically integrated
value chain

é}

Owning 536 Branches
and Dls’rrlbuhon retail
stores

Professional corporate
governance and unique
corporate culture

Pioneering in advanced
technology investment

The leading, friendly and
community-oriented brand
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VERTICALLY INTEGRATED
VALUE CHAIN

HOA SEN GROUP IS THE
LEADING MANUFACTURER
OF STEEL SHEETS IN
SOUTHEAST ASIA

Hoa Sen Group's steel sheet production process begins from
main raw material — hot roll coils. Imported hot rolled coils which
are input through cold rolling line will create cold rolled coils.
Cold rolled coils are the input materials for galvanizing lines
which produce galvanized steel sheets.

Each stage of this production process is tightly controlled. As the
result, all Hoa Sen products have high quality, meet the diverse
demands of the market and meet international quality standards
such as ASTM standard of U.S, AS standard of Australia, JIS

standard of Japan, efc.

Through nationwide distribution-retail branches, high quality
products of Hoa Sen Group are delivered to the end-users.

With the vertically integrated value chain, Hoa Sen Group takes
the initiative to control the costs of each stage of the production
process tightly. This helps the Group minimize costs and achieve
economic effect of the scope. This is the foundation for Hoa Sen

Group to implement the manufacturing costleadership strategy.
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OWNING 536

BRANCHES AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT
DISTRIBUTION-RETAILSTORES AND GROWING MARKET SHARE

(305 THE NATIONWIDE DISTRIBUTION-RETAIL
BRANCHES ARE INDISPENSABLE FOUNDATION
OF IMPLEMENTING THE STRATEGY OF
“BUYING DIRECTLY FROM PRODUCERS
AND SELUING DIRECTLY TO END-USERS 31

With the centralized and unified management in
accordance with the general policies, the nationwide
distribution-retail branches have become an outstanding e g -
competitive advantage of the Group in directly approach- »
ing to the end-users, tightly controlling products’ quality
and prompitly delivering the products to the market. In the
period of the fluctuating economy, the strategic roles of the
distribution-retail branches are more promoted when the

~_ Group can flexibly apply sales policies to maintain the

Hoang Sa ',.
- cash flow. This is foundation that enables the Group to

quickly settle the manufacturing and business activities e @ Peefofco
when macroeconomic conditions become unfavorable € h 0 .
and keep on affirming the number one position in Vietnam- Fonamar ek S s Siilonka

ese coated steel sheet market.

As of December 31, 2019, the total number of Branches
and Retail stores of Hoa Sen Group across the country was
536 Branches and Retail stores - officially completing the
goal of expanding the system to 500 Branches and Retail
stores under the policy that has been approved by the
Board of Directors since 2017.

/New Zedland

-

Pho Quéc

Twong Sa =+ v 7
%

e 5 3 6 DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS TO COUNTRIES IN THE WORLD.

/ Besides maintaining domestic market, Hoa Sen
HOA SEN GROUP’S PRODUCTS ARE Group also continuously strengthens export
PRESENTED IN activities to traditional markets and expands its

BRANCHES

600

500

presence to potential markets in Middle East,
Southern Asia, Africa, Australia, Europe, and
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THE LEADING, FRIENDLY AND
COMMUNITY-ORIENTED BRAND

A0 VANG

L. OIC DESRIARC
2

TAP POAN HOA SEN

Since  the first  days of
establishment, Hoa Sen Group has
chosen the strategy of building
brand in accordance with its core
business philosophy: “Integrity —
Community — Development”. Over
the last 18 years, Hoa Sen Group
not only focuses on well
organizing business and
manufacturing  activities but also
pioneers in necessary social
activities through sponsoring and
diverse charity programs: Viet
Families’ Sweet Home, Hoa Sen
Steel Sheet — School together,
sponsoring major sports
tournaments such as: the Futsal cup
for underprivileged children, VTV
International Cycling Championship
- Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Cup, VTV
International Women's  Volleyball
Championship - Hoa Sen Steel
Sheet Cup; Sponsor steel sheets to
people in flooded areas; Sponsor
for profoundly humanistic TV
shows such as: Golden Ring,
Beyond yourself...By community
activities with profound humanity,
Hoa Sen Group has affirmed the
mission of a dynamic, creative

Vietnamese ~enterprise, actively
contributing  to  the  general
development of society.

In addition, Hoa Sen Group

always affirms the brand value by
good quality of products and
services. For Hoa Sen Group, the
products’ quality is the prestige

standard, right quality, and
warranty”, Hoa Sen Group has
delivered products to customers
with  “international  standard,
reasonable price, fast delivery and
good after sale service”. In order
to deliver products directly to
end-users, Hoa Sen Group has
established a nationwide retail
distribution network with over 536
Branches and Retail Stores across
the country. In particular, Hoa Sen
Group is the pioneer in the
construction materials industry in
Vietnam deploying online sales on
website  www.hoasengroup.vn to
bring the best benefits to customers
with the message "No need to go
far - buy Hoa Sen steel sheet, steel

pipe, plastic pipe at home".
Currently, Hoa Sen  Group
continues promoting the
community-oriented  Hoa  Sen

brand to reinforce position in
domestic market and expand to
other countries in region as Hoa
Sen products are presented over
80 countries and ferritories.

With  continuous  efforts  in
improving the quality of products
and services, Hoa Sen Group has
become a successful brand
associated  with  core  and
sustainable competitive advantages.
In the past fiscal year, Hoa Sen
Group has continuously received
many awards such as Second
Class Labor Medal awarded by

and Hoa Sen Galvanized Steel
Pipe; Top 50 best listed enterprises
in Vietnam ...

These prestigious awards are
significant evidences demonstrat-
ing brand building process
successfully, creating Hoa Sen
Group's position and prestige as
the leading brand in the market.
Hoa Sen  Group,  which
continuously is developing and
growing, has consistently affirmed
its brand commitment that always
creates the highest values for
consumers and society, orienting
to become the leading supplier
and distributor of building materials
in Southeast Asia.

the President; National brand for
all 3 product groups: Hoa Sen
Steel Sheet, Hoa Sen Plastic Pipe

and the survival of the brand. By
performing seriously four

i
' commitments: “Right price, right

N
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A0 VANG
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE I E D E S R I F

AND UNIQUE CORPORATE CULTURE ﬁl:'
|"\EL|

convonse curun 80NG I'Ii

o\

%

Hoa Sen Group established its governance system upon the foundation of corporate culture of 10 “T” letters: Integrity — Loyalty — Dedication — Talent ! _
— Friendliness. This is an important factor contributing to the rapid and sustainable development of Hoa Sen Group in over 18 years. s WG CLAET

INTEGRITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
GIAI BONG DA MINI
Being honest and transparent | | Sharing our achievements with the community is Hoa Continuously developing and CUP _ZLOTUS CHAMPIONS LEAGUE E 2019”
in all activities Sen Group's humanistic beauty bringing the Hoa Sen brand ¢

name to new heights.

f i -..‘ .-_ v —
ﬂ TON HOA SEN TANG 3.000 MET TON
CHO HGUOI DAN VNG BAD
HUYER TUY PHUDC, TINH BINH DINH
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PIONEERING IN ADVANCED
TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENT

In order to supply high quality products

., stably to customers, meet all the requirements

! and customers’ safisfaction as well as

s implement  social  responsibilities  to

environment, health and safety, the Group

has established, applied and maintained

. integrated management system including

® ISO 9001:2015 standards of quality

management system, SO 14001:2015

standards of environmental management

L 8 system and OHSAS 18001:2007 standards

mm of occupational health and  safety
management system.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BUSINESS RESULTS IN THE
FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

GENERAL SITUATION

® Socio-economic situation in 2019

The Board of Directors has identified that
despite the positive socio-economic situation
in 2019, some uncertainties still exist,
affecting the movement of the market in
general and business production activities of
enterprises in particular. As follows:

- Advantage:

elnternational  integration  has  been
developed comprehensively and deeply in
many fields, bringing many results: the
Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement
for TransPacific Partership (CTTPP) was
signed and officially came into effect;
EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement (EVFTA)
reached agreement and was officially
signed; The Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership (RCEP) has made
progress in the negotiation process.

*The economic growth rate is stable and
basically fulfilling growth targets and tasks
set by the National Assembly for 2019.

e Administrative reform has been strongly
implemented in accordance with the schedule.
Investment and business environment s
improved.

- Disadvantages:

eTrade conflicts and trade retaliation
measures between economies are increasing
in level and nature. Trade barriers (tariffs,
nonariffs) are set up in many countries,
upsetting the global trade order.

*The global money market is unstable due to
the trade war. Strong fluctuations of
exchange rates increase input costs of many
manufacturing enterprises, especially those
that have to import most of their raw materials.
e Although it is expected to open some
immediate  opportunities  for  domestic
businesses, the trade war poses many risks
to the economy. In particular, there is a risk of
initiating  an  anti - circumvention
investigation on some products.

eThe real estate and construction market is
cooling down, leads to a decrease in the
demand for construction materials, affecting
businesses in the field of consfruction materials.
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* Market situation

Following the fluctuations from 2018, the steel industry market in 2019 entered a
period of strong instability and screening:

- The price of steel raw materials fluctuates unpredictably, in a complex direction,
affecting input costs and causing many disadvantages to the purchase of raw
materials of steel enterprises.

- Steel exports are seriously affected by the escalation of the trade war. The global
supply order is turned upside down. Besides, with the rise of domestic
manufacturing protectionism, a series of tariff and non+ariff barriers erected in
some markets, which have been preventing and reducing the export of steel.

- Competition in domestic market is increasingly fierce. Steel businesses face many
problems, including: Outstanding production capacity in excess of consumption
demand; The competition for market share became fierce to make up for the
shortage of export volume; Low-price and low-quality steel products are imported
massively into Vietnam, despite efforts to overcome and prevent them from the
Authorities.

CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS OF THE
FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

The fluctuations of the market in 2019 have been in
the forecast of the Board of Directors. Therefore, from
the middle of 2018, the Board of Directors has
actively directed the Board of Management and all
Subsidiaries to  promptly implement effective
management  solutions to  quickly stabilize the
business situation in the face of market difficulties.
However, the increase in the level and nature of the
instability factors has also affected the Group's
consolidated business results.

The Board of Directors affirmed: By the end of the
fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group's business
situation was completely stable, the cash flow was
guaranteed, and the net profit from production and
business was recorded.

REPORTING BUSINESS INDICATORS:

Consumption of finished products in the fiscal year
20182019 reached 1,393,973 tons, fulfilling 73%
of the plan, down 20% over the same period. The
main reason comes from the unfavorable factors of
the market. Details are explained in the following
sections.

The target of net revenue in the fiscal year 2018 -
2019 reached VND 28,035 billion, fulfilling 89% of
the plan, down 18.5% over the same period. The
main reason comes from the decline in consumption.
The structure of sales volume of finished products by
sales channel continues to focus on domestic
consumption channel. Specifically, the domestic
consumption channel reached 914,068 tons,
accounting for 66% of the total output of the Group
and was the main, major channel. Export channel
reached 479,905 tons, accounting for 34% of the
total output of the Group.

For the aftertax profit indicator, from the end of 2018
to the beginning of 2019, the steel sheet and steel
market appears to have strong and unpredictable
fluctuations, seriously affecting profits and the stable
operation of all enterprises in the same industry. For
that reason, in the first quarter of the fiscal year 2018
- 2019, the Group's profitability indicators did not
meet the set targets. This is one of the reasons for the
Group not fulfilling the after-tax profit target approved
by the General Meeting of Shareholders (fulfilling
72% of the plan) and decreasing slightly over the
same period (down 11.7%).

However, with the initiative, timely and drastically in
the restructuring, governance - management solutions
of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management
and all Departments, the Group has recorded net profit
from business operations in the second, third and fourth
quarters of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019. In particular,
the fourth quarter fell into the low stage of the industry
but the Group still recorded net profit from business
activities. This is a very positive signal for the Group.
At the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the business
situation of Hoa Sen Group has improved, net profits
from business activities have been recorded regularly,
cash flow is guaranteed, debt continues to be pulled
down and projects have been put into operation to
record depreciation in accordance with the schedule
and plan set by the Board of Directors.

EXPLANATIONS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS
RESULTS OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group's
consumption and net revenue fargets did not reach
the set plan and decreased over the same period. This
comes from a number of reasons:

e Objective causes - Market instability affecting
business results:
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- Export markets in 2018 - 2019 face many difficulties, of which the main cause is the US-China trade war. Many major export
markets in Southeast Asia, Europe and the Americas have increased trade remedies and manufacturing protection (such as:
tariff and non-ariff barriers, import quotas ...). This has significantly reduced demand in export markets. At the same time, the
domestic production capacity in some countries has been strengthened, increasing the competitive pressure on products
exporting to these markets.

- The domestic market in 2019 enters a period of fierce competition. Some steel sheet enterprises have shifted their focus to
the domestic market, applying competitive price policies to gain market share. Galvanized steel products of enterprises
outside the industry also began to appear in the market, increasing competition pressure. Besides, although the Authorities
have taken tough measures, the domestic steel industry is still threatened by the situation of cheap and low-quality steel
entering the market through many unclear and not transparent methods.

e The subjective reason - the Group's business strategy is adjusted to focus on ensuring profit:

- In the face of uncertain movements of the market, the Board of Directors has determined the goal in the fiscal year 2018 -
2019 to stabilize the business and production situation, ensure profit, maintain cash flow and depreciation.

- Therefore, the policy of the Board of Directors is: No priority to pursue discounted policy as competitors in the same industry
to avoid upsetting the market. The selling price of Hoa Sen products must accurately reflect the Group's product quality and
brand value.

- In addition, the Board of Directors has directed the Board of Management to evaluate and re-plan consumption channels
and product categories, thereby focusing on product segments, customers and consumption areas that bring good and stable
profits margins to improve the Group's profits.

- For this reason, in the fiscal year 2018-2019, although the consumption and net revenue indicators decreased compared
to the same period, Gross profit / Net revenue ratio was maintained at over 11%. This is high compared to the industry
average.
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PROGRESS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
INVESTMENT PROJECTS

INDUSTRIAL PROJECTS

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group has completed and put into operation
the entire Plant Projects, officially make self — contained supply-production chain
from North to South, contributing to perfecting the core competitive advantages,
increasing competitiveness, reducing shipping costs. Projects completed during

the fiscal year 2018-2019 include:

HOA SEN NHON HOI - BINH DINH PLANT PROJECT (PHASE Il)

- Location: Nhon Hoi Industrial Zone, Hoi Son Hamlet, Nhon Hoi Commune, Quy Nhon City, Binh Dinh Province

- Area: 21.8 hectares

- Investor: Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi — Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liabilities Company (a wholly 100% owned Subsidiary of
Hoa Sen Group)

NO PRODUCTION LINES, MAIN EQUIPMENT DESIGN COMPLETION
CAPACITY TIME

1 Color coating line 2 120,000 tons / year July 2018

2  Galvanizing / Aluminium - Zinc Alloy with NOF technology line 250,000 tons / year March 2019
(NOF Line 2)
Pickling line 800,000 tons / year March 2019
Cold Rolling Line 350,000 fons / year March 2019
Acid Regeneration Line 5,000 liters / hour April 2019

HOA SEN PHU MY HOT - DIP GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE PLANT PROJECT

- Location: Road 1A, Phu My I Industrial Park, Phu My Ward, Phu My Town, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province

- Objective and scale of the project: Producing hot-dip galvanized steel pipe, total design capacity of 85,000 tons / year

- Investor: Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liabilities Company (a wholly 100% owned Subsidiary of Hoa Sen Group)

STT PRODUCTION LINES, MAIN EQUIPMENT DESIGN COMPLETION
CAPACITY TIME
1 01 Hotdip galvanized steel pipe line 85,000 tons / year April 2018
2 06 Steel pipe line 150,000 tons / year December 2017
3 01 Slitting line 180,000 tons / year December 2017
4 Project infrastructure (internal roads, office buildings, November 2018

workshops, machine foundations)

TECHNICAL INNOVATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS FOR PRODUCTION PLANTS
IMPLEMENTATION PURPOSE:

eImproving product quality, reducing raw material consumption, meeting increasingly demanding quality requirements in
fastidious export markets and enhancing competitiveness in the domestic market.

®Enhancing the automation of production line system, strengthening production management capacity.

*Improving, strengthening quality, safety and environmental sanitation for the production lines.

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS AND RESULTS:

NO CATEGORY OF LOCATION OF DEPLOYMENT COMPLETION RESULT
DEPLOYMENT DEPLOYMENT TIME TIME
1 Upgrading and improving Hoa Sen May 2018 Expected in - Improve product quality
the system of wind - Nghe An 2020 - Reduce coating materials consumption
blades, cooling towers Plant rate.

and  fans ot the
Galvanized/ Aluminum -
zinc alloy lines with
NOF technology

- Increase the rate of first-class and genuine
products.

- Through technical improvements in the
production  lines, the Group can
confidently manufacture all orders of high
quality standards in fastidious markets.
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INVESTMENT PROJECTS IN REAL ESTATE

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors assessed the evolution of the real estate market is relatively unstable,
in addition, the Group needs to focus on stabilizing and improving core business activities in the field of manufacturing and
industry. Therefore, the Board of Directors has directed all Departments to balance resources appropriately for real estate
projects, while ensuring focus on core business areas, while ensuring appropriate implementation progress.

PROJECT OF HOA SEN YEN BAI SHOPPING MALL, HOTELS, RESTAURANTS AND EVENT ORGANIZATION

PROJECT INFORMATION
- Investor: Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock Company (a Subsidiary 95% owned by Hoa Sen Group).
- Location: Group 45 & 48, Dong Tam Ward, Yen Bai City, Yen Bai Province.
- Area: 9,675.5 m2, including:
¢ Block of Shopping Mall , Hotel, Restaurant and Event Organization: 5,585.2 m?;
e Commercial townhouses: 4,090.3m?

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS

- For Shopping Mall: The Investor has completed the basic construction of the raw part. Currently completing the interior,
construction of electromechanical, fire protection.

- For Commercial townhouses: The Investor continues to design and subdivision plans for commercial townhouse, and
complete legal procedures to implement the project in appropriate time.

PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED IN NINH THUAN PROVINCE

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the promotion and implementation of projects in Ninh Thuan Province are basically carried
out according to the set schedule. As follows:

PROJECT OF HOA SEN DU LONG INDUSTRIAL PARK INVESTMENT INFRASTRUCTURE

PROJECT INFORMATION
- Location: Loi Hai and Bac Phong communes, Thuan Bac district, Ninh Thuan province
- Area: 407.3 hectares
- Investor: Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company (a Subsidiary 95% owned by Hoa
Sen Group)
- legal procedures:

e Completed legal procedures of investment, land, construction, including: Approving investment policy; Land lease
agreement; Certificates of land use rights; License to build some basic items.

e Currently implementing procedures: Electrical - water connection; Planning functional areas and connecting the project to
National Highway TA.
- Construction progress:

¢ The project has completed welcome gates, fences and roads leading to the industrial park.

e Currently, the Investor is constructing a number of internal roads, leveling for 20 hectares.
- Search and call for secondary investors to enter the Industrial ParkL: In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Investor has
contacted with a number of investors in the field of renewable energy, who are interested in the Industrial Park.

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS
- In the fiscal year 2019 - 2020, the Investor plans to deploy the following tasks:

® Completing legal procedures to supply electricity and water for the Project.

* Quickly complete the construction of some basic items, leveling to call for secondary investors.

¢ Organizing a number of Conferences on investment promotion in industrial parks to advertise, contact and promote
investment in industrial parks.

PROJECT OF HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN INTERNATIONAL GENERAL PORT
PROJECT INFORMATION

- Location: Ca Na Commune, Thuan Nam District, Ninh Thuan Province
- Investor: Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan International General Port One Member Limited Liabilities Company (a Subsidiary
wholly 100% owned of Hoa Sen Group)
- Investment legal procedures:

* The project has currently been approved by the People's Committee of Ninh Thuan Province for investment in Phase 1,
including: 03 ports (02 ports of 70,000 - 100,000 DWT and 01 ports of 20,000 DWT)

® The Investor has also completed the obligation to pay a deposit to ensure the project implementation
- Construction legal procedures:

¢ |n the fiscal year 2018 -2019, the Investor focuses on coordinating with the consulting unit to complete the construction legal
procedures, including: Planning 1/500; Basic design; Designing construction techniques and applying for construction permits
for items of the project.
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- Land legal procedures:

¢ The Investor continues to work with Ninh Thuan's Agencies and Authorities to come to the agreements with the value of
support and site clearance compensation for households, individuals and organizations in the Project area.

e Investors have also temporarily paid part of the cost of compensation and support for site clearance.

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS
- Implementation plan in the fiscal year 2019-2020 is as follows:

¢ Continue to complete the legal procedures for construction, land law for the Project.

et is expected that in the second quarter of the fiscal year 2019 - 2020, the Investor will start construction of the first port
in the Project.

PROJECT OF HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN INDUSTRIAL ZONE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT
PROJECT INFORMATION

- Location: Ca Na Commune, Thuan Nam District, Ninh Thuan Province.
- Investor: Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company (a Subsidiary 95% owned by Hoa
Sen Group)
- In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Investor focuses on completing the investment legal procedures for the Project, the focus is on:
® Adjust, supplement and complete the project's investment proposal;
* Coordinate to complete the environmental impact assessment ("EIA") and organize public consultation with the Project.

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS
-The Investor aims to complete the investment legal procedures, approve the investment policy for the project in the fiscal year

2019 -2020.
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS PLAN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 -2020

- The steel industry market in 2020 is expected to continue to have unpredictable fluctuations:

® The US - China trade conflict may continue to escalate and a final agreement has not been reached. Therefore, the world
trade order will continue to be turned upside down, raw material prices and currency markets will fluctuate sharply and
unpredictably.

* Export activities will be more difficult due to trade remedies, reducing demand and increasing competitive pressure from
domestic supply in export markets.

® The domestic market will continue to compete fiercely and drastically. Steel businesses will face many difficulties and must
have appropriate policies and changes to stabilize the business and production situation.
- Based on the forecasts in 2020, the Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the consolidated
business plan for fiscal year 2019 - 2020 as follows:

IN COMPARISON WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF FY 2018 - 2019

ABSOLUTE NUMBERS RELATIVE NUMBERS

ITEM UNIT PERFORMANCE OF PLAN IN THE FY
THE FY 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020

Total sales volume Ton 1,494,560 1,500,000 5,440 4%
- Finished products Ton 1,393,973 1,400,000 6,027 4%
- By-products Ton 100,587 100,000 (587) (6%)
Net sales billion VND 28,035 28,000 (35) (1%)
Gross profit billion VND 3,199 3,400 211 107%
Consolidated

aftertax profit billion VND 361 400 39 111%

Facing with forecasts about the instability of the market situation in 2020, the Board of Directors prioritizes ensuring prudence
in proposing business plans for the fiscal year 2019 - 2020, but still ensuring a stable and sustainable growth. Specifically,
the Board of Directors aims to increase Gross profit / Net revenue ratio to over 12%, equivalent to a gross profit of VND 211
billion, an increase of 7%.

ORIENTATIONS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE YEAR PLAN 2019 - 2020

In the face of the above developments, the Board of Directors proposed the following action plan to complete targets, production
and business plans for the fiscal year 2019 - 2020:

REGARDING ADMINISTRATION AND
RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

- Continue to perfect, streamline and organize the Group's
operations from the Parent Company to its Subsidiaries,
Plants, Provincial Branches and Stores on the basis of
promoting and improving the operating capacity,
administration throughout the system.

- Monitor and improve the operating mechanism and
activities of the Distribution Network under the new model,
in parallel with the arrangement and reallocation of

Branches / Distribution Stores in each Province / City
according to the policy approved by the Board of Directors
in order to enhance the business efficiency of the Group's
Branches / Distribution Stores, to enhance the management
and administration capacity of the Group's Distribution
Network.

- Strengthen governance and control on the basis of
establishing and applying reasonable and flexible norms,
targets, policies, and remuneration mechanisms.
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- Consolidating and promoting the efficiency of ERP system,
in the spirit of ensuring optimization, streamlining and
transparency in business and production activities.

- Continuing to implement the restructuring plan of the
whole Group to suit the new situation, which focuses on the
solutions:  Streamlining and organize the structure
appropriately; Improve the process system, operational
regulations; Optimize resources; Reasonably reduce
management expenses ...

- Implement quotas, norms of revenue, output, and expenses
for production and business units and departments of the
whole Group, towards a reasonable autonomy in order to
promote the professional competence of each Department.
-Ensure the restructuring must create motivation to
consolidate and enhance the efficiency of production and
business activities, achieving the goal of reducing costs and
increasing the competitiveness of the Group.

FOR PRODUCTION AND SUPPLY ACTIVITIES

Set goals to optimize production capacity; improve product
quality; rational, effective and professional arrangement for
supply activities through the following solutions:

- To consolidate the efficiency of production management,
to ensure the completion of product quality and increase the
proportion of first — class and genuine products; Ensuring
labor safety, fire and explosion prevention; Solutions for
effectively coping with natural disasters and environment
must be completed.

- Effectively exploit and operate the completed Plant
Projects, quickly account the depreciation of the Projects
according fo the set schedule.

- Research, improve and innovate technologies to perfect
technology and operating procedures for production lines
and machinery.

- Strengthening the Group's competitive advantage in
supply activities through taking advantage of and
optimizing the geographical position and distribution

conditions of the Group's production and business units in
the whole country.

- Ensuring the promptness, timeliness and cost savings in the
supply of raw materials, goods and finished products to
serve production and business activities.

- Ensuring stable production activities, strictly complying
with regulations on labor safety, fire prevention and
environmental sanitation.

- Tightening the norms and reducing the amount of raw
materials in inventory at the production units, contributing
to reducing outstanding loans and expenses incurred
related to inventories.

-Increasing and reducing the consumption of raw
materials, fuel, energy, tools, spare parts but still ensuring
the quality of finished products, contributing to lowering
product costs and reducing production costs.

- Stable product quality policy and commitment to product warranty ..

FOR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Set goals to improve profits, stabilize business situation;
exist and develop in all ways before the screening of the
market, through the following solutions:

- Planning and rearranging business strategy towards
focusing on product lines that have the potential to create
good and stable profit margins such as: Steel sheet,
Galvanized steel, Plastic ...

- Research, create and implement solutions to increase
output, increase competitiveness for new products such as
Hot - dip Galvanized Steel Pipes ...

- Closely monitoring, following and quickly grasping
market movements, especially in the current difficult period,
to provide effective and timely response solutions.

- Reinforce and enhance strengths in the domestic market
through the expansion and operation of Distribution Syetem
effectively, increase domestic consumption combined with

the enhancement of supply capacity and service quality,
from that confirming the Group’s leading position in the
market.

- Implement the strategy of diversifying export markets, in
parallel with reducing export expenses, ensuring efficiency
and profitability in export activities, standing firm against
difficulties and instability of the market.

- Tightening norms and reducing inventory in business units,
contributing to reducing outstanding loans and expenses
incurred related to inventories.

- Implement solutions to reduce costs related to business
operations, to ensure profit and business performance of
the Group.

- Establishing effective stable business policies associated
with governance, risk control, monitoring and cost
optimization in all Subsidiaries of the Group.

FOR HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
- Focusing on strengthening and improving the quality,
profession, qualifications, skills, and responsibilities of the human
resources, ensuring that the personnel structure is streamlined,
efficient, professional and suitable for Hoa Sen culture.

- Ensuring mental stability and working motivation of
workers and employees, especially in the current situation
of market instability.

FOR PROJECT INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

- Continve to implement investment promotion, complefe legal
procedures, organize consfruction for projects under implementation
such as Hoa Sen Du Llong Industrial Park Project, Ca Na Industrial
Park Project , Ca Na General Port project ... ensures early
putting works info operatfion, contributes to diversifying

the Group's products and services, paving the way for further
development steps.

- Continue to thoroughly research, consider and decide the
undertakings and implementation plans for a number of projects
in the field of real estate and relaxation, ensuring that they are
suitable with market developments and needs.

FOR COMMUNICATION - MARKETING ACTIVITIES

- Implement  marketing strategy, brand promofion in a
reasonable, diversified and creative manner, associated with
community events, sponsorship and charity activifies to
strengthen and promote strong and friendly Hoa Sen brand
image.
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REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

k& FOLLOWING THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S GUIDANCE ON PROACTIVELY COPING
WITH MARKET DISADVANTAGES, IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019, THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT CLOSELY MONITORED MARKET DEVELOPMENTS, DRASTICALLY AND
PROMPTLY IMPLEMENTED MANY FLEXIBLE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, IN ORDER
TO STABILIZE PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES, ENSURE THE GROWTH OF
THE GROUP'S OUTPUT, REVENUE AND MARKET SHARE. gy

BUSINESS RESULTS IN THE FISCAL
YEAR 2018 - 2019
BUSINESS RESULTS IN FISCAL YEAR 218 - 2019 COMPARED TO THE PLAN

By the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group's sales volume of finished products reached 1,393,973 tons, fulfilling 75% of the plan.
Net revenue reached 28,035 billion VND, fulfilling 89% of the plan. Profit after - tax reached VND 361 billion, fulfilling 72% of the plan.

TARGET UNIT PLAN OF THE FISCAL PERFORMANCE OF COMPARING
YEAR 2018 - 2019 THE FISCAL THE PERFORMANCE
YEAR 2018 - 2019 WITH THE PLAN

(A) (B) (€ (D) (E=(D/C)*100)
Total sales volume Ton 2,006,000 1,494,560 75%
- Finished products Ton 1,900,000 1,393,973 73%
- By-products Ton 106,000 100,587 95%
Net sales Billion 31,500 28,035 89%
Consolidated after-tax profit Billion 500 361 72%

COMPARE BUSINESS RESULTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019 WITH THE PLAN

BUSINESS RESULTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2017 - 2018
In the fiscal year 2017 - 2018, the indicator of Finished products consumption and Net revenue showed an increase compared fo the fiscal
year 2016 - 2017. Particularly, the aftertax profit indicator had a sharp decrease due to adverse effects from market.

INDICATOR UNIT FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR COMPARING THE PERFORMANCE OF
2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019
WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 - 2018

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E=(D/C)*100)
Total sales volume Ton 1,873,735 1,494,560 (20%)
- Finished products Ton 1,749,585 1,393,973 (20%)
- By-products Ton 124,150 100,587 (19%)
Net sales Billion 34,441 28,035 (18.5%)
Consolidated after-tax profit Billion 409 361 (11.7%)

COMPARE BUSINESS RESULT OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019 WITH THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018
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MARKET SHARE OF HOA SEN GROUP IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

SHEET STEEL MARKETSHARE

According fo statistics of the Vietnam Steel Association, in the first 10 months of 2019, Hoa Sen Group maintained its leading
position in the Galvanized steel sheet market, with a market share of 30.1%. According to statistics of the Vietnam Steel
Association.

2018 10 MONTHS OF 2019
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%) HOA SEN GROUP @ BLUESCOPE

PHUONG NAM OTHERS
@ SUNSTEEL

CHART OF STEEL SHEET MARKET SHARE IN 2018 AND THE FIRST 10 MONTHS OF 2019

Source: Vietnam Steel Association

Note: This statistic only includes sales volume of members of Vietnam Steel Association, excluding the sales of Perstima Vietnam
Co., ltd. because the production of tin-coated steel sheet does not serve the construction industry.

STEEL PIPES MARKETSHARE
According to Vietnam Steel Association, Hoa Sen Group's steel pipe market share in the first 10 months of 2019 reached
15.5%, ranking 02 in the market.

2018 10 MONTHS OF 2019

47% 46.5%

%) HOA SEN GROUP @ SEAH VN
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CHART OF STEEL PIPES MARKET SHARE IN 2018 AND THE FIRST 10 MONTHS OF 2019

Source: Vietnam Steel Associatio

Note: This statistic only includes sales volume of members of Vietnam Steel Association.
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STRUCTURE OF CONSUMPTION VOLUME IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019

STRUCTURE OF SALES VOLUME BY SALES CHANNEL

The structure of sales volume of finished products by sales channel continues to focus on domestic consumption channel.
Specifically, the domestic consumption channel reached 914,068 tons, accounting for 66% of the total output of the Group
and was the main channel. Export channel reached 479,905 tons, accounting for 34% of the total output of the Group.

FY 2017 -2018

DOMESTIC
63%

STRUCTURE OF SALES VOLUME BY PRODUCT CATEGORY

The products of coated steel sheet and hot dip galvanized steel including galvanized steel sheet (Gl), aluminum-zinc alloy
coated steel sheet (GL), pre-painted galvanized steel sheet (pre-painted Gl), pre-painted aluminum-zinc alloy coated steel
sheet (pre-painted GL), etc. continued to be the main products which contributing 70% of the total sales volume. The steel pipe
including galvanized steel pipe, steel pipe, galvanized purlin, purlin, hotdip galvanized steel pipe contributed 26% of the
output. Plastic products saw a growth in the consumption structure of the Group, accounting for 3%, including plastic pipes

and plastic accessories.

> STEEL SHEET

STEEL PIPE
@ PLASTIC PIPE

FY 2017 -2018

AND COATED STEEL

FY 2018 - 2019

DOMESTIC

66%

FY 2018 - 2019

THE EXPENSE TO SALES RATIO AS PER THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- T
1 Sales volume Ton 1,873,735 1,494,560
1.1 - Finished products Ton 1,749,585 1,393,973
1.2 - By-products Ton 124,150 100,587
2 Net sales Billion VND 34,441 28,035
3 Gross profit/Net sales % 11.5 11.4
4 - Financial expenses/Net sales % 2.8 2.9
- Interest expenses/Net sales % 2.4 2.7

Sales expenses/Net sales % 53 6.2

General and Administration Expenses/Net sales % 2.6 1.7
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SOME BASIC FINANCIAL INDICATORS ACCORDING TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- o T e
SOLVENCY RATIO

1 Current ratio Lan 0,85 0,84
Quick ratio 0,3 0,3
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIO

2 Debt/Total assets ratio % 76 68
Debt/Owners’ Equity ratio % 313 215
Total assets/ Owners’ Equity ratio % 413 315
PERATION CAPABILITY RATIO

3 Inventory turnover Time 3,9 4,5
Net sales/Total assets Time 1,6 1,6
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Net profit after tax/ Net sales ratio % 1.2 1.3

B Net profit after tax/ Owners’ Equity ratio % 7.9 6.6
Net profit after tax/ Total assefs ratio % 1.9 2.1
Operating profit/ Net sales ratio % 14 0.9
Earnings per share VND/share 928 829

MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Management has drastically implemented many flexible and reasonable operat-
ing solutions, strengthened the core competitive advantages to promptly stabilize production and business activities in order
to respond to market uncertainties, in every effort to complete the guidelines and orientations of the General Assembly of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors. Management solutions include the following key tasks:

RESTRUCTURING THE OPERATIONAL
SYSTEM, ENHANCING MANAGEMENT
EFFICIENC

- Coordinating  with the Board of
Restructuring and Advisory Units under the
Board of Directors to streamline the
organizational structure of the Group in the
spirit of arrangement and completion of the
operational system; merging units and
departments which have similar functions;
streamlining intermediate level groups,
indirect units, confributing to reducing
management costs of the Group.

- Streamlining the process system and
operational regulations towards reducing
similar procedures; ensuring the suitability
in building and promulgating policies and
regulations; changing the management
mechanism in the direction of applying
norms and assigning norms to consolidate
and promote efficiency in management
and supervising activities.

- Implementing measures to adjust and
reduce groups of costs to serve the Group's
operations such as working expenses,
administrative costs, personnel costs ... to
suit the actual situation to ensure business
performance of the Group.

- Develop, complete and put into operation
the model of Provincial Branch for all the
Distribution  Network of the Group
advocated by the General Meetfing of
Shareholders and the plan and plan

approved by the Board.

- At the same time, the Board of
Management also collaborated with the
Board of Restructuring fo study and
propose the Board of Directors to consider
and approve the plan to restructure and
rearrange Hoa Sen Group’s Distribution
System nationwide to suit the market
situation and promote competitiveness in
the domestic market.

STRENGTHENING ~ COMPETITIVENESS
IN THE DOMESTIC MARKET
- In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the
Group continued to expand its refail
system nationwide, in parallel with the
implementation of restructuring the entire
Distribution System following the model of
Provincial Branch, contributing to improve
the efficiency of management and
business at Branches / Stores, ensuring
market share and strengthening the
leading position in the domestic market.
In addition, in order to enhance
competitiveness,  the  Board  of
Management has also proposed the
Board of Directors o approve the policy
of reorganizing and reallocating Hoa Sen
Group's Retail - Distribution system by
receiving a number of Branches/ Store
from the official distribution system of the
Group.
- As of December 31, 2019, the whole

Group had a total of 536 direct
distribution  locations across  the
country, an increase of 45 locations
compared to 2018. In which,
including:

+ 55 Provincial Branches and 10
General warehouses, producing steel
sheet branches are under Hoa Sen
Group; and

+ 471 Stores under Provincial
Branches, established as Business
Locations in accordance with the law.
- Sales policies at branches are
flexibly implemented in each region
and operating areas, and are quickly
built and applied, timely meeting
movements and changes in the
market.

- The management, administration
and organization of Retail branches/
Retail ~stores are  implemented
effectively and closely. Information
flow is always guaranteed, Branches
also know the orientation and
general business policies of the
Group.

- The retail system is widely distributed
and the effective and  strict
management mechanism has helped
the Group to stabilize the production
and business situation, respond fo the
disadvantages from the market.
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ENSURE STABLE GROWTH FOR EXPORT ACTIVITIES

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen Group exported 480 thousand tons of products, accounting for 34% of the total
consumption volume of the Group.

At the same time, the Group has always focused on expanding and diversifying export markets, especially for potential
markets in Europe and America ... Currently, Hoa Sen products are present in more than 80 countries and territories around
the world.

Hoa Sen's products always ensure the quality and meet international standards such as ASTM standards (American Society
for Testing and Materials), BS EN Standard of European, JIS (Japanese Industrial Standards) of Japan, AS standards of
Australia (Australian Standards), Indonesian SNI Standard (Indonesian National Standards), Malaysia's MS Standards
(Malaysian Standards).

COMPLETING PLANT PROJECTS

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group has completed and put into operation all Plant Projects, officially make a self —
contained supply-production chain from North to South, contributing to perfecting the core competitive advantages,
increasing competitiveness, reducing shipping costs. Completed projects in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 include:

HOA SEN NHON HOI - BINH DINH PLANT PROJECT (PHASE II)

- 01 Color coating line 2 with design capacity of 120,000 tons/year - 01 Pickling line with design capacity of 800,000 tons/year
- 01 Galvanized/ Aluminum zinc coating line using NOF - 01 Cold rolling line with design capacity of 350,000 tons /year
technology (NOF Line 2) with the design capacity of 250,000 - 01 Acid regeneration line with capacity of 5,000 liters/hour.

tons/year.

HOA SEN PHU MY HOT-DIP GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE PLANT PROJECT

The project is expected to be deployed at Street TAPhu My - 01 Hot dip galvanized steel pipe line with capacity of
| Industrial Park, Phu My town, Tan Thanh district, Ba Ria - 85,000 tons/year.

Vung Tau province. In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the - 06 Steel pipe rolling lines with capacity of 150,000 tons/year.
Group has completed and put into operation stably all - 01 Slitting line with capacity of 180,000 tons/year.
items, including.

RESEARCH, PROMOTION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECTS IN NEW FIELDS

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen Group continues to carry out, promote investment, research implementation plans
for some projects in potential fields to create a premise for new development of the Group, specifically as follows:

PROJECT "HOA SEN YEN BAI SHOPPING MALL, HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND EVENT"

The project is implemented in the center of Yen Bai City in  construction. Currently the Investor is completing the
Yen Bai Province, building and trading the complex of intferior, construction of electromechanical, fire protection.
commercial, service, hotel, restaurant, event, combined -For Commercial townhouses: The Investor continues to
with the opening of commercial fownhouses. design and subdivide the plan of the commercial
In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the project implementation  townhouse item, and at the same time complete legal
schedule is as follows: procedures to implement the project in suitable time.

-For Shopping Mall: the Investor has completed basic raw

PROJECTS IN NINH THUAN PROVINCE

Projects implemented in Ninh Thuan province include Du Long Industrial Park infrastructure investment project and component
projects of Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Cold Rolling Mill complex.

DU LONG INDUSTRIAL PARK INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PROJECT

As of the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the project implementation schedule is as follows:

- For legal procedures:

* Completed legal procedures for investment, land and construction

e Currently implementing procedures for electrical — water connection; Planning functional areas and connecting the project to
National Highway TA

- Construction progress:

*The project has completed welcome gates, fences and roads leading to the industrial park

e Currently, the Investor is constructing a number of internal roads, leveling for 20 hectares.

- Looking for secondary investors to enter the Industrial Zone

eIn the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Investor contacted a number of investors in the field of renewable energy with an interest
in the Industrial Zone.
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IMPROVING AND STRENGTHENING
PROFESSIONAL SKILLS OF HUMAN
RESOURCES

Implementing the guidelines of the Board of
Directors on strengthening professional
skills, qualifications and responsibilities of
the human resources, the Board of
Management closely directed the Interior
Division and coordinated with the affiliated
units under the Board of Directors such as
the Board of Restructuring, Human
Resources Department to perform the
following tasks:

- Arranging and allocating personnel in a
rational,  streamlined  manner,  with
appropriate  orientation and  suitable
policies, ensuring the optimization and
effective utilization of resources for the
overall goal of the Group:

- Applying the mechanism of strict
assignment, promoting  responsibilities,
expertise and qualifications  of each
individual and all units. At the same time,
effectively applying the KPI  work
performance assessment system to assess a
detailed and  comprehensive  work
performance of each individual in order to
adjust, arrange and select appropriate
personnel.

- Developing and perfecting appropriate
salary and welfare policies, fairness and
reasonable remuneration for the employees
who are assessed as  capable,
professional, well-connected and consistent
with Hoa Sen culture.

- Accompanying, sharing and ensuring
stable working spirit and motivation of
employees to overcome the current difficult
period.

BUILDING A STRONG BRAND

Effective communication and marketing activities in recent years continue fo
be implemented in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 to strengthen and promote
Hoa Sen brand in the market, specifically as follows:

- Implementing new TVCs advertising with confent and creative ideas,
broadcasting in peak hours on central and local television channel;

- Enhancing the application of modern information technology and digital
technologies, such as Digital marketing, viral marketing ... to enhance the
Group's activities, communication, brand and image management.

- Completing Hoa Sen Group's website to enhance the aesthetics, creativity
and userfriendliness to enhance the Group's brand value and image.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen Group was honored to achieve
awards, great achievements and prestige, contributing to prove the Group’s
excellence and professionalism in the operation process, specifically:

- On January 16, 2019: Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam voted by
Vietnam Assessment Report Joint Stock Company.

- On April 6, 2019, Top 50 Vietnam Strong Brands selected by Vietnam
Economic Times.

- On May 10, 2019, winning National Brand Award for 03 product lines:
Hoa Sen Steel Sheet, Hoa Sen Plastic Pipe, Hoa Sen Galvanized Steel Pipe.
- On November 30, 2019: Hoa Sen Group honored the Top 100
Sustainable Development Enterprises voted by the Vietham Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (VCCI).
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BUSINESS PLAN OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 - 2020

The production and business plan of the fiscal year 2019 - 2020 submitted to the General Assembly of Shareholders for
consideration and approval is as follows:

IN COMPARISON WITH
THE PERFORMANCE OF FY 2018 - 2019

ABSOLUTE NUMBERS ~ RELATIVE NUMBERS
Total sales volume 1,494,560 1,500,000 5,440 4%

I I - N
B 0 B B

UNIT PERFORMANCE OF PERFORMANCE OF
FY 2018 - 2019 FY 2019 - 2020

Consohdoted
aftertax profit

PERFORMANCE ORIENTATION

In order to perform objectives of the fiscal year 2019 - 2020, based on the Board of Directors’ guideline, the Board of
Management has oriented the key duties as follows:

FOR ADMINISTRATIVE

- EXECUTIVE ACTIVITIES

e Continuing to coordinate with the Board of
Restructuring and the Departments and Units
under the Board of Directors to organize the
review and arrangement of operational
system; streamlining fifle of positions in the
Group; adjusting to streamline professional
processes and regulations; restructuring the
Distribution System according to the policies
approved by the General Assembly of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors in
the spirit of ensuring efficient utilization of
resources, streamlining the system, reducing
operational costfs reasonably.

e Completing and effectively operating the
ERP system of the Group, especially focusing
on completing and putting the ERP system
info operafion which is applicable to the
Provincial Branch model after restructuring
the Distribution System in order fo enhance
governance and  supervising  capacity,
confributing to the improvement of production
and business situation.

FOR BUSINESS OPERATIONS

e Continuing to improve the competitiveness
in the domesfic market through the
development of the retail system in a
reasonable manner, in parallel with the rapid
implementation  of  restructuring  the
Distribution ~ System  according o the
guidelines proposed by the Board of
Directors and the General Assembly of
Shareholders.

e For export activities, the Group will
confinue fo seek, expand new potential
markefs and develop, diversify export
products, at the same fime take reasonable
measures to respond to frade remedies
measures from fastidious markets to improve
export profit margins, contributing to stabilize
the Group's business and production
situation

e Promoting sales, increasing consumption
volume for new products of the Group such
as plastic pipes, hotdip galvanized sfeel
pipes.

¢ Developing and  applying  sales,
promotion, discount, aftersales policies in a
reasonable, efficient and flexible manner,
and deploying new sales methods such as
online sales and installment sales to meet
consumer demands.
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e Closely monitoring and  drastically
applying solutions to reduce costs for
business activities, reasonably reducing
inventory of finished products fo improve
profit margins, reducing shortterm debt
balance, reducing financial costs, enhancing
efficiency in the Group's business
performance.

FOR PRODUCTION

AND SUPPLY ACTIVITIES

e Enhancing the optimization in arranging
and dllocating production  activities, in
parallel with establishing and ensuring strict
compliance  with norms in  production
activifies such as material  consumption;
energy consumption; use of tools and spare
parts..., in order to ensure the reduction of
costs in production activifies, contributing to
reducing product price.

¢ Developing the quality of human resources,
with a focus on the successive staff and
reserve managers; strengthening fraining,
improving and enhancing  professional
qualifications and skills for employees.

® Gradudlly improving the standards and
criteria in recruitment fo strengthen the initial
training to build quality staff

® Improving the work  performance
assessment through KPI system.

® Ensuring policies on salary and benefits for
employees of the Group.

Enhancing the application of fechnology
innovation, improving skills of engineers and
operating workers to increase the efficiency
and capacity of production lines and
improving product quality, increasing the
ratio of finished goods, ensuring stable and
safe production.

e Confinuing fo control costs, closely
monitoring fluctuations in raw material prices
on the market, calculating the demand and
time to buy appropriate materials to select a
reasonable purchase price and  meet
demand of production and business, at the
same fime ensuring the opfimal cost of raw
materials of the Group.

e Optimizing fime and transportation -
supplying costs such as: researching,
calculating methods and choosing optimal
transport route for each order; carrying out
compefifive bidding to select transport
companies to ensure service quality and
reasonable prices; developing and issuing

rules and instructions in transporting goods
by road and waterway to limit risks and
ensure product quality during transportation.

FOR INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

* Quickly completing the on-going industrial
project such as Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh
Dinh Plant Project, Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Steel
Pipe Investment Project ... fo soon bring the
projects info stable operation, in order to
increase  production  capacity, strengthen
competitive advantage in cost, improve the
efficiency of cash flow.

® Researching new investment plans to
expand the scale and scope of operation,
better meet market demand.

FOR HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

e Developing the quality of human resources,
with a focus on the successive staff and
reserve managers; strengthening fraining,
improving and enhancing  professional
qualifications and skills for employees.

¢ Gradually improving the standards and
criteria in recruitment to strengthen the initial
training to build quality staff

e Improving the work  performance
assessment through KP!I system.

e Ensuring policies on salary and benefits for
employees of the Group.

FOR COMMUNICATION

- MARKETING ACTIVITIES

* Appropriately  deploying the  brand
building through diversified and effective
markefing programs.

e Continuing fo carry out communication
events, charity activities, sponsoring humanity
and community - orienfated acfivefies to
implement social responsibility and contribute
to build a strong and friendly brand of Hoa
Sen Group.

e Building a communication campaign in
order to demonstrate the strong commitment
of Hoa Sen Group fo ensure consumers'
rights by providing products at the right price,
with the right standards and best quality.

¢ Completing the performance of consulting
activities  through the free  switchboard
18001515 to support consumers how to
distinguish authentic Steel sheet - fake Steel
sheet, and giving more information and
instructions for customers fo choose the right
products of Hoa Sen Group.
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BUSINESS ETHICS

m
LS
Based on core values and business philosophy, business ethics of
Hoa Sen Group adjusts internal and external relationships of the
Group, which focus on five basic relationships between the
Group and:

LAW:
complying with the law and
fulfilling of the Group’s
obligations with state agencies.

88
COMMUNITY:
fulfilling social responsibilities

and confributing to an

increasingly developed
community.

CUSTOMERS:
striving fo satisfy the customers
with high-quality products,
competitive prices and excellent
aftersales services.

EMPLOYEES:
creating a friendly, equal and
developing work environment for
employees to ensure the
employees’ benefits in
accordance with the law.

SHAREHOLDERS:
maximizing the shareholders’
benefits in accordance with
the law and ensuring fairness

of interests among the
shareholders.
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ACTIVITIES OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I. STRUCTURE AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors for the term 2018 - 2023 is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders at the 2017-2019 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically as follows:

- Number of members of the Board of Directors for the term of 2018 - 2023 is 06 members.

- Non-executive members and independent members of the Board of Directors meet the standards in Article 13 of Decree
71/2017 / ND-CP dated 06/06/2017, specifically: The Board has 03 non-executive members, in which 02 members meet the

standards of independent members.

- The title of members of the Board of Directors for the term of 2018-2023 are as follows:

STT FULL NAME TITLE
1 Mr. LE PHUOC VU Chairman of the Board of Directors
2 Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
3 Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI Executive member of the Board of Directors
4 Mr. LY VAN XUAN Non-executive member of the Board of Directors
5 Mr. NGUYEN VAN LUAN Independent Member of the Board of Directors
6 Mr. DINH VIET DUY Independent Member of the Board of Directors

2. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In order to carry out the functions and tasks prescribed in the Charters and Regulations on Management, the Board of Directors
has established 04 doffiliated Committees, appointed and assigned to the members of the Board of Directors to be the Chairmen
of the affiliated Committees in order to coordinate the activities of each Committee.

The establishment of Committees under the Board of Directors shall comply with the recommendations of the State Securities
Commission in the Code of Corporate Governance according to the best practices - applicable to Public Companies.

Details of the name, function and Head of Committees are as follows:
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STT SUB-COMMITTEE NAME

FUNCTION

CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE

1 Committee of Investment
and Strategic Development

2 Committee of Restructuring
and Human Resources

3 Committee Of Internal Audit

4 Committee of Finance and
Investor Relations

Researching, promoting, developing and
organizing to implement medium and
longterm strategies of the Group

Organizing  research,  complefing  and
implementing plans  for resfructuring  and
developing the Group's human resources,
including:  Strengthening the  organizational
structure and apparatus; Planning, fraining and
appointing managers; Establishing mechanisms,
policies and remuneration for employees of the
Group and other resfructuring plans ...

Deploying and supervising the work of
infernal audit, internal control; supervise
and monitor the financial situation;
evaluate and select independent auditing
units of financial statements; supervise and
approve transactions between the Group
and related persons and internal people.

Supervising the Group's financial operations
and investor relations.

Mr. LE PHUOC VU - Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Vice Chairman of the
Board of Direcfors is in charge of the
Sub-Committee to manage, coordinate and
handle professional issues

Mr. NGUYEN VAN LUAN - Independent
Member of the Board of Director

Mr. DINH VIET DUY - Independent
Member of the Board of Director

In order to support, advise and assist daily work of the Board of Directors and affiliated Committees, the Board of Directors has
established a number of units under the Board of Directors, performing specialized functions, including: Internal Auditing
Department, Human Resources Council, Restructuring, Human Resources, Salary & Remuneration Committee, Assistant
Department of Board of Directors & Chairman of the Board of Directors. At the same time, the Board of Directors appointed a
number of fitles to advise and assist the Board of Directors, including: Head and Deputy Head of Restructuring Board; Head,
Deputy Head and Member of the Internal Audit Department; In charge of Corporate Governance (in accordance with Decree

71/2017 / ND-CP on Corporate Governance Management); Secretary of the Company (according to the Enterprise Law),
Head of Assistant Department of Board of Directors & Chairman of the Board of Directors...

Il. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. ASSIGNING AND APPOINTING TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In order to ensure that the Board of Directors' activities are implemented effectively, smoothly, the Board of Directors has assigned
and appointed to the Board members to perform functions, duties and powers as follows:

NO MEMBER FUNCTION
1 Mr. LE PHUOC VU 1. Implementing the general management and leadership functions in the orienfation and
Chairman of strategy of the Group
the Board of Directors 2. In charge of directing the work of the Board of Directors and concurrently holding the position

of Chairman of the Strategic Committee and Chairman of the Restructuring Committee
3. Directing activities of the Executive Board, Units / Titles under the Board of Directors

2 Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU
Vice Chairman of
the Board of Director

3 Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI
Executive member of
the Board of Directors
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1. In charge of handling the daily work of the Board of Directors

2. Authorized by the Board of Directors / Chairman of the Board of Directors to
represent the Board of Directors / Chairman of the Board of Directors to implement
the authority of the Board of Directors / Chairman of the Board of Directors according
to the Board's Resolution or under the Power of Attorney of the Board of Directors.

3. Directing the Group's management and administration activities and approving the
work related to the Units / Titles under the Board of Directors, including the positions

of the Executive Board

4. Directing works in the fields of Foreign affairs, Finance - Credit - Banking, Investment
promotion, Industrial projects, Real estate projects and other projects in the Group

and overseas.

Directly coordinating, implementing and taking responsibility to the Board of Directors

for the operation of the Group.

NO MEMBER

FUNCTION

4 Mr. LY VAN XUAN
Non — Executive member of
the Board of Directors

5 Mr. NGUYEN VAN LUAN
Independent member of
the Board of Directors

6 Mr. DINH VIET DUY
Independent member of
the Board of Directors

2. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Performing the function of monitoring transactions with related persons of the Group and
implementing shareholder relations activities

1. Holding the position of Chairman of Internal Audit Committee, providing professional
guidance to the Internal Audit Department and monitoring the internal control system.
2. Monitoring transactions with related persons of the Group.

1. Chairman of Finance & Investor Relations Committee.
2. Monitoring transactions with related persons of the Group.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 (from October 1, 2018 to September 30, 2019), the Board of Directors approved 81

Resolutions related to important issues under the authority of the Board of Directors..

The rate of aftending the Board meetings of each member is detailed as follows:

STT MEMBER OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

POSITION STARTING DATE IS NUMBER OF ATTENDANCE

MEMBER OF THE BOARD’S RATE
THE BOARD OF MEETINGS

DIRECTORS ATTENDED
1 Mr. LE PHUOC VU Chairman of the Board of Directors 16/01/2018 81 100%
2 Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 16/01/2018 81 100%
Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI Executive member of the Board of Directors 16/01/2018 81 100%
4 Mr. LY VAN XUAN Non — Executive member of 16/01/2018 81 100%
the Board of Directors
Mr. NGUYEN VAN LUAN  Independent member of the Board of Directors ~ 16/01/2018 81 100%
6 Mr. DINH VIET DUY Independent member of the Board of Directors ~ 16/01/2018 81 100%

Summary table of some important meetings of the Board of Directors in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019:

NO RESOLUTION NUMBER DATE DESCRIPTION

1 89/NQ/HPQT/2018 25/10/2018 Approve the policy on restructuring Distribution System, accepting the transfer of
Branches of Hoa Sen Holdings Group in some provinces and cities to increase the
number of distribution stores under Hoa Sen Group.

2 91/NQ/HDbQT/2018 31/10/2018 Approval on establishing new Provincial Branch in pursuant to the restructuring
plan, including: Quang Nam, Da Nang.

3 93/NQ/HDQT/2018 06/11/2018 Approval on the result of transaction on transfering the the real-estate on Do Xuan
Hop Street, in District 9, Ho Chi Minh City.

4 99/NQ/HPQT/2018 21/12/2018 Approval on increasing ownership ratio of Hoa Sen Group in some subsidiaries
in real-estate business:
- Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint-stock Company: 95%
- Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint-stock Company: 99%
- Hoa Sen Du Long industrial park infrastructure investment Company: 95%

5 101/NQ/HDQT/2018  25/12/2018 - Approval on the Report on business result and financial situation of the Group

in the fiscal year 2017 — 2018 and business and production plan in the fiscal
year 2018 - 2019 to submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review
at the annual meeting.

- Taking the opinions of members of the Board of Directors about the market

developments in the last 6 months of 2018, solutions to stabilize the business
and production situation in the difficult period and forecast market movements
in 2019;

- Approval on transfering some real-estate of Company for capital recovering fo

stabilize the business and production situation.

- Approval of real - estate transfer results at 123 Tran Nao, District 2, Ho Chi

Minh City;

- Approval of the policy of restructuring phase 2, which has been implemented

from the end of 2018 to stabilize the business and production situation in the
unfavorable period of the market;

- Officially appointing the position of Deputy General Director of Exports to Mr.

NGUYEN NGOC HUY.
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NO

RESOLUTION NUMBER

DATE

DESCRIPTION

6

12

13

14
15
16

17
18

19

20

22

23

08 /NQ/HPQT/2019

08A /NQ/HPQT/2019
08B /NQ/HPQT/2019
08C /NQ/HDPQT/2019
08D /NQ/HPQT/2019

10 /NQ/HDQT/2019

12 /NQ/HDQT/2019

13 /NQ/HDQT/2019

16 /NQ/HPQT/2019
19 /NQ/HPQT/2019
23 /NQ/HPQT/2019

23A /NQ/HPQT/2019
26 /NQ/HPQT/2019

31 /NQ/HDPQT/2019

32 /NQ/HPQT/2019

33 /NQ/HPQT/2019

35 /NQ/HbQT/2019

39 /NQ/HDQT/2019
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28/02/2019

28/02/2019
28/02/2019
28/02/2019
28/02/2019

04/03/2019

18/03/2019

19/03/2019

25/03/2019
03/04/2019
18/04/2019

18/04/2019
06/05/2019

11/06/2019

14/06/2019

20/06/2019

28/06/2019

06/09/2019

Resolution of the Ordinary Meeting of the BOD in January and February 2019

- Approval on the Report on business result in the first 02 months of 2019;

- Approval on a number of orientations and policies related to restructuring in 2019;
- Approval on acquiring more Branches from Hoa Sen Holdings Group to expand
the domestic Distributional Network

- Approval on re-arranging and transferring some real-estate, property of Company
for capital recovering

- Approval on seeking approval from General Shareholders in written on issuing
shares for capital supplementing

Approval on paying dividend of fiscal year 2017 - 2018 by shares at a rate of
10%. Expected to be completed in June 2019.

Approval on selecting KPMG Ltd. to be a independent audit unit for financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019
Approval on acquiring more Branches from Hoa Sen Holdings Group in some
provinces and cities to expand the domestic Distributional Network

Approval on some solutions and restructuring plan to scope with the adversely
impact of the market to the operations and business of the Company

Approval on establishing new Provincial Branch in pursuant to the restructuring
plan, including: Lam Dong, Ninh Thuan, at the same time approval on converting
some Branches into Distributional Units under the Provincial Branches

Approval on supplementing the contents seeked for approval form General
Shareholders in written
Approval on supplementing the contents seeked for approval form General
Shareholders in written

Addifional content: Submit fo the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the policy
of issuing shares and bonds/convertible bonds to exisfing shareholders, strategic partners
and other investors to supplement capital for production and business activifies.

Approval on some financial contents relating funds ratio provision for operation of

the Company

Approval on all the proposals the General Shareholders for approving in written

Approval on issuing non-convertible bonds for capital supplementing

Resolution of the Ordinary Meeting of the BOD in March and April 2019:

- Approval on the report of business results and financial situation of the Group in
March & April 2019;

- Approval on some solutions and restructuring plan to scope with the adversely
impact of the market to the o ferqhons and business of the Company, transferring
some real-estate, property of Company for capital recovering.

- Approval on acquiring more Branches from Hoa Sen Holdings Group in some
provinces and cities to expand the domestic Distributional Network.

Approval on rearranging some equipments and assembly lines in Hoa Sen Binh Duong Plant

Approval on Report on issuing shares for payment of dividend of fiscal year 2017
- 2018 to increase charter capital. Charter capital after increase: VND
4,234,694,890,000.

Resolution of the Ordinary Meeting of the BOD in May and June 2019:

- Approval on the Report on business result in May & June 2019, at the same time

recording positive improvements to the Group's production and business situation

in the current difficult period.

- Approval on some solutions and restructuring plan to scope with the adversely

impact of the market to the operations and business of the Company

- Approval on a number of guidelines related to shareholders' opinion on issuance of
shares, bonds/convertible bonds.

- Approval on implementation progress of some investment project of Company.

Approval on dissolution of Hoa Sen Engineering & Trasportation Company.

Reason: rearranging transport segment in the direction of moving vehicles and

transport means from Hoa Sen Engineering & Trasportation Company to production

plants to increase the initiafive in coordinating the transport of goods, materials ...

Approval on closing banking account of Representative Office in Myanmar and

transferring all the remaining balance from the mentioned account to Hoa Sen Group

banking account

Approval on capital confribution to establish Hoa Sen International Port Joint stock

Company. Capital contribution ratio: 49%.

Resolution of the Ordinary Meeting of the BOD in July and August 2019:

- Approval on the Report on business result in July and August 2019.

- Approval on a number of forecasts and assessments about market situation in 2020, as a
basis for making business and production plans for the fiscal year 2019 - 2020, submitiing
to the General Meefing of Shareholders for approval.

- Approval on the report of restructuring results implemented in the fiscal year 20182019
and some guidelines and restructuring orientations in the fiscal year 2019-2020.

- Aprroval on a number of guidelines and orientations for the Group's investment projects.

- Aprroval on the scheduled fime and place for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
the fiscal year 2019-2020.

3. ACTIVITIES OF COMMITTEES UNDER THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As Committees under the Board of Directors and established
by the Board of Directors, the Committees perform the
function of researching, advising and proposing the Board
of Directors/General Assembly of Shareholders to consider
and decide the guidelines and orientations related to
production and business activities of the Group, and on
behalf of the Board of Directors to monitor and supervise
functional units of the Executive Board in the implementation
of the resolutions and guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors/General Assembly of Shareholders.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the operations of the
Committees under the Board of Directors are as follows:
3.1. THE INVESTMENT & STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

e For Production Plant Projects: The Committee has
organized, directed and supervised functional units to
quickly complete and put into operation the projects
according to the schedule approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors,
including: Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant Project (phase 3); Hoa
Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant Project (phase 2); Hot - dip
Galvanized Steel Pipe Plant project.

e For Projects in Ninh Thuan Province: The Committee
continues to urge, supervise and directly promote investment,
complete legal procedures for Projects in Ninh Thuan,
including: Leveling ground, building basic infrastructure in
Du Long Industrial Park; Completing legal procedures and
promoting construction of Ca Na General Port; Completing
legal procedures of Ca Na Industrial Park Project.

e For projects temporarily suspended: The Committee
advised and submitted to the Board of Directors to consider
balancing resources to continue implementing or terminating
operation, recovering investment capital if necessary...

e For new projects: In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the
Board of Directors has instructed to suspend the promotion of
direct investment in new projects to ensure consistent with the
current business situation of the Group. However, with
regard to the Projects that have much potential, the
Committee advised and submitted to the Board of Directors
to consider contributing capital, associating with partners in
a reasonable proportion to promote the development of new
Projects. Specifically: Contributing capital to establish Hoa
Sen International Port Joint Stock Company (owned 49% by
the Group).

3.2. COMMITTEES OF RESTRUCTURING AND HUMAN
RESOURSES

3.2.1. THE WORK OF RESTRUCTURING AND PERFECTING THE
OPERATIONAL SYSTEM

e Developing, perfecting and advising the Board of
Directors to review and approve the organizational structure,
problems of human resourses, designate the titles of the
Departments, Divisions in the Representative Office,
Subsidiaries, Plants, Units fo ensure compliance with the new
situation, in the spirit of streamlining the system, reducing
costs, but still ensuring optimal and effective management
and control.

* Directing and coordinating with functional units to imple-
ment the restructuring of Distribution System following the
model of Provincial Branch, applying ERP and electronic
invoices to the Distribution Network, at the same time
terminating the operation of the old model in accordance
with the approved schedule.

® Directing functional units to review and complete the
system of Regulations, Business Processes related to the
Group's operating areas in the spirit of optimizing
processes, reducing steps, intermediaries and procedures.
3.2.2. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

- Research and build a staffing plan for the entire Group in
the spirit of streamlining the apparatus and reducing costs.
- Reviewing, arranging and allocating the whole Group's
personnel appropriately in order to ensure compliance

with the Group's production and business situation,

streamlining the operating system, optimizing the efficiency of

human resources but still ensure the working spirit and

motivation of employees.

- Researching, building and recommending to the Board of

Directors through policies of salary, bonus, welfare, reward

and discipline of the Group.

3.2.3. THE WORK OF OPTIMIZING COST EFFICIENCY

- Implementing the guidelines of the Board of Directors,

Comnmittees of Restructuring, Human Resources and Remuneration

has directed and coordinated with units to implement many

solutions to reduce operating costs of the Group to ensure

consistent with the situation of market instability, stabilizing

production and business activities, ensuring profits.

- The Committee also advises the Board of Directors in organizing

liquidation and transfer of some assets (movables assets, real

estate) that the Group no longer needs to use to recover investment

capital and supplement fo the manufacturing and trading operation.

3.2.4. Handling other issues related to the Group's restructuring,

personnel and remuneration.

3.3. FINANCE AND INVESTOR RELATIONS COMMITTEES

3.3.1. FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

- Negotiating and working with banks and credit institutions

in calling capital to implement on-going projects.

- Reviewing, proposing and advising the Board of Directors to

decide on capital contribution activities, cash flow coordination

for the subsidiaries, factories and on — going projects.

3.3.2. INFORMATION DISCLOSURE ACTIVITIES

- Implementing regular and irregular information disclosure
procedures in accordance with the provisions of Circular

]55/20]5/TT BTC of the Ministry of Finance.

Actively disclosing information for important information,
which directly or indirectly affects the interests and investment
decisions of investors.

3.3.3. DIVIDEND PAYMENT ACTIVITIES

- Advising the Board of Directors appropriately on the ratio,
form and time of dividend payment to ensure that it does not
affect the operation of the Company

3.3.4. SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS AND INVESTORS ACTIVITIES
- Participating in annual and irregular meetings of the
General Assembly of Shareholders; preparing meeting
documents and fully publishing documents on the website for
shareholders to refer, as a basis for shareholders to discuss
and vote at the conference in accordance with the provisions
of law; fully and thoughtfully answer all questions asked by
shareholders at the conference within a reasonable time.

- Participating in meeting and exchanging with domestic and
foreign investors, presenting and answering issues that
investors care about, creating trust in investors.

- Contacting, meeting, answering questions and supporting
shareholders in the registration procedures.

3.4. INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE

3.4.1. FINANCIAL SUPERVISION

- Periodically reviewing the financial statements of the
Company, ensuring the accuracy and transparency in financial
data  when reporting fo state management agencies,
shareholders and investors.

- Verifying reports on monthly financial expenses carried out
by the Board of Management ("the Executive Board"),
thereby proposing the Board of Directors on orientations
related to financial management.

- Inspecting the financial data of the Company to ensure the
financial situation of the Company is always in a healthy state.
- Organizing the units to analyze financial situation, and set
up the plan to reduce costs of the Group.

3.4.2. INSPECTION, SUPERVISION AND APPROVAL OF
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

- Participating in  monitoring, checking and approving
transactions between the Company and related persons.

- Reviewing, commenting and advising the Board of Directors
to approve the Regulation on procedures for approval, entry
and implementation of transactions with related persons.
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lll. RESULTS OF IMPLEMENTING THE RESOLUTION OF THE GENERAL MEETING
IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

In the fiscal year 20182019, the Board of Directors held an annual shareholder meeting on January 14, 2019 to submit to the
General Meeting of Shareholders approving a number of reports and guidelines related to the Company's acfivities. The contents
approved by the General Meefing of Shareholders are recorded in Resolution No. 01/NQ /DHDCD/2019 dated January 14, 2019.
Details of the implementation are as follows:

NO DESCRIPTION RESULTS

1 Approved the operation orientation

and business plan for the fiscal year

2018-2019

Approved the plan for profit distribu-
tion of fiscal year 2017 -2018

Appropriation of funds in the fiscal
year 2018 - 2019. According fo the
guidelines of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the rate of appropriation
of funds is as follows:

- Bonus fund: Maximum of 3% of
consolidated profit after - tax

- Remuneration fund: Maximum of 1%
of consolidated profit after - tax

- Funds for charity: Up to 3% of

consolidated profit after - tax.

Authorize the Board of Directors to
choose the Auditing Company to audit
the Financial Statements of the fiscal

year 2018 -2019

Details are shown in the next report sections.

Completed the dividend payment of the fiscal year 2017 - 2018 in May 2019:
- Payment rate: 10%

- Form of payment: Stock dividend

- Charter capital after payment is completed: VND 4,234,694,890,000

The Board of Directors has setting up funds in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 with the
following ratio:

- Bonus fund: 0% of consolidated profit after - tax

- Remuneration fund: 1% of consolidated profit after - tax

- Funds for charity: 0% of consolidated profit after - tax.

The Board of Directors selected KPMG Vietnam Co., Ltd. as the auditor for the Group's
Financial Statements in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019.

The selection of auditing company is shown in Resolution 08B / NQ / HDQT / 2019
on February 28, 2019 and has been disclosed according to regulations.

Also in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors held a written opinion to submit to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval of the policy of issuing shares, bonds/convertible bonds to existing shareholders, strategic investors,
other investors to supplement capital for business and production activities.

The work of collecting written opinions is done from April 3, 2019 to April 15, 2019. In total, the Company issued 18,741
votes, equivalent to 384,828,828 shares with voting rights and earned 414 votes, equivalent to 180,433,084 shares, of
which 165,731,084 agreed with the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

IV. RESULTS OF SUPERVISORY OPERATION ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors appointed and assigned to members of the Board of Management to carry out the business segments in the

production and business activities of the Group. As follows:

No NAME AND POSITION DESCRIPTION
1T Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI 1. Function of legal representation:
The third legal representative Implementing the authority of the Third Legal Representative in accordance with the
Enterprise Law, the Company's Charter and Current Regulations.
2. In charge of common responsibility for the management activities of the Board of Directors:
- Organizing, coordinating, assigning and appointing the members of the Board of
Directors in the overall management of the Group’s daily business and production
activities;
-Organizing the implementation of the Group's orientations and policies as
assigned by the Board of Directors;
- Be supervised and responsible to the Board of Directors for the results of activities
of the Board of Management.
3. Directly responsible for some fields as assigned by the Board of Directors:
Managing and taking direct responsibility in: Export, Import, Distribution System
Management, Business Planning & Policy, Human Resources, Recruitment & Training.
2 Mr. HOANG DUC HUY Directing and managing professional operations of the Internal Control Deparment.
Deputy General Director
In charge of Internal Control
3 Mr. VU VAN THANH 1. Directing the professional operations of the Finance and Trade Remedies

Deputy General Director
In charge of Finance — Marketing and
Representative Office in the North
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Department, Marketing;

2. Managing production and business activities of the Provincial Branches and
Distribution Stores in the North (From Ha Tinh backward);

3. Representing the entire contributed capital of the Group to perform the function of
managing - operating the activities of the manufacturing Subsidiaries in the North
(Nghe An, Ha Nam, Yen Bai).

STT HO TEN VA CHUC DANH

4 Mr. NGUYEN MINH KHOA
Deputy General Director
In charge of Supply —
Production - Project

NOI DUNG

1. Directing the operational management of Technical, Quality and Project;
Purchasing and Supply;

2. Directing and taking direct responsibility for production management at the
Group's plants and subsidiaries;

3. Organizing the implementation and supervision of the installation, finishing,
pre-acceptance test of the production lines, machinery and equipment at the Group's
production projects.

5  Mr. HO THANH HIEU

1. Operating and taking direct responsibility in the following operations: Commercial

Deputy General Director
In charge of Domestic sales, IT, ERP
and Southern region

business (Steel sheet - steel - plastic); Distribution System; Information technology & ERP
2. Managing the production and business activities of the Provincial Branches and
Distribution Stores in the South (From Quang Binh and above);

3. Representing the entire contributed capital of the Group to perform the function of
managing - operating the activities of the manufacturing Subsidiaries in the Central
(Binh Dinh Province)

4. Organizing the implementation and supervision of the completion and application
of the ERP system and the restructuring of the distribution network under the Provincial
Branch model.

6 Mr. TRAN QUOC PHAM 1. Operating and taking direct responsibility in Investment & Basic Construction;
Deputy General Director 2. Organizing the implementation and supervision of construction, finishing,
In charge of Investment pre-acceptance test of works, infrastructure and workshops at the Group's Projects.
and Construction 3. To be in charge of investment promotion activities of projects in Ninh Thuan.

7 Mr. NGUYEN NGOC HUY Operating and taking direct responsibility in Export.

Deputy General Manager
In charge of Export

Weekly meetings of the Board of Management: The members of the Board of Directors sent representatives fo participate in
the weekly meetings with the Board of Directors, Directors of Functional Departments and Directors of Subsidiaries to monitor
and check the management and administration in order to timely adjust to suit the guidelines and orientations of the Board
of Directors. At the meeting, the Board of Directors will review and evaluate the reports on business and production situation;
report the progress and results of the work assigned; updated information on market movements and proposed tasks and
plans to be implemented during the week. At the weekly meetings, the Board of Directors sent members of the Board of Direc-
tors to aftend to supervise and monitor the management activities and promptly make adjustments to suit the guidelines and
orientations of the Board of Directors.

Extraordinary meetings of the Board of Directors: During the peak periods, important decisions need to be made, the Board
of Directors holds extraordinary meetings to discuss and agree on issues and decisions. In some necessary cases, members
of the Board of Directors are invited to attend the meeting to supervise, monitor and provide guidance.

Periodic Board meetings: The Board holds regular meetings every 2 months to evaluate the management of the Board of
Management, the results of implementing the Board's guidelines and monthly business results, discuss and review the
business plan of the next month and giving guidelines and important policies for the Group's activities. At regular meetings
of the Board of Directors, the members of the Board of Management and a number of key managers (Internal Auditing Board,
Chief Accountant, and Corporate Governance) must attend in full to report and acknowledge the guidelines and orientations
of the Board of Directors.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Management successfully fulfilled the role through timely and flexible production
and business management solutions which are consistent with the guidelines and orientations of the Board of Directors. The
guidelines and decisions given by the Board of Directors are fully and quickly implemented by the Board of Management and
reported to the Board of Directors with a high sense of responsibility.

V. REPORT ON RESTRUCTURING AND STABILITY OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
ORIENTATION APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN THE FISCAL YEAR

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, in the face of increasingly complicated market movements, at regular and extraordinary meetings, the
Board of Directors approved a number of guidelines and directed the Board of Management, the Board of Restructuring to continue
deploying the restructuring activities of the Group in accordance with the orientations set out in 2018, in order to proactively cope with
disadvantages, quickly stabilize the business and production situation, balance the financial resources, optimize resources, details are as
follows:

THE UNDERTAKINGS RELATED TO PRODUCTION, BUSINESS AND SUPPLY

Good control of inventories: Inventory norm for Plants and Branches were applied from
Establishing a reasonable inventory level at Plants and Branches. At~ June 2018.
the same time, closely monitoring and supervising to ensure that the  In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the actual inventory in Plants
actual inventory is within the issued norms. and Branches is pulled down and strictly controlled within the
scope of the norm.
The application of inventory norms also enhances the
activeness and flexibility for the units in making and
deploying production, supply and business plans to suit
market movements.

NO ORIENTATIONS IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE AND RESULTS
|
1
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NO

ORIENTATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE AND RESULTS

THE UNDERTAKINGS RELATED TO PRODUCTION, BUSINESS AND SUPPLY

2

Control costs well: Continue to implement monitoring and
supervision to effectively control expenses, costs of the Group,
ensuring the spirit of cost reduction set out from 2018.

At the same time, researching and implementing solutions to further
reduce costs to stabilize the business situation if the market has more
unfavorable developments.

Application of innovations and technical improvements in production: The
Board of Directors directs the Board of Management and all Plants to
confinue fo organize the implementation of technical innovations and
improvements fo enhance production efficiency, reduce production costs,
reducing raw material consumption, increasing the proportion of genuine
products ...

Planning business strategy: Starting from unfavorable developments of
both export and domestic markets, the Board of Directors determined:

- Set goals focusing on the domestic market through taking advantage
of Branches and Stores nationwide.

- In the domestic market, focusing on retail activities through promoting
sales of rolled steel sheets and products with good profit margins to
improve the Group's profitability in the current period.

- Localize the sales and marketing team at Branches and Stores in order
to take advantage of human resources with a good understanding and
grasp of the local market, culture and society.

-Focusing on increasing revenue from plastic products, through
solutions such as: Applying promotions; Search and expand the
network of reputable distributors; Reorganize production - supply -
delivery activities; Improve product quality to increase competitiveness ...

THE UNDERTAKINGS RELATED TO FINANCE

Costsaving solutions have been implemented since March
2018 and showed positive results.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, solutions to control and reduce
costs have continued to be effective.

According to the Group's consolidated financial statements,
all expense, costs groups sharply decreased, in which:

- Financial costs reduced by 17%

- Selling costs reduced by 14%

- Administrative costs reduced by 30%

The results of technical improvement in production activities
are put info production costs, contributing to improving the
Group's profits.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group's business
performance has improved. The Group has recorded net
profit from operating activities for many consecutive
quarters.

1

Decreasing the loan balance: The Board of Directors sets the target
that the total loan balance of the Group must be reduced to a
reasonable level to ensure the balance of financial resources and
create conditions to stabilize the business and production situation
when the market continues unfavorably developing.

Restructuring the Group's assets to ensure efficiency and optimal
during operation: In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of
Directors approved the policy of arranging and restructuring some
of the Group's assefs such as: Liquidation of used assets and
redundant properties after being arranged; Transfer of some assets
is considered inappropriate in the development strategy of the
Group in the new period.

According to the consolidated financial statements, the total
loan balance of the Group as of September 30, 2019 was
reduced to VND 11,600 billion, down VND 4,500 billion
over the same period.

Total debt/Equity ratio is less than 2.5 fimes, reflecting
perfectly healthy financial situation.

Income from the liquidation and transfer of assets is
recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

THE UNDERTAKINGS RELATED TO THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, PERSONNEL, AND INTERNAL AFFAIRS

1

Streamlining the apparatus, organizational structure:

- For management levels: Streamline and reorganize the system of
titles and ranks across the Group; Refined intermediary manage-
ment levels; Reset remuneration system, payroll, policies for manage-
ment levels according to the new situation.

-For Representative Office: Arranging and streamlining Regional
Executive Offices and functional units to reduce intermediate levels;
Merging and consolidating Functional Departments / Divisions have
similarities in business.

-For Subsidiaries, Plants: Decreasing intermediary levels and
indirect divisions; Streamlining, merging production lines and
workshops for production and supply; Reform and streamline the
order and operational procedures in production - supply activities.

- For Branches: Adjusting, reducing redundant positions from the
application of ERP system to the Branch's business activities.
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By the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the corporate
governance model of the Group and the organizational
structure of the Representative Office have been streamlined
and put info stable operation.

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors also
considered and approved the policy of dissolution of a
number of subsidiaries and representative offices after the
restructuring and streamlining of the system were completed.
Inventory quotas for Plants and Branches were applied from
June 2018.

In the fiscal year 2018-2019, the actual inventory at Plants
and Branches are pulled down and strictly controlled within
the scope of norms.

The application of inventory norms also enhances the
activeness and flexibility for the units in making and
deploying production, supply and business plans to suit
market movements.

ORIENTATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE AND RESULTS

THE UNDERTAKINGS RELATED TO THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, PERSONNEL, AND INTERNAL AFFAIRS

-D&i vi cac Cong ty con, Nha mdy: Tinh gidm cdc cép frung gian
vé& cdc don vi thuéc méng gidn tiép; Tinh gon, sap nhap cac day
chuyén, phan xudng phuc vu san xudt — cung ung; Céi céch, tinh gon
cdc trinh ty, thu tuc tdc nghiép trong hoat déng san xudt — cung Ung.
-Dé&i v&i Chi nhanh: Diéu chinh dinh bién, tinh gidm cdéc vi tri déi
du tu viéc ung dung hé thdng ERP vaio hoat déng kinh doanh cia
Chi nhanh.

Implementing Distribution System restructuring:

- Applying the Provincial Branch model for Distribution System:
Changing the administration and management mechanism  of
Disfribution System to the model of Provincial Branch and its stores
("Business Locations"), according fo the guidelines and roadmap has
been approved.

- Application of ERP system into Distribution System: Develop and
organize the application of ERP system in production and business
activities of the whole Distribution System affer complefing the
conversion to the Province Branch — Stores model.

- Receiving more Branches/Stores: Receiving more branches to increase
the scale of Distribution System in the current fierce competition.

Streamlining the personel in the whole Group:

-In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors approved
the total limit of personel in the Group to maximum 6,800 people.
- The Board of Directors directs the work of reducing personnel must
ensure stable production and business activities, efficiently operate
units and departments, and ensure production and quality targets.
At the same time, it is necessary to ensure the mental stability and
working motivation of the Group's employees.

Restructuring business, production and supply of plastic products:

- Implementation purpose: Focusing on manufacturing, trading and
supplying plastic products to O1 specialized Company to ensure
consistency in management and development of production and
business for plastic product.

-Preliminary plan: Assigning the entire field of manufacturing,
trading and supplying plastic products to 01 specialized Company
(Subsidiary of Hoa Sen Group) for centralized management and
administration.

Dinh muc haing tén kho cho cac Nha may va Chi nhanh dugc
ap dung tu thang 06/2018.

Trong NDTC 2018 - 2019, lugng hang t6n kho thyc té tai
cdc Nha mdy va Chi nhéanh dugc kéo giam va kiém sodt chat
ché trong pham vi pht hop véi dinh muc.

Viéc dp dung dinh muc hang tén kho cing téng cusng tinh
cht déng, linh hoat cho cdc don vi trong viéc lap va trién
khai ké hoach san xudt, cung ung, kinh doanh cho phu hop
véi dién bién thi trusng.

The Group has completed the following tasks:

- Put info operation all converted Distribution System accord-
ing fo the Province Branch - Store model.

- Complete and put into operation the ERP system and
electronic invoices for the whole Distribution System.

- Received more than 160 branches from Hoa Sen Holdings
Group to expand the scale and increase the density of
Branches/Stores under Hoa Sen Group in Provinces/Cities.

The number of personnel of the Group in the fiscal year
2018 - 2019 is controlled within the approved limit.

The reduction of personnel has contributed to the reduction of
the total salary fund, stabilizing the business and production
situation of the Group.

In the last 3 months of 2019, the Restructuring Board and the
Board of Management began to develop a plan and a
roadmap for the restructuring of the plastic segment to submit
to the Board of Directors for review and approval.
According to the plan, the roadmap for restructuring the
plastic segment will be submitted to the Board of Directors for
approval and implemented in 2020.

Vi. REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION OF
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the supervision and inspection of transactions with related persons are strictly implemented, in
accordance with the law, details are as follows:
- The conclusion and execution of transactions are subject to the approval of the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions
of the Group's Charter, Regulation on Management and Regulation on transactions with related persons, in accordance with the
provisions of the Law on Business and the current Securities Law.
- At regular meetings, members of the Board of Directors discussed, presented opinions and views on transactions with related
persons. For transactions that are considered to be important, the Board of Directors held an extraordinary meeting to pass a
separate Resolution on transactions and be disclosed in accordance with the law.

-For regular transactions, the Board of Management submits to the Independent members of the Board of Directors, non-executive
members of the Board of Directors and the Head of the Internal Audit Department for consideration and approval in accordance with
regulations.
-The conclusion and execution of transactions are based on equality and voluntariness in accordance with the laws and regulations
of the Group. Transactions are signed in writing, ensuring transparency and harmony of interests of shareholders and interests of
parties to the transaction.
In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors reviewed and approved the policies on transactions with Related Persons of
the Company. The guidelines have also been published in accordance with the current securities laws. As follows:

NO

1

3

RESOLUTION NUMBER DATE

DESCRIPTION

89/NQ/HDQT/2018 25/10/2018

Approving the policy of restructuring the Distribution Network of the

Group in the direction of receiving a number of branches of Hoa Sen
Holdings Group to expand the Distribution Network, increasing the
number of Branches and Distribution Stores.

92/NQ/HDPQT/2018 02/11/2018

Approve fransactions with Related Persons arising from July 1, 2018

to September 30, 2018 and the proposed transaction plan arising
from October 1, 2018 to September 30, 2019.

08C /NQ/HDQT/2019 28/02/2019

Approve the policy of restructuring Distribution System, accepting the

transfer of Branches of Hoa Sen Holdings Group in some provinces and
cities o increase the number of Distribution Stores under Hoa Sen Group.
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Vil. REPORT ON RESULTS OF FINANCIAL - ACCOUNTING SITUATIONS IN THE
FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, performing the functions specified in the Organization Charter and Corporate Governance
Regulation, through the operations of the Internal Audit Committee, the Board of Directors organized the following tasks: (i)
reviewing and evaluating the Group's financial and accounting situation; (i) work with the Independent Auditing Unit (KPMG
Vietnam Co., Ltd.) to ensure the independence and objectivity in the audit activities of the Group's financial statements.

Evaluating the Group's financial and accounting situation in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Board of Directors has the following
conclusions about the Group's financial situation and financial statements:

1. Regarding the financial situation:
The Board of Directors confirmed that the Group's financial position in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 is good and transparent, namely:

-The Group fully complies with the requirements of the current Vietnamese accounting standards and accounting system in
organizing the accounting and financial work.

- The accounting documents are strictly managed and systematically stored by the Group in accordance with regulations, ensuring
quick and complete tracking when inspection and auditing are required.

- The opening of accounting books and fund books must comply with current regulations, daily record and update promptly and
accurately the receipt, payment and debit / credit notes of the bank.

- Basic indicators of debt situation, loan capital, liquidity, asset use efficiency, provisioning, and equity to meet financial - accountant
regulations, principles and standards.

- The Group has made efforts in reducing costs, boosting sales to record net profits from production and business activities, effectively
reducing loan balance, ensuring the Group's financial balance. The results show that, at the end of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the
ratio of outstanding loans to equity was improved.

- Although the business results have not reached the set plan, the production and business activities are maintained stably, the cash
flow is guaranteed, the financial situation is healthy. This is a positive sign in the current difficult context of the market.

2. Regarding financial statements:

The Board of Directors confirms that the information in the Group's quarterly, semi-annual and annual financial statements (including
separate and consolidated statements) is presented in an honest, reasonable manner, consistent, suitable with the provisions of the
law. The Board of Management maintains caution in organizing accounting, statistics and financial reporting.

Based on the reports presented by the Board of Management at the regular Board of Director’s meetings, the actual inspection
results, as well as audit data of the independent auditing unit - KPMG Vietnam Co., Ltd, the Board of Director of Hoa Sen Group
confirms that the financial position of Hoa Sen Group is in a completely healthy state.

VIIl. ASSESSMENT OF AUDITING ENVIRONMENT IN THE COMPANY

1. Strict control and internal audit environment

Internal audit is one of the important operations at the Group, increasingly attached to production and business activities. Internal
audit is an effective tool of the Board of Directors to inspect, supervise and support the operation of the Board of Management in
particular and the functional units of the Group in general, to maximize the protection for the business and the interests of
shareholders.

Hoa Sen Group maintains a professional system of internal audit and internal control, participates in monitoring and strictly
controlling all activities of the Group in order to ensure that professional operations are in compliance with the issued process. In
addition, the Group also has specialized units to carry out bidding activities, control prices... to optimize input costs for the Group.

In addition, through the Internal Audit Sub - Committees and advisory units, the Board of Directors also identifies key risks in the year,
identifies business processes related to risks and assess the appropriateness of the control system as well as compliance in
operational processes.

2. Transparent audit environment

Hoa Sen Group always creates a policy of creating a transparent and favorable environment for auditing and inspection activities
of Independent Auditing Organizations as well as State Agencies. The data in the financial statements of the Group reflect fully and
honestly the financial situation, operation of the Group and in accordance with the standards on accounting, auditing and legal
regulations.

84| ANNUAL REPORT

Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

IX. REMUNERATION AND OTHER INCOME OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

No Position Remuneration
(VND/ month)
1 Chairman of the Board of Directors 30,000,000
2 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 25,000,000
3 Member of the Board of Directors 20,000,000

2. OTHER INCOME AT THE GROUP OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REMUNERATION
NO
NAME POSITION (VND/month)

1 Mr. LE PHUOC VU Chairman of the Restructuring Board 12,000,000
Vice Chairman of the Restructuring Board 9,000,000
Chairman of Hoa Sen Phu My Co., Ltd (Hot - dip 20,000,000

2 Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU Galvanized Steel Pipe Company)
Chairman of Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Co.,Ltd 20,000,000
Chairman of Hoa Sen Building Materials Co.,Ltd 20,000,000
General Director*® 100,000,000

3 Mr. TRAN QUOC TRI Vice Chairman of the Restructuring Board 9,000,000
Member of the Board of Management of 20,000,000

Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Sheet Plant

* Note: The actual salary of the positions of the Board of Management is the salary rank and business efficiency salary plus. In
particular, the business performance salary will depend on the monthly production and business situation of the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The investor relations (IR) always earn specific care from the Board of Management and get direct command from the
Board of Directors, Spokesman. The activities of investor relations are founded on the core values of Hoa Sen Group
and in conformity with law. It is to guarantee the equity and transparency to the investors and shareholders.

Prominent IR activities in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019:
® Successfully holding the Annual General Meeting of the fiscal year 2018 - 2019
® Thyc hién céng bé théng tin dung theo quy dinh cua Théng tu 155/2015/TT-BTC ngay 06/10/2015

®Reimburse dividend payment of fiscal year 2017-2018 according to the Resolution 01/NQ/PHDCD/2019 of
Annual General Meeting on January 14th, 2019

* Organize meetings between investors to enhance the cooperation. In fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen Group had
more than 100 meetings from domestic and international investors for Hoa Sen Group's operations.
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SHARE INFORMATION

STOCK INFORMATION

CHART OF HOA SEN GROUP STOCK PRICE IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

Price
(VND)

5 Thang

10/18 11/18 12/18 01/19 02/19 03/19 04/19 05/19 06/19 07/19 08/19 09/19

Source: vndirect.com.vn
(Chart drawn in prices has been adjusted)

DIVIDEND PAYMENT INFORMATION

In order to implement the Resolution of General Assembly of Shareholders at Annual General Meeting held on January 14,
2019, in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, Hoa Sen Group paid completely its dividend payment of the fiscal year 2017 - 2018.
The details are as follows:

NO ITEM DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO PAYMENT PAYMENT
METHOD DATE
! Dividend payment by share 10% (Each shareholder owning 100 I stock May 27, 2019

issuance to shareholders shares will receive 10 new shares)

REPURCHASING SHARES OF EMPLOYEES AS TREASURY STOCKS

Pursuant to the Regulation on repurchasing shares of employees who resigned from the Group in the Regulations on issuing
shares in 2017, from December 21, 2018 to October 25, 2019, Hoa Sen Group has acquired 111,600 shares of
employees who resigned from the Group as treasury stocks in accordance with the provisions of the Stock Issuance Regulation
2017 and the securities law. The total number of shares after redemption is 245,900 shares.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019

NO SHAREHOLDER OWNING VOLUME OWNING RATE
1 The Board of Directors 52,381,587 12.37%
Domestic shareholders 300,590,948 70.98%
2 - Domestic individuals 190,484,352 44.98%
- Domestic organizations 110,106,596 26.00%
3 Foreign shareholders 70,251,054 16.59%
4 Treasury stocks 245,900 0.06%
TOTAL 423,469,489 100%

SHARE HOLDER OWNING OVER 5% OF SHARE CAPITAL ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019

12.37%

The Board of Directors

Domestic shareholders
() Foreign shareholders
@ Treasury stocks

ORGANIZATION/

ID CARD NO./

NO ADDRESS OWNING OWNING
INDIVIDUAL BUSINESS REGISTRATION VOLUME RATE
CERTIFICATE NO.
1 Hoa Sen Holdings Group 5800921584 Hamlet 2, Da M'Ri 102,990,933 24.32%
Commune, Da Huoai Distict,
Lam Dong Province
2 Mr. Le Phuoc Vu 052063000096 No. 19 Giang Van Minh 49,704,820 11.74%
Street, An Phu Ward, District
2, Ho Chi Minh City
FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS
NO FULL NAME OWNING VOLUME OWNING RATE
] Mr. Le Phuoc Vu 49,704,820 11.74%
2 Mr. Hoang Duc Huy 211,750 0.05%
3 Mr. Ho Van Hoang 211,764 0.05%
NUMBER AND PERCENTAGE OF SHARES OWNED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019
NO FULL NAME POSITION OWNING VOLUME OWNING RATE
] Mr. Le Phuoc Vu Chairman of 49,704,820 11.74%
the Board of Directors
2 Mr. Tran Ngoc Chu Vice Chairman of the 1,436,131 0.34%
Board of Directors
3 Mr. Tran Quoc Tri Member of the Board of 735,655 0.17%
Directors General Director
4 Mr. Ly Van Xuan Member of the Board of Directors 504,981 0.12%
5 M:r. Dinh Viet Duy Member of the Board of Directors 0 0.00%
6 Mr. Nguyen Van Luan Member of the Board of Directors 0 0.00%
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NUMBER AND PERCENTAGE OF SHARES OWNED BY THE BOARD OF

MANAGEMENT, CHIEF ACCOUNTANT, PERSON IN CHARGE OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019

NO FULL NAME POSITION OWNING VOLUME OWNING RATE
] Mr. Tran Quoc Tri Member of the Board of 735,655 0.17%
Directors, General Director
2 Mr. Hoang Duc Huy Deputy General Director 211,750 0.05%
3 Mr. Vu Van Thanh Deputy General Director 348,286 0.08%
4 Mr. Nguyen Minh Khoa Deputy General Director 288,086 0.07%
5 Mr. Ho Thanh Hieu Deputy General Director 486,750 0.11%
6 Mr. Tran Quoc Pham Deputy General Director 422,110 0.10%
7 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Huy Deputy General Director 105,948 0.03%
8 Ms. Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan Chief Accountant 224,893 0.05%
9 M:r. Bui Thanh Tam Person in charge of 421,955 0.10%
Corporate Governance
NUMBER AND PERCENTAGE OF SHARES OWNED BY THE BOARD OF
INTERNAL AUDIT ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019
NO FULL NAME POSITION OWNING VOLUME OWNING RATE
] Mr. Le Vu Nam Head of Internal Audit Board 314,372 0.07%
2 M:r. Le Dinh Hanh Dep%ny Head of Infernal 428,611 0.10%
Audit Board
3 Ms. Dong Thi Thanh Hang Member of Internal Audit 67,760 0.02%
Board
NUMBER AND PERCENTAGE OF SHARES OWNED BY SHAREHOLDERS
WHO RELATE TO INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS ON NOVEMBER 01, 2019
NO FULL NAME RELATED RELATIONSHIP WITH OWNING OWNING
SHAREHOLDERS INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS VOLUME RATE
Tam Hy One Member Limited Mr. Le Phuoc Vu is the 1,058,750 0.25%
Liabilities Company owner of the company
1 Mr. Le Phuoc Vu
Hoa Sen Holdings Group Mr. Le Phuoc Vu is the 102,990,933 24.32%
owner of the company
Ms. Vo Thi Son Ca Spouse 103,787 0.02%
2 Mr. ly Van Xuan Mr. ly Hoang Long Son 86,625 0.02%
Mr. ly Khanh Van Daughter 170,418 0.04%
Ms. Hoang Thi Xuan Huong Sister 7,150,000 1.69%
3 Mr. Hoang Duc Huy Mr. Hoang Duc Hoang Brother 25,989 0.01%
Mr. Hoang Duc Canh Brother 13 0.00%
4 Mr. Nguyen Minh Khoa Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Thu Sister 31 0.00%
5 Mr. Nguyen Van Luan Ms. Nguyen Thi Lai Daughter 517 0.00%
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RISK MANAGEM

&€ 1 order to minimize possible risks in business
operations, the Group has built a strategy of risk
management, which not only guarantees business
objectives but also creates competitive advantage
in order fo ensure the Group's best operation. The
establishment of the functional units such as Internal
Control Division, Legal Division, Valuation Division
and Purchasing Division aim to control the possible
risks and make the positive outcomes in business
operation and supervision of the Group.” 59

In addition, Hoa Sen Group has issued the
flowchart of "Risks Identification and Risks
Assessment Process" for guiding the implementation
of risks identification and risks assessment, thereby
issuing proper control measures to minimize the
possibility of risks, stabilize the business operations
of the Group, and create comfortable workplace for
employees.

RISKS IN BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Identifying: The economic growth rate is a factor that
directly affects the aggregate demand. As the
economy grows, the demand of steel and building
materials products including the demand of Hoa Sen
Group products will also increase. Otherwise, when
the economy goes down, the demand of using steel
and building material products will decline.

Assessing, supervising and managing risks:
Therefore, the Group has always prepared
operational scenarios in order fo actively respond to
any situations to ensure the most efficient business
operations.

- The Group imports the majority of hot rolled coils
(the main raw materials) from foreign countries,
therefore watch and analysis of hot rolled coils’
domestic and international price to select the right
time fo buy with the reasonable price and to limit of
raw material risks that are particularly attended by
the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management.

- The fluctuation of selling price in the market directly
affects Hoa Sen Group’s business activities.
Therefore, the flexible selling price policy in
accordance with the fluctuation of market price is
always considered and adjusted by the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management due to the
market situation at specific time.
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Chart of “Risks Identification and Risks Assessment Process”

RISKS IN PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

Identifying: In production activities, Hoa Sen Group always
focuses on reviewing, improving and standardizing the
consumption norms of raw materials in order to optimize the
products’ cost.

Assessing, supervising and managing risks:

- The Valuation Division and Purchasing Division
co-ordinate and consider in selecting suppliers of the raw
materials which have suitable quality and reasonable price
in order fo minimize the raw material risks. Simultaneously,
the Internal Control Division will recheck all the expenses of
buying raw materials to guarantee the integrity, accuracy
and transparency.

- The Group always has regular and periodic maintenance
and repair schedules so that machinery and equipment are
always in the best condition in order to ensure safe and
efficient operation.

FINANCIAL RISK

Identifying: In production and business activities, the Group
may be subjected to risk of exchange rate, risk of interest

rate, risk of bad debts and risk of liquidity.

Assessing, supervising and managing risks:

- Basing on the export revenue, the Board of Management
balances structure of borrowings in VND and USD to ensure
the lowest average interest rate but still has enough USD to
payback the foreign currency loans. The borrowing structure
is submitted to the Board of Directors to consider and
supervise monthly in order to minimize impact of the risk of
interest rate and the risk of exchange rate.

- For new customers, the Group requires payment guarantee
from bank for delivery. For traditional customers, the Group
issues debt limit for each customer in each period based on
financial situation, collateral, fransaction reputation of each

customer and proposal of sales units. The Board of
Management reviews the debt limit monthly. The sales units
are responsible for collecting the debts on time. The Internal
Control Division inspects, supervises, and reports to the
Board of Management the debts which need to be
collected daily. If bad debts occur, the Legal Division will
implement some measures fo collect the debts including
suing measure.

- The Financial Division creates and reports on schedule of
cash flow weekly so that the Board of Management has
flexible business operating measures in order not to have
overdue payables.

RISKS OF CHANGING POLICY

Identifying: Legal documents in the field of business and
securities have been in the process of improvement so that
changing policy can always happen and they can somehow
affect to management, production, and business activities of
Hoa Sen Group.

Assessing, supervising and managing risks: The Assistant
Board takes responsibility in updating and consulting new
legal documents to minimize risk of changing policy which
can affect directly to production and business activities of the
Group.

OTHER RISKS

Identifying: Other risks include unavoidable risks such as
natural disasters, fires, accidents, etc.

Assessing, supervising and managing risks: The Group
always buys 24/24 accident insurance for all employees
and the asset insurance of the Group.
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ORGANIZATION
AND HUMAN RESOURCES

STRUCTURE BY EDUCATION IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

THE TOTAL EMPLOYEES
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SALARY, BONUS, BENEFITS AND OTHER BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES IN THE FISCAL YEAR

2018 - 2019

SALARY, BONUS, BENEFITS AND OTHER BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

Strictly complying with the provisions of law, the collective
labor agreement was signed to ensure the legitimate rights
and interests of the employees and employers.

In the collective labor agreement, employer is responsible for
solutions of stable production, business development in order
to guarantee labor’s jobs; increase income; fulfill conditions,
policies of employee’s development and training, salary and
welfare; create working environment safety, comfortably, and
labor-oriented benefits.

Employees, on the contrary, have to complete assigned work;
comply with working rules and the Group’s regulations;
propose new ideas applying for business operations; commit
working after training according to sponsored training costs;
compliance strictly labor discipline of safety, hygiene, and fire
prevention.

The agreement was negotiated and signed by the representatives
of employee and employer on the principle of voluntariness,
equality and publicity.

Besides the collective labor agreement, leading to sustainable
development, Hoa Sen Group dalso focuses on building
harmonious relationship between employer and employee as
follows:

® Holding conversations with labor periodically;

e All employees are signed labor contract in accordance with
legislation;

® Reporting business performance periodically;

® Explaining clearly purpose of evaluation and ranking employees;
® Responding to employee’s issues in division meetings;

° All employees are treated equality and protected from any
discrimination in work and career.

Hoa Sen Group commits never employ child labor and forced labor in any circumstance.

SALARY, BONUS, BENEFITS POLICY

® Salary and support policy

- The fiscal year 2018 - 2019 is a challenging economic year
not only for the global economy, Vietnam economy and
construction materials industry in general but also for Hoa Sen
Group in particular. However, the Board of Directors has had
practical and effective solutions to take the Group through the
most difficult times. One of the effective solutions is to
promulgate, amend and supplement a number of salary
policies to suit the business situation in each period to ensure
the income of employees throughout the Group.

- Supports such as support for gasoline, housing,
transportation,  telephone,  branches  under  difficult
circumstances, remote areas, maternity support, efc. are
maintained as before. These are an additional monthly income
that will motivate and help employees work more effectively.

® Insurance and other welfare policy

- Since employees become official employees of the Group,
the social insurance, health insurance and unemployment
insurance are perfomed by the Group in accordance with
government stipulations to ensure all employees receive fully
these types of insurance. Hoa Sen Group has adjusted the
minimum salary for employees in accordance with the
Government's regulations in January 2019. In addition, the
Group has paid 24/24 accident insurance for all employees
(including official employees and probationary employees)
with the maximum coverage of 200,000,000 VND/person.

- In addition to the implementation of flexible salary, bonus
and insurance policies according to legislation, the Group
applies other welfare to employees including: organizing
cultural, arts and sports activities to improve the spiritual life of
employees on anniversaries, building communal canteens
serving daily meals for workers and employees, providing
uniform for employees, fully equipped with labor protection
equipment in accordance with the law; shuttle bus for staff,
supporting for female employees on International Women's
Day and Vietnamese Women's Day, maternity support, support
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for employees when married, support for employees in
mourning...

- In conjunction with the Labor Union, Hoa Sen Group also
cares and takes care of the lives of employees in difficult
circumstances, supporting vehicles to bring employees to their
hometowns to celebrate Tet, giving gifts to employees’ children
every year on the occasion of International Children Day.

- In production and business activities, the Group always
strictly complies with the provisions of law on safety, health
and environmental protection, proactively preventing damage
to people, properties and environment. Specifically, every
year all staffs of the Group and employees joining directly in
production have been well provided with knowledge and
safety skills in production by organizing training courses
relating to safety in production such as first aid, labor safety,
radiation safety, and chemical safety, electric safety, lifting
equipment safety, fire prevention and fighting. In addition,
Hoa Sen Group always takes care of employee’s health and
working safety. In each fiscal year, the Group organizes
periodic health examination and advices effective treatments
depending on examnination’s results in order to ensure
employees working comfortably. The Company has actively
implemented and always complied with the laws of
environmental regulations such as: every year, the Group
promulgates the policy of Quality - Environment and
Occupational Health Safety with the purpose of ensuring
safety in labor production and environmental protection.

- In addition to receiving payment from the Social Insurance
agency or the accident insurance 24/24 as prescribed, the
Group also supports treatment costs, the compensation/
subsidy. Depending on the severity of the occupational
accidents, the Group also has its own supportive policies to
compensate, motivate and to rebuild the labor force for the
employees.

- Worthy fostering policy for employees working in heavy,
hazardous and poor working environment shall also be
implemented in accordance with current regulations.

BUILDING FRIENDLY AND DEVELOPMENT WORKING ENVIRONMENT

- In addition to building appropriate salary, bonus and welfare policies, working environment is also an important factor for
employees to stick with the business. Therefore, Hoa Sen Group always strives to maintain and build a friendly and united
working environment by organizing activities to associate employees with each other as well as between employees and the
Group.

- In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Labor Union in collaboration with Hoa Sen Group organized arts, sports activities to
celebrate the Group's 18" anniversary as follows:

The 1+ prize in the final round of Golden Lotus singing on the 18" anniversary of the establishment of Hoa Sen Group

GIAI BONG DA MINI
s ¢ CUP “LOTUS CHAMPIONS LEAGUE 2019” e g

MU Y 18 NAM NGAY THANH LAP TARMDOAMIIOA SEN

e

e 2]

Mini football championship cup "Lotus Champions League 2019"
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As in previous years, the Group cooperated with Labor Union to give gifts to employee’s children of the International Children's
Day, organized the Mid-Autumn Festival 2019 for Hoa Sen Group's employee’s children.
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Hoa Sen Sports Festival 2019

- On the occasion of the 109th anniversary of International Women's Day (March 8, 1910 - March 8, 2019) and the 89"
anniversary of the founding of Vietham Women's Union (October 20, 1930 — October 20, 2019), the Group offered gifts to
all female employees and also held a warm meeting.

i

Honoring the female managers of the Parent Company on October 20, 2019

Fire and rescue frial operations on October 24, 2019
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RECRUITMENT WORK

-In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, with the core values of "Honesty - Community - Development" and the "10-T" culture,
recruitment in Hoa Sen Group is always closely focused on building and developing high quality human resources to meet
the Group's production and business process.

- Besides looking for young, dynamic and creative human resources through participating in the "Job Fair" program at
Colleges and Universities, the Group also promotes cooperation with reputable recruitment sites and extends online
recruitment channels, in order to proactively build a potential candidate data system. In addition to the traditional interview
format, the Group has conducted online interviews and evaluated candidates through personality analysis, professional
tests, foreign languages, etc, from that, recruiting new qualified employees quickly nationwide.

- Along with the development of information technology and always close to the Group's core values, the recruitment brand
"Hoa Sen Group" is increasingly being interested, trusted and chosen by candidates as a place to stick with and build
career.

TRAINING WORK

- In order to improve the quality of human resources and efficiency in human resource management, in the fiscal year 2018
- 2019 Hoa Sen Group continues to promote training. In addition to regular training courses in accordance with the law,
the Group also regularly organizes skills and professional training courses for current employees as well as development
courses for employees at the Representative Office of the Group, Branches / Stores of Distribution — Sales system and
production units of Subsidiaries / Plants.

- Stand out in this fiscal year with the goal of continuing to build workforce with sufficient knowledge and skills to meet the
requirements of each position at the Branch / Store of the Distribution — Sales System. The Group has promoted the
implementation of training for employees through the typical activities: Reprinting the training document “Standard —
Discipline” to provide self-study materials for new employees to intergrate the environment and jobs at the Branch / Store
in time. Newly creating a set of training clips and videos for current employees, to make learning more graphic and
attached to real work. Organizing training courses for "Reserve officers, Reserve administrators" to train excellent managers
generation fo meet the job requirements for appointment to the position of Head of Distribution — Sales System.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

HOA SEN GROUP’S
SUBSIDIARIES IN THE SOUTH
SUBSIDIARY AND PLANT

® Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Sheet Plant

® Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member
Limited Liabilities Company

¢ Hoa Sen Building Materials One Member
Limited Liabilities Company

¢ Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited
Liabilities Company

® Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One Member Limited
Liabilities Company

® Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One
Member Limited Liabilities Company
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HOA SEN PHU MY STEEL SHEET PLANT
BRANCH OF HOA SEN GROUP

HOA SEN STEEL SHEET ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

|
Tt

[
|
5 =i

B

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address Street No.1B, Phu My | Industrial Park, Phu My Town, Tan Thanh GENERAL INFORMATION
District, Ba Ria — Vung Tau Province Address No. 9 Thong Nhat Boulevard, Song Than Il Industrial Park, Di An Ward,
Telephone (0254) 3 924 790 — Fax: (0254) 3 924 795 Di An Town, Binh Duong Province
Business Registration No. 3700381324-095 issued by the Department of Planning and Telephone (0274) 3 737 200 - Fax: (0274) 3 737 904
amendment was on August 3¢, 2016. . o ™ . i : .
i - Business Registration Certificate No. 3700763651 issued by the Department of Planning and Investing of Binh Duong
legal Representative Mr. PHAM VAN CHUNG Province on December 24", 2007. The 9" amended was on September 26, 2018
Business Activities Producing galvanized steel sheet, aluminum-zinc alloy coated steel sheet, Legal representafive Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Chairman
pre-painted galvanized steel sheet and other alloy coated steel. .
Producing cold rolled coils and hot rolled coils Director Mr. NGUYEN TAN HOA
Hoa Sen Group owns 100% Business activities Production of cold rolled coils, mechanical processing, handling and metal coating.
Hoa Sen Group owns 100%
INTRODUCTION

- Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Sheet Plant was established on July 19", 2010 on
the area of 16.7 hectares including workshops, office, 110kV transformer

station, waste water treatment and water recycling system. Moreover, the HOA SEN PHU MY STEEL SHEET PLANT INTRODUCTION
plant which is vertically integrated value chain and applies the most IS ONE OF THE LARGEST PLANTS IN
modern technology in steel industry in Vietnam was invested with the SOUTH EAST ASIA - Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member Limited Liabilities
lowest capital expenditure and constructed in the shortest time yet keep the :
|. fptlh Xpt lt.U u | ! Y p 'Compcny was esfcbhshe.d on NOVember Q?h 20] 6 (preCUrSOIr PUTTING COLD ROLLING LINE INTO OPERATION
qUCl ”y o € consirucrion 1S HOG Sen Sfee| Sheet J0|nf Stock Compony). The Compony S CREATED AN IMPORTANT LINK ON THE CHAIN OF
rincipal activities are manufacturing and trading cold rolled ,
- Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Sheet Plant is one of the largest plants in South Eo'ls ﬁ-s the first subsidiary of HoagSen Gro ¢ THE GROUP’S CORE COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES
East Asia with the total capacity of 1.200.000 tons/year. WITH THE TOTAL CAPACITY OF CI) : Dl bl 2:"‘ I2(|)O; i up. " AND SUPPLIED THE MAJORITY OF INPUT MATERIALS
o o Zecember 22 + 1he Lompany was renamed 1o FOR GALVANIZING LINE AND STEEL PIPE LINES OF
Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member Limited Liabilities HOA SEN GROUP.
Company.
- On December 27, 2012, it established the first branch with CHARTER CAPITAL
, , the name of Branch Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member
TONS/YEAR Limite.d Liabilities .Con?por)y - Phu My Cold Rolling Mill.
- Putting cold rolling line into operation created an important
link on the chain of the Group’s core competitive advantages
and supplied the majority of input materials for galvanizing BILLIONS VND

line and steel pipe lines of Hoa Sen Group.
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HOA SEN BUILDING MATERIALS ONE
MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address 2B Street, Phu My | Industrial Park, Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District,
Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province
Telephone (0254) 3 923 231 - Fax: (0254) 3 923 230

Charter capital

Business Registration Certificate

VND 150,000,000,000 (One hundred and fifty billion VND)
No. 3500786179 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment

of Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province on December 18", 2007. The 12*
amended was on September 08, 2018

Legal representative

Business activities

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Chairman
Director Mr. CAO QUANG SANG

Manufacturing and trading building material products including billet strip, galvanized steel

pipes, truss bar, hollow bar, batten bar, plastic pipes and accessories uPVC, solvent cement for
uPVC pipes, Hoa Sen HDPE and PPR pipes.

Hoa Sen Group owns 100%

WITH THE AIM OF BECOMING THE LEADING MANUFACTURER - SUPPLIER OF STEEL PIPES, PLASTIC PIPES AND BUILDING

MATERIALS IN VIETNAM AND SOUTH EAST ASIA REGION, HOA SEN BUILDING MATERIALS ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES
COMPANY DEPLOYED THE INVESTMENT PLAN PARTIALLY AND SUCCESSFULLY DEVELOPED FOR THE PAST FEW YEARS.

INTROUCTION

Hoa Sen Building Materials One Member Limited Liabilities Company
is an subsidiary of Hoa Sen Group and was established on December
18th, 2007 with the initial charter capital of VND 150 billion. The head
office and main factories are located in the area of 10.8 hectares at Phu
My I Industrial Park, Ba Ria — Vung Tau Province. It is in charge of
producing — supplying the core products of Hoa Sen Group as billet
strip, galvanized steel pipes, plastic pipes, accessories, solvent cement
for UPVC, Hoa Sen HDPE and PPR pipes, ect.

Up to now, the Company has put info operation the Slitting Plant with
modern production lines with a total capacity of nearly 600,000 tons /
year; Hoa Sen Phu My Steel Pipe Plant with 23 production lines, total
capacity of over 350,000 tons / year; Hoa Sen Phu My Plastic Plant
with: 25 uPVC plastic pipe production lines, capacity of 50,000 tons /
year; 33 plasfic pipe accessories production lines, capacity of 3,600
tons / year; 3 HDPE and PRR production lines with a capacity of 6,000
tons / year; 2 production lines of electric conduits and elasfic conduit
(coils), capacity of 1,360 tons / year. Accordingly, the production
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systems are operated automatically with the closed production
process and managed strictly according to international quality
standards.

Under the prudent business strategy, the products of the
company is gradually acknowledged by customers and widely
used in healthcare, food, industry, ftelecommunication,
construction, drainage and other civil area. They are
infroduced fo the customers by the Group's distribution
channels as the retail distribution network, wholesaler network,
agents, nationwide construction and the export to other
countries.

- With all achievements, the company endevours continuously
to satisfy consumers with high quality products, to response
timely the demands of quantity and service and to be one of the
leading manufacturer — supplier of building materials in both
domestic and Asia-Pacific region in the future.

HOA SEN PHU MY ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address 1A Street, Phu My [ Industrial Park, Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District,
Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, Vietnam
Telephone (0254) 3 890222

Charter capital VND 250,000,000,000 (Two hundred fifty billion VND)

No. 3502313442 issued by the Department of Planning and

Business Registration

Certificate Investment of Ba Ria — Vung Tau on August 8", 2016.
Legel Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Chairman
representative
Director Mr NGUYEN VAN TRUONG
Business activities Manufacturing hot dip galvanized steel pipes.
Hoa Sen Group owns 100%
INTRODUCTION

- Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liabilies Company is a
subsidiary of Hoa Sen Group that was established on August 8", 2016
with the initial charfer capital of 250 billion VND. The head office and
plants are located in an area of 5.3 hectares at Phu My | Industrial Park,
Phu My Ward, Phu My Town, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province

- Hoa Sen Phu My Company plays the role of manufacturing — supplying
the key product of Hoa Sen Group as the hotdip galvanized steel pipes
with the capacity for the first phase of 85,000 tons/year. The hotdip
galvanized steel pipes plant is expected to be in operation in the early
2018 and provide high quality products to the consumers, enhancing the
production capacity of the Group.

THE CAPACITY FOR
THE FIRST PHASE OF

35,000

TONS/YEAR
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HOA SEN BINH DINH ONE MEMBER
LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

HOA SEN NHON HOI - BINH DINH
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address Lot A1.1 and TT 6.2&7, Nhon Hoa Industrial Park, Nhon Hoa Ward,
An Nhon Town, Binh Dinh Province

Telephone

(0256) 3 738 991

Charter Capital

VND 105,000,000,000 (One hundred and five billion VND)

Legal Representative

Mr. HO THANH HIEU - Chairman

Director Mr. LE XUAN PHONG

Business Activities

pipes, plastic pipes and accessories

Manufacturing building materials including steel pipes, galvanized steel

Hoa Sen Group owns 100%

INTRODUCTION

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One Member Limited
Liabilites Company is a Hoa Sen
Group's subsidiary established on May
14h, 2014 with 105 billion VND in
charter capital. The company operation
is under control of Hoa Sen Group in
capital, brand, retailer and core
competitive advantages

The company was invested with modern
technology in production in Nhon Hoa
Industrial Park, An Nhon Town, Binh
Dinh Province with total area of 8.3
hectares. Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One
Member Limited Liabilities Company
plays important role on boosting steel
pipes and plastic pipes supply to Central
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region market and export to Laos,
Thailand, ...

In order to implement expanding
plan of supply network as well as
increase production capacity to
response the demand of steel pipe
increasingly in Central market, on
December 2014, the company put
into operation the steel pipes plant,
including @ steel pipe lines with the
most advanced technology.

In January 2016, the uPVC plastic
pipe plant with capacity of 12,000
tons/year was officially into
operation and yields the high
quality plastic products in response

to the demand of the Central and
Western Highlands markets.

- By applying advanced technology,
strict quality management process
and inquiring mind, Hoa Sen Binh
Dinh One Member Limited Liabilities
Company commits to bring solely
high quality products to customers
as deserving of Vietnam Value
award.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address Nhon Hoi B Industrial Park, Hoi Son Hamlet, Nhon Hoi Commune, Quy Nhon City, Binh
Dinh Province, Vietnam

Telephone

(0256) 222 0001

Charter capital

VND 770,000,000,000 (Seven hundred and seventy billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4101453370 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh Dinh
Province on November 26", 2015. The 4" amendment was on May 22, 2018

Legal representative

Mr. HO THANH HIEU — Chairman

Director Mr. TRUONG TAN DAT

Business activities

Manufacturing roofing sheets made of galvanized steel, aluminum zinc alloy steel, pre -

painted galvanized steel and other alloys; Manufacturing steel pipes, galvanized steel
pipes, steel pipes coated with other alloys; Manufacturing galvanized wire mesh,
galvanized steel wire, steel wire of all kinds; Manufacturing stainless steel and inox.

Hoa Sen Group owns 100%

INTRODUCTION

- Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One
Member Limited Liabilities Company is one
of the subsidiaries of Hoa Sen Group,
established on November 26, 2015. As of
September 30, 2018, the total area of the
entire Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant is
218,481.54 m?, located in Nhon Hoi B
Industrial Park, Hoi Son Hamlet, Nhon Hoi
Commune, Quy Nhon City, Binh Dinh
Province, Vietnam.

- The plant is invested in a modern
machinery and  equipment  system,
specializing in producing Hoa Sen steel,
steel sheet products, applied in the fields of
construction, civil, ...

- Under the direction of the Board of
Directors, Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh
Steel Plant Project is in the process of
completing the second phase, which is

expected to complete all items by the
end of 2018, increasing the tofal
production and supply capacity of the
Group to over 40,000 tons / month
with 01 Pickling Line, capacity of
800,000 tons / year, 01 Cold Rolling
Line with a capacity of 350,000 tons /
year, 02 Galvanizing / Aluminium
Zinc Coating Lines with total capacity
of 430,000 tons / year, 02 Color
Coating Lines with total capacity of
195,000 tons / vyear, O1 Acid
Regeneration Line with a capacity of
5,000 liters / hour and more than
6,000 tons of metal oxide / year.
Besides, there are other auxiliary items.
- With the strong investment of modern
production lines, machinery and
equipment along with the orientation to

take quality as a prerequisite to
increase  the competitiveness  of
products, the plant has met the
demand for consumption at Central
and Central Highlands markets. Not
only stopping in the domestic market,
on May 8, 2018, for the first time,
Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh Plant
exported about 12 million USD of
shipment to Europe to mark a new
development step in the export
operation of the plant, contributing a
part of Hoa Sen Group's output in the
international market, affirming the
capacity of the plant's production
lines that can meet the strict
requirements of the customers both in
the domestic and international
market.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND

AFFILIATED COMPANIES

HOA SEN GROUP’S
SUBSIDIARIES IN THE

e Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company
® Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company

® Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One Member Limited

Liabilities. Company
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HOA SEN NGHE AN ONE MEMBER
LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address Lot CN 1-8, Dong Hoi Industrial Park, Quynh Lap Commune, Hoang Mai Town, Nghe An
Province, Vietnam
Telephone (0238) 3 668 112
Charter capital VND 1,100,000,000,000 (One thousand one hundred billion VND)
Business Registration No. 2901788319 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Nghe An
Certificate Province on June 12", 2015. The 8" amendment was on June 12, 2018
Legal representative Mr. VU VAN THANH - Chairman
Director Mr. NGUYEN MINH PHUC
Business activities Producing roof plate by galvanized steel sheet, aluminum-zinc alloy coated steel sheet,
pre-painted galvanized steel sheet and other alloy coated steel, cold rolled coils.
Hoa Sen Group owns 100%
INTRODUCTION

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited
Liabilites Company - one of Hoa Sen
Group subsidiaries, was established on
June 12%, 2015. The head office and main
factory are located in Lot CN 1-8, Dong
Hoi Industrial Park, Quynh Lap Commune,
Hoang Mai Town, Nghe An Province.
Business activities: Producing roof plate by
galvanized steel sheet, aluminum-zinc alloy
coated steel sheet, pre-painted galvanized
steel sheet and other alloy coated steel,
cold rolled coils.

On June 19, 2015, Hoa Sen Nghe An One
Member Limited Liabiliies Company
officially started Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant
Project with a total capacity of production
lines up to O1 million tons of products per
year on a land area of 45 hectare. Total
investment capital of the project is VND
7,000 billion. The project is divided into 3

phases and implemented within 36 months.

Up to the present time, Hoa Sen Nghe An

Plant Project has basically completed
the stages of the closed production
process from raw materials of hot
rolled steel to output products of steel -
steel sheet, increasing the total
production and supply capacity of the
Company to over 80,000 tons of
products / month with O1 Pickling
line, capacity of 800,000 tons / year,
02 Cold rolling lines with total
capacity of 800,000 tons / year, 03
NOF coating line with a total capacity
of 1,000,000 tons / year, 02 Color
coating lines with a total capacity of
240,000 tons / year, 02 Slitting lines
with a capacity of 200,000 tons /
year, O1 Triming line with a capacity
of 400,000 tons / year , 01 Acid
regeneration line with a capacity of
5,000 liters/hour and other auxiliary items.
Putting the production lines into
operation timely has met the demand

in the North Central market. Hoa
Sen products are also present in
some countries that are considered
"most difficult" about product quality
requirements such as America,
Europe and India... with total export
volume reaching from average
15,000 to 20,000 tons / month.

In parallel with the completion of the
closed production process, Hoa Sen
Nghe An constantly invests in
improving modern technology to
bring the best quality products,
reduce raw materials consumption,
reduce costs. At the same time, the
standard system of product quality,
environment and health has been
deployed by Hoa Sen Nghe An,
contributing to  help Hoa Sen
products affirm its solid position in
the international market.
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TOTAL CAPACITY OF

HOA SEN HA NAM ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

300,000

TONS / YEAR

BRANCH OF HOA SEN NGHE AN ONE MEMBER
LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY AT NAM CAM

CONG TY TNRH Wi

onen DA SEN NAM CAM NGH: AN

PC: KHU C-KCN NAM CAM - NGH) Kh-
{7+038.379.8668 . -

VG L - WGHE B
caxLR e B

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address

Nam Cam Industrial Park, Nghi Xa Commune, Nghi Loc District, Nghe An Province

Telephone

(0238) 3 798 555

Business Registration
Certification

No. 2901788319-001 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Nghe An
Province on September 28, 2016, first amended on October 11, 2017

Director

Mr. DAU DINH THUC

Business activities

Manufacturing steel pipes, galvanized steel pipes and other alloy coated
steel pipes; manufacturing steel purlins, galvanized purlins.

INTRODUCTION

Branch of Hoa Sen Nghe An One By investing advanced technology and
Member Limited Liabilities Company at tight control from the input materials to
Nam Cam (precursor is Hoa Sen Nam the output finished products to meet the
Cam - Nghe An One Member Limited international quality standards as
Liabilities Company) officially put into  ASTM500  (U.S
operation 6 steel pipes lines with total 3444:2010 (Japanese standard), the
capacity of 82,800 tons/year in April steel pipes products are expected to
2015, which boosted the production increase their competitiveness in both
capacity and the supplying potentiality of domestic and foreign markets.

all Hoa Sen plants in particular as well as

the North and Central regions in general.
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TOTAL CAPACITY OF

standard),  JIS

32,300

TONS/YEAR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address Thanh Liem Industrial Zone, Kien Khe Town, Thanh Liem District, Ha Nam Province
Telephone (0226) 3 777 555
Charter Capital 200,000,000,000 (Two hundred billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 0700759219 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ha Nam
Province on September 15", 2015, the 1 amended on March 11, 2016

Legal Representative

Mr. VU VAN THANH — Chairman

Director

Mr. NGUYEN VAN SAM

Business activities

Manufacturing galvanized steel pipes, steel strips, HDPE, PPR, uPVC plastic pipes,

plastic accessories and plastic pipe adhesives

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

INTRODUCTION

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited
Liabilities Company was established on
September 15", 2015 with the charter
capital of 200 billion VND. The main
office and plant are located in a 20.4
hectare area on Kien Khe | Industrial
Zone, Ha Nam Province.

Hoa Sen Ha Nam plant is a key project
of the expanding productivity plan of
Hoa Sen Group. The plan is to assert
Hoa Sen position in domestic market by
consolidating the Southern market and
advancing to the Northern one.

Hoa Sen Ha Nam Plant Project is one of
the key projects in order to expand
production of Hoa Sen Group. This is
one of the key strategies of Hoa Sen
Group. The construction of Hoa Sen Ha
Nam Plant will contribute to improve
production capacity and optimize the

ability of Hoa Sen Group to supply
steel pipes and plastic pipes,
especially meeting market demand in
the North.

The upgrade of Hoa Sen Ha Nam
plant will contribute to improve the
productivity, maximize the supply
capacity of the steel pipes and plastic
pipes fo reach the demand of the
Northern market. In addition, the
enhancement of the producing
system as well as the distribution and
retail network enables Hoa Sen
Group’s  products  reach  the
customers more conveniently.

The company is now in charge of
manufacturing — supplying the main
products of the Group as galvanized
steel pipes, plastic pipes, solvent
cement for PVC pipes, HDPE pipes,

PPR pipes and other Hoa Sen
accessories. The finished product
must be satisfied the 4 requirements
“international  standard  quality,
reasonable price, fast delivery and
excellent aftersale service” along
with 04 commitments “Right price,
Right Standard, Right  Quality,
Warranty”.
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HOA SEN YEN BAI BUILDING MATERIALS
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Address

Dong Danh Commune, Minh Quan Village, Tran Yen District, Yen Bai Province

Telephone

(0216) 2220 789

Charter capital

VND 50,000,000,000 (Fifty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 5200870602 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Yen Bai
Province on January 6, 2017, the O1st amended on April 02, 2018.

Legal representative

Mr. VU VAN THANH - Chairman

Director

Mr. LE VAN PHUOC

Business activities

Manufacturing steel products as: black steel pipes, galvanized steel pipes/

aluminum-zinc alloy coated steel pipes...

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

INTRODUCTION

- Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials
One  Member Limited Liabilities
Company is the investor of Hoa Sen Yen
Bai plant project, which started on
March 1st, 2017 at Dong Danh Hamlet,
Minh Quan Commune, Tran Yen District,
Yen Bai Province (next to IC12
infersection of Noi Bai - lao Cai
highway). This is the first plant of Hoa
Sen Group in the North West region.

- The plant is invested with modern
equipment and advanced technology
that specialized in producing the
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galvanized steel pipes, which have
civil  and  construction  work
application.

In  December 2017, the plant
completed Phase 1 and officially put
info operation 6 steel pipe lines with
the capacity of 80,200 tons/year.
This should help Hoa Sen Group
improve their productiveness and
attain the market demand in the
North West region, which is in line
with the growing strategy of Hoa Sen
Group

SUBSIDIARIES FOR

NINH THUAN PROJECTS

HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN INTEGRATED IRON AND STEEL
COMPLEX INVESTMENT ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

Address Hoa Sen Ca Na Industrial Park, Phuoc Diem Commune, Thuan Nam
District, Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (028) 399920111

Charter capital

VND 100,000,000,000 (One hundred billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500607953 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh
Thuan Province on August 8", 2016. The first amendment was on September
21,2016

Legal representative

Mr. LE PHUOC VU - Chairman

Business activities

Producing iron, steel, cast iron. Details:

- Manufacturing, processing metalllurgical products, casting and manufacturing
iron & steel, section steel and steel wire, 2" processing steel, machinery steel.
- Manufacturing, processing other steel products

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN INDUSTRIAL PARK INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTMENT ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

Address Hoa Sen Ca Na Industrial Park, Phuoc Diem Commune, Thuan Nam
District, Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (028) 3992 0111

Charter capital

VND 50,000,000,000 (Fifty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500607953 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of
Ninh Thuan Province on August 8", 2016. The first amendment was on
September 21+, 2016

Legal representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU — Chairman

Business activities

Trading real estate and land use right belong to owner, user or leaseholder

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN INTERNATIONAL GENERAL
SEAPORT ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

Address Thuong Diem 2 Hamlet, Phuoc Diem Commune, Thuan Nam District,
Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (028) 39990111

Charter capital

VND 50,000,000,000 (Fifty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500607985 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh
Thuan Province on August 8", 2016. The first amendment was on September
214, 2016

Legal representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU — Chairman

Business activities

Domestic carriage of goods by waterway (operate only when the
conditions are in comformity with legislation
Details: river and sea port investment

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%
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HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN RENEWABLE ENERGY
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

Address Hoa Sen Ca Na Industrial Park, Phuoc Diem Commune, Thuan Nam
District, Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (028) 39990111

Charter capital

VND 20,000,000,000 (Twenty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500607960 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh
Thuan Province on August 8", 2016. The first amendment was on September

214, 2016

Legal representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU — Chairman

Business activities

Producing, transmitting and distributing electricity

Details: construct, install and operate the solar power and wind power plant;
manage the producing, transmitting and distrubuting electricity system; invest the
power project; control, maintain and upgrade the devices of the system, electricity
experiment.

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

HOA SEN CA NA - NINH THUAN CEMENT
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITIES COMPANY

Address Hoa Sen Ca Na Industrial Park, Phuoc Diem Commune, Thuan Nam
District, Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (028) 39990111

Charter capital

VND 30,000,000,000 (Thirty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500607946 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh
Thuan Province on August 8", 2016. The first amendment was on September

21,2016

Legal representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU — Chairman

Business activities

Producing cement, lime and plaster.
Manufacturing and producing blast furnace cement and other kinds of cement.

Hoa Sen Group owns

100%

HOA SEN DU LONG INDUSTRIAL PARK INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address No.4 Phan Dinh Giot Street, My Hai Ward, Phan Rang — Thap Cham
City, Ninh Thuan Province
Telephone (0259) 3 833 969

Charter capital

VND 47,080,240,000 (Forty seven billion eighty million two hundred
and forty thousand VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4500272658 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ninh
Thuan Province. The 04" amendment was on April 06, 2018

Legal representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU — Chairman of the Board of Directors

Business activities

Trading real estate and land use right belong to owner, user or leaseholder

Detail:

- House trading (except receiving the land use right for investment of the infrastructure
construction according to the housing construction plan to change the right)

- Office and storage leasing in the industrial zone

- Buoys and anchors trading

- Industrial park infrastructure trading, real estate trading

Hoa Sen Group owns

95%
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SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATED COMPANIES FOR
HOTEL - REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT PROJECTS

HOA SEN YEN BAI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address

Group 48, Dong Tam Ward, Yen Bai City, Yen Bai Province

Charter Capital

120,000,000,000 (One hundred twenty billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 5200861319 issued by Department of Planning and Investment of Yen Bai
Province on May 5, 2016. Amended on December 22, 2016

Legal Representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director

Mr. TRAN QUOC PHAM

Business activities

Trading real estate, land use right belongs to owner, user or leaseholder
Details: office leasing, house trading

Hoa Sen Group owns

95%

HOA SEN QUY NHON JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address No. 01 Ngo May Street, Nguy Van Cu Ward, Quy Nhon City, Binh Dinh Province
Telephone 0905.117.106
Charter Capital 100,000,000,000 (One hundred billion VND)

Business Registration
Certificate

No. 4101464326 issued by Department of Planning and Investment of Binh Dinh
Province on May 5, 2016. Amended on June 1, 2016

Legal Representative

Mr. TRAN NGOC CHU - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director

Mr. LE XUAN PHONG

Business activities

Trading real estate and land use right belong to owner, user or leaseholder. Details: office
leasing, house trading, tourism areaq, river port and sea port investment and trading
Office leasing. Details: Office leasing, house trading, tourism area, river port and sea
port investment and trading

Hoa Sen Group owns

99%
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BRANCH SYSTEM OF
HOA SEN GROUP

BRANCHES & STORES
IN THE COUNTRY

THE NATIONWIDE DISTRIBUTION-RETAIL
BRANCHES ARE INDISPENSABLE FOUNDATION
OF IMPLEMENTING THE STRATEGY OF
“BUYING DIRECTLY FROM PRODUCERS AND
SELLING DIRECTLY TO END-USERS”.

-
-

Hoang Sa ."

-

”
Truong Sa = & ™ °
- 3

For details of Distribution System, please refer to Hoa Sen Group's website: : 1
|

https://www.hoasengroup.vn/vi/kenh-phan-phoi 1 |
| CORPORATE GOVM 5
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USTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT REPORT

COMMUNITY COHESION
SUBSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

ﬁﬁ WITHIN 18 YEARS OF ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT WITH THE MISSION:
"PROVIDING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES WITH HOA SEN BRAND, ENSURING
INTERNATIONAL QUALITY, REASONABLE PRICES, DIVERSE MODELS, ENVIRONMENTALLY
FRIENDLY PRODUCTS; MEETING CONSUMER DEMAND, CONTRIBUTING TO CHANGE THE
COUNTRY'S ARCHITECTURAL STYLE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT; CONSTANTLY
INNOVATE AND DEVELOP TO AFFIRM THE STATURE AND MISSION OF A DYNAMIC
VIETNAMESE BUSINESS, INNOVATIVE, PIONEERING IN BOTH BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY
ACTIVITIES, ACHIEVING A HIGH POSITION IN THE INTERNATIONAL MARKET”. 99
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OVERVIEW OF
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT HOA SEN GROUP DEFINES THAT THE GROUP SUCCESSES SUSTAINABLE

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY WHEN COMBINING ECONOMIC GROWTH
TARGETS WITH PERFORMING SOCIAL, COMMUNITY, AND ENVIRONMENT'S
RESPONSIBILITY. AT THE SAME TIME, ALL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP ALWAYS
NSURE THE BALANCE OF INTERESTS AMONG RELATED PARTIES TO IMPLEMENT
ONG-TERM  STRATEGY OF HOA SEN GROUP'S SUSTAINABLE

The steel industry is one of the few industries to implement the Global Sustainable Development

Report. The first sustainable development report of the steel industry was issued in 2004 and is

maintained annually on the basis of a set performance indicators on environmental, social and ' DEVELOP L.

economic performance. Global sustainable development report is one of the major efforts under-

taken by the steel industry o manage its performance, demonstrating its commitment to sustainabil-

ity and increasing transparency.

(According to the report of the World Steel Association)
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to related parties in order to overview on building Sustaln
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at affect the Group’s business areas, then basi
eliminating unaffected issues.

[

managing and controlling
and present fully essential
d by related parties.

d its subsidiaries. The
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ent.
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METHOD O pproach the sustainable development issues of Hoa Sen Group comes from
SUSTAINABLE s, k arget in long term combine with fargets of social development environment
ibuting positively to general development of society.

ainable development target are considered by Hoa Sen Group in
ons, defermining materiality issues fo improve contents and present
eport in the fiscal year 2018 — 2019.

The issues that re
relationship wit
fully in sustainable

COVERAGE OF The able development repo

SUSTAINABLE s gchieved by Hoa Sen Group and ifs st
DEVELOPMENT REPORT -

performed in Vietnam and in steel production sector
aries and associates.

CONTACT With orientation of sustainable development, Hoa Sen GrouM {o respond to related
parties basing on foundation of transparency information, sustainable growth in business, social
responsibility. Hoa Sen Group welcomes all your feedback. Please send us any suggestion related
to sustainable development report via:

- Website: http://www.hoasengroup.vn

- Telephone: 028 3823 9555

- Email: gopy@hoasengroup.vn
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SUSTAINABLE RELATIONSHIP
WITH RELATED PARTIES

CUSTOMERS

»

COMMUNITY

|
4

PRESS

|
REGULATORY ¢
AUTHORITY

SUPPLIERS

CUSTOMERS

e Focusing on enhancement of products’ quality, and expanding
retail distribution network continuously to provide the best products
and services to customers.

® Basing on “The customers’ satisfaction to measure the Group's
success”, each employee has to care and hear customers’ needs
respectfully, and to satisfy them in interactive process.

e Performing thankful activities to customers through customer
conferences, promotional programs, and persuasive aftersale
activities.

e Complying fully with the regulations in domestic and foreign
markets; establishing competitive and reasonable price policy to
ensure the benefits between consumers and enterprise, efc.

e Protecting positively consumers by various methods of
communication to identify fake products - genuine products, to help
consumers avoid of trading fraud, and to be consistent with guideline
“Customers’ benefit is the key”.
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SHAREHOLDERS,

EMPLOYEES

SHAREHOLDERS, INVESTORS

e Ensuring to fulfill information disclosure in accordance with regulations
of the Ministry of Finance in order to provide timely information to
shareholders, investors and transparency in business operations.

e Publishing positively important information that might effect to benefits
as well as decision making of investors and to help stakeholders to watch
the Group's activities.

¢ Organizing regularly open conferences to help investors to have
overview of business operations and development strategy in the
following period including annual and extraordinary general meeting,
customer conferences, meetings with indigenous and foreign investors.

e Exchanging information has to be fair to assure opportunity investments
to all investors.

¢ Do not disclosure information of investors, shareholders without their
permission or public authorities’ request.

EMPLOYEES

e Realizing that human resource is the core of development, Hoa Sen
Group always apply benefit policies and build friendly, solidarity working
environment for all employees.

® Maintaining employees’ income is always higher than the average
income of labor market and conforms to the Group’s business situation.

® Researching and amending some policies of salary, bonus, allowance
clearly and fairly to satisfy to employees’ attempts and performance.

e Ensuring benefits, rights and job safety to employees in accordance with
regulations as well as objecting all kinds of working enforcement.

® Hoa Sen Group’s administration is based on employees’ respect
including their decision, desire, freedom and other legal rights.

COMPETITORS

* Maintaining relationships with competitors respectfully and constantly
learning from their successes.

e Avoiding any harmful action to competitors and recognizing their
success based on “The best company is the winner”.

¢ Undertaking fairly competition, preventing collusive activities or any
action fo rule the market, and rejecting to achieve competitors’ confident
information.

¢ Responding flexibly to critical competition, basing on the top factors in
consistent business principle: integrity, quality, prestige and brand name.
¢ Complying Monopolies Act, Competition Act to ensure fairly openly
competition.
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SUPPLIERS

e Suppliers play important role to the Group’s success, therefore Hoa Sen
Group always believe in relationship with suppliers.

® Do not take advantage of the business scale to propose any
unreasonable agreement to suppliers, and especially prohibit all
behaviors of self-interest, dishonesty, bribetaking of Hoa Sen Group's
employees. This is presented as musthave article in all contracts between
Hoa Sen Group and suppliers.

e Selecting supplier equally based on their profile of quality, technical
capacity, experience, efc.

* Do not leak any suppliers’ privacy information to their competitors.

REGULATORY AUTHORITY

e Complying rigorous all regulations of tax, environment, labor safety, efc.

e Strengthening positive relationship to Government, Ministries and
Departments but do not benefit from these relations to achieve unrighteous
interests.

e Associating closely to local government in process of constructing
factories, completing all phases of investment timely, contributing to the
state budget and creating jobs for local labor.

* Pointing unreasonable article in the process of applying government’s
regulations and policies, proposing adjustments to help public authorities
to govern the country effectively.

PRESS

* Building good relationship with communication department, press, and
television based on the principles of equality, transparency and legal.

¢ All message, information are provided correctly, clearly, fully and objec-
tively in order to help press to understand precisely Hoa Sen Group's
business operations and its retail distribution network, promotional
programs, etc.

* Handling communication problems with strategic behavior, skillful
speaking and criterion in respond of objection and argument.

e Publishing recommendation of fake steel situation to help press to
communicate timely to customers.

COMMUNITY

® Hoa Sen Group is one of vanguard group performing CSR (Corporate
Social Responsibility). The Group always put social responsibility on top in
sustainable development strategy.

e Committing environment factor over the development, minimizing
impact to environment during the expansion and operation of production
projects.

e Affirming working spirit with all conscience and responsibility for not
only protecting environment but also contributing in growth of social and
country.

e Performing continuously charity activities and sponsor programs to build
a development community.

® By well support to the social, Hoa Sen Group has marked deeply in
consumers’ minds as enterprise with consciousness, social responsibility,
bringing best values to the community.
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ACQUISITION OF RELATED
PARTIES’ FEEDBACK

With guideline of declaration and transparency in every
activity, since it was established, Hoa Sen Group has built
sustainable relationship with related parties in accordance
with core values “Integrity — Community — Development”
directing to bring longterm value chain to each party. Hoa
Sen Group also unites to select important representative from
related parties to summarize concerned issues, to focus on
consultancy of related issues that affect directly to Hoa Sen
Group's sustainable development. In addition, practical
solutions and strategic development orientation are raised to
boost establishing process of management method as well as
perfecting Hoa Sen Group's operation structure.
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RELATED PARTY

APPROACH

Customer With the aim to bring the best utility for customers, Hoa Sen Group is the pioneer in the building
materials industry in Vietnam to implement the online purchase on its official website
www.hoasengroup.vn. On the website, local customers and importers can find all information on the
products, select the nearest branch/retail store to place retail orders or commercial orders with large
volume. In particular, the form of online chat and Call center 18001515 will advise on specific types
of products that meet the demands as well as support and answer all customer’s questions.

Other approach channels:

e Email gopy@hoasengroup.vn, mail group of related departments;

e Update frequently important information to social networks, website;
 Hold exhibition, conference, seminar, and meeting.

Employee e Periodically conducting the Labor Union Congress and Hoa Sen Group Employees' Conference;
® Meeting to labor union
® Survey employee’s opinions to labor safety, working environment, policies, welfare, etc. via email,
telephone, social network;

e Hold internal training programs;

e Hold internal activities such as music performance, sports, union activities, efc.

e Interactive channel between Hoa Sen Group labor union and employees is via group mail
congdoan@hoasengroup.vn

Partner e Privacy meetings
e Receiving and resolving issues via email, telephone, fax, etc.

e Public and transparency financial statements, business policy documents, regulations on bidding, efc.
* Participating exhibitions, economic forums (VietBuild Exhibition, Vnrea Expo, the leading international
exhibition on water supply and drainage sector - Viet Water, Vietnam private economic forum...)

¢ Organizing programs to enhance relationships with partners.

Shareholder - Monthly, quarterly, on-demand meetings

Investor e Receiving and resolving issues via email, telephone, fax, etc...

e Holding Annual General Meeting, periodic and extraordinary meetings, posting financial statements
in public

¢ Implementing information disclosure in accordance with regulations of State Securities Commission of
Vietnam and Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange.

e Participating seminar, annual forum of steel industry to share information and take opportunity of
investment expanding.

® In 2018, the Group has put into operation the email quanhecodong@hoasengroup.vn to receive and
answer shareholders' opinions and questions related to the Group's operation. Email is publicly
available on the website hoasengroup.vn.

Community e Performing program “Hoa Sen Steel Sheet — School Together” at more than 800 elementary schools in
63 cities across the country and giving hundred thousands of presents and bicycles to poverty but hard
studying pupils
e Responding to blood donation activities, charity activities for poor people; visiting and supporting
families in disaster and flood areas.
¢ Coordinating local government to explore local people’s opinions nearby project area.

Regulatory e Participating actively in organization, association of steel industry;

Authority e Attending conference, seminar of steel industry held by Government, Ministries as a member of
Vietnam Steel Association;

e Complying with legal regulations in all production and business activities.
Press e Implementing public and transparency information disclosure, and interviewing to press offices on

124| ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

communication channels

® Press releasing of Hoa Sen Group’s events and send to communication offices for information
disclosure

¢ Updating frequently important information on the Group’s website and social network

e Performing television programs and implementing information disclosure of significant events on
official communication channels of the Group

MATERIAL ISSUES

DETERMINATION OF
MATERIAL ISSUES

SOCIETY

® Employees

e Safety and Health

® Education and Training
® Local community

ECONOMY

* Investment efficiency

e Research and Development

e Science and Technology Appliance
e Supply Chain

DETERMINATION OF
MATERIAL ISSUES

The Hoa Sen Group’s sustainable development report of
fiscal year 2018 - 2019 is prepared within the fluctuations
of steel industry in Vietnam and international markets with
critical competition. The US-China trade war and the
increasing trend of protecting local businesses of many
countries around the world make the export market meet a
lot of obstacles. Therefore, the report focuses on issues that
could overcome losses from market, and offers efficient
solutions to ensure the Group’s operations are always
sustainable development.

In fiscal year 2018 — 2019, the sustainable development
report is prepared by assessing material issues that relating
economy, social, environment to the Group's operations as
well as satisfying related parties’ demand. Determining
correctly material issues is very important that ensure the
best benefits of related parties. This also is foundation for
fulfilling sustainable development report’s contents in the
following fiscal years.

PROCEDURE TO ASSESS MATERIAL ISSUES

e Examining the level of concern and expectation of related
parties based on demand, performance and feedback
during the Group’s production and trading process,
supply’s process to markets, interaction with related parties.
® Basing on evaluation, infernal control of functional
departments, the Board of Management, in periodic and
extraordinary meetings, approves reports, budget planning
that is suitable to actual development situation in each fiscal
year.

® Approving evaluation minutes, supervision reports of
State authorities.

® Reviewing customer’s evaluation and feedback, consul-
tant organization during cooperation with Hoa Sen Group.
e Considering forecast reports of macroeconomic, domes-
tic and international steel industry issuing by economic
organization, foreign finance institution, etc.

Procedure to assess material issues is prepared by Hoa Sen Group as the following steps:

STRP v = STEP

Basing on evaluation of  Analyzing and
operation and overall

STEP

Determining material
determining the degree issues in relationship

STRP v © STEP

Evaluation of the Board Selecting issues that Hoa
of Management and Sen Group considers

development orientation  of related parties’ between the Group's related internal materiality to

in steel market, Hoa Sen interests to above issues.  operations and its departments to ensure present in the report.
Group outlines major impact to economy, these issues are exact,

issues relating to the social and environment  integrity and

Group's operations and
related parties’ benefits.

transparency
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SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT —
SO LUTIO N s Activities

Optimize Economic
Efficiency

Environment
and Energy

Product
responsibility

Improvements of human
resource, policy,
governance

@ HOA SEN

SOCIETY

e Employees

e Safety and Health
e Education and Training
e Local community

GROUP

=(@) ) EcoNOMY

— ® Investment efficiency
® Research and Development
e Science and Technology Appliance
e Supply Chain
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IMPROVEMENTS OF HUMAN RESOURCE,
POLICY, GOVERNANCE

\

RESPONSIBILITY TO EMPLOYEES
LABOR RELATIONSHIP

Strictly complying with the provisions of law, the collective labor
agreement was signed fo ensure the legitimate rights and
interests of the employees and employers.

In the collective labor agreement, employer is responsible for
solutions of stable production, business development in order to
guarantee labor’s jobs; increase income; fulfill conditions,
policies of employee’s development and training, salary and
welfare; create working environment safety, comfortably, and
labor-oriented benefits.

Employees, on the contrary, have to complete assigned work;
comply with working rules and the Group’s regulations; propose
new ideas applying for business operations; commit working
after training according to sponsored training costs; compliance
strictly labor discipline of safety, hygiene, and fire prevention.
The agreement was negotiated and signed by the
representatives of employee and employer on the principle of
voluntariness, equality and publicity.

Besides the collective labor agreement, leading to sustainable
development, Hoa Sen Group also focuses on building
harmonious relationship between employer and employee as
follows:

*Holding conversations with labor periodically;

° All employees are signed labor contract in accordance with
legislation;

e Reporting business performance periodically;
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eExplaining clearly purpose of evaluation and ranking
employees;

®Responding to employee's issues in division meetings;

¢ All employees are treated equality and protected from any
discrimination in work and career.

Hoa Sen Group commits never employ child labor and forced
labor in any circumstance.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

To ensure health for long-time working of all employees, Hoa Sen
Group always complies tightly legislation of labor safety,
establishes occupational health and safety management system in

accordance with OHSAS 18001:2007 standard.

The State’s regulations as well as the Group's rules regarding to
labor safety and occupational health are informed fully to

employees before entering in production lines.

Employees are prepared qualified personal protective equipment,
insurance and periodic health examination to minimize risks as
well as disease detection and treatment promptly. Compensatory
policy in specific to employees who work in hard, noxious
environment, affected health is realized to current regulations.
Workshop, warehouse, office are prepared automatic fire alarm

system, water spray system, CO2 fire extinguisher, efc.

Each year, the Group holds training courses of labor safety for all
employees in general and production direct employees in
particular. These courses include first aid, radiation safety,
chemical safety, electricity safety, lifting equipment safety, fire

protection, efc.

Workplaces ensure airy and light fully. The elements such as dust,
poison gas, noise, etc. are measured carefully avoiding harm to

environment and labor health.

The Group has set up a Medical team with 24/24 medical staff to
provide first aid, handle emergency situations as well as health

care for employees. At the same time, each production line is
equipped with medical tool cabinets for first aid to ensure the best

health for employees.

LABOR SAFETY ACTIVITIES IN FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019

At the beginning of fiscal year, Hoa Sen Group planned labor protection program for the fiscal year and proceeded statistics,
figured out problems and solutions, avoided occupational accident. As a result, the number of occupational accident in fiscal
year 2018 — 2019 decreased significantly (only 1 minor occupational accidents occurred), at the same time occupational

disease was not realize.

In the fiscal year 2018 — 2019, the company has implemented many measures to ensure labor safety and protect the health

of workers, as follows:

SOLUTION OF TECHNOLOGY

eImplementing shielding, warning in dangerous areas
eInspecting, maintaining machinery and equipment as
planned.

* Adjusting and improving machinery and equipment to
make the workers operate more safely.

eInspecting on time machinery and equipment which have
strict requirement of labor safety.

SOLUTION OF MEDICAL -
HEALTH CARE FOR EMPLOYEE

¢ Organizing periodic medical examinations, occupational
health examination to detect the disease early for timely
treatment.

¢ Implementing noxious compensatory to employees who
work in hard, noxious environment.

e Setting separate medical room at production area which
operates 24/24 to ensure good care for labor’s health.

e Hiring functional division to measure working environment
periodically every year.

* Make the most of natural light. Replacing all lights with
LED lights in order to create a comfortable working environ-
ment, full of light for the workers.

e Regularly check and maintain toilets to serve the needs of
workers.

® Regularly clean the workshops, arrange neat supplies and
goods to ensure a clear and clean environment for workers.
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SOLUTION OF PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENTS

*Depending on working environment, all positions are
prepared suitable personal protective equipments.
ePersonal protective equipments have to be qualified,
aesthetics and convenience for users.

eEmployees compel to use personal protfective equipments
when working.

SOLUTION OF PROPAGANDA AND TRAINING

In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, the Group organized
training courses of safety — occupational health including:
*Training course of general labor safety for all employees.
eTraining course of labor safety for workers who operate
lifting equipment, pressure equipment, electrical maintain-
ance, metal welding and cutting, and for workers who work
at height.

e Training course of first aid for the Group’s first aid team.
eTraining course of radiation safety for employee who
works in radiation environment.

*Organizing rehearse to respond to chemical leakage,
X-ray radiation problem and gamma radiation problem.
Besides, labor safety team and rule supervision team also
inspect, remind employees everyday to comply the Group's
rules and regulations of labor safety.

SOLUTION OF FIRE PROTECTING AND FIGHTING

*The fire protecting and fighting team is organized in
accordance with legislation.

* Annually inviting firefighter to inform new regulation of fire
protecting and fighting as well as usage of fire equipment,
fire fighting measure when problem occurs.

*Organizing rehearse of fire fighting at least once a year,
getting ready when the worst situation occurs.

eFire extinguishers are loaded regularly and ensure always
ready. Renovating used fire extinguishers which do not meet
the requirements of fire fighting.

eFire alert system is maintained yearly by functional
devisions

eInspecting periodically safety of electrical  system,
prepairing and fixing timely any state that leads to
short-circuit.

eOnce a year, implementing ground resistence
measurement of anti-lightning system and electrical system.
*Holding non smoking rule within workshop area.
*Rechecking and labelling warning signs in easy-tofire
areas such as: chemical storage, CNG, NH3 station, kiln,
painting areaq, efc.

e All divisions must carry out welding and cutting at clear
areas. When required in flammable places, it must be
shielded carefully to prevent fire-ray catching to flammable
material and under the supervison of the Health and Safety
employees.
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INNOVATIONS OF HUMAN RESOURCE POLICY

Towards to build the Group’s employees “better, more professional, higher income”, Hoa Sen Group implements policies to

develop human resouces as follows:

SALARY AND SUPPORT POLICY

- The fiscal year 2018 - 2019 is a challenging economic
year not only for the global economy, Vietnam economy
and construction materials industry in general but also for
Hoa Sen Group in particular. However, the Board of
Directors has had practical and effective solutions to take
the Group through the most difficult times. One of the
effective solutions is to promulgate, amend and supplement
a number of salary policies to suit the business situation in
each period to ensure the income of employees throughout
the Group.

- Supports  such as support for gasoline, housing,
transportation,  telephone,  branches under difficult
circumstances, remote areas, maternity support, etc. are
maintained as before. These are an additional monthly
income that will motivate and help employees work more
effectively.

INSURANCE AND OTHER WELFARE POLICY

examnination’s results in order to ensure employees working
comfortably. The Company has actively implemented and
always complied with the laws of environmental regulations
such as: every year, the Group promulgates the policy of
Quality - Environment and Occupational Health Safety with
the purpose of ensuring safety in labor production and
environmental protection.

- In addition to receiving payment from the Social Insurance
agency or the accident insurance 24/24 as prescribed, the
Group also supports treatment costs, the compensation/
subsidy. Depending on the severity of the occupational
accidents, the Group also has its own supportive policies to
compensate, motivate and to rebuild the labor force for the
employees.

- Worthy fostering policy for employees working in heavy,
hazardous and poor working environment shall also be
implemented in accordance with current regulations.

RECRUITMENT POLICY

- Since employees become official employees of the Group,
the social insurance, health insurance and unemployment
insurance are perfomed by the Group in accordance with
government stipulations to ensure all employees receive fully
these types of insurance. Hoa Sen Group has adjusted the
minimum salary for employees in accordance with the
Government's regulations in January 2019. In addition, the
Group has paid 24/24 accident insurance for all
employees (including official employees and probationary
employees) with the maximum coverage of 200,000,000
VND/person.

-In addition to the implementation of flexible salary, bonus
and insurance policies according to legislation, the Group
applies other welfare to employees including: organizing
cultural, arts and sports activities to improve the spiritual life
of employees on anniversaries, building communal
canteens serving daily meals for workers and employees,
providing uniform for employees, fully equipped with labor
protection equipment in accordance with the law; shuttle
bus for staff, supporting for female employees on
International Women's Day and Vietnamese Women's Day,
maternity support, support for employees when married,
support for employees in mourning...

-In conjunction with the Labor Union, Hoa Sen Group also
cares and takes care of the lives of employees in difficult
circumstances, supporting vehicles to bring employees to
their hometowns to celebrate Tet, giving gifts to employees’
children every year on the occasion of International
Children Day.

-In production and business activities, the Group always
strictly complies with the provisions of law on safety, health
and environmental protection, proactively preventing
damage to people, properties and environment.
Specifically, every year all staffs of the Group and
employees joining directly in production have been well
provided with knowledge and safety skills in production by
organizing training courses relating to safety in production
such as first aid, labor safety, radiation safety, and chemical
safety, electric safety, lifing equipment safety, fire
prevention and fighting. In addition, Hoa Sen Group
always takes care of employee’s health and working safety.
In each fiscal year, the Group organizes periodic health
examination and advices effective treatments depending on

In fiscal year 2018 — 2019, Hoa Sen Group constantly
promoted recruitment policy, built and attract high quality
human resource through significant activities as follows:

- Strengthening the recruitment process to give candidates
the opportunity to access recruitment information of the
Group through "Job Fair" and "Career Workshop" at the
reputable universities in the North — Central — South regions
of the country and at the job centers across the country.
Particularly, the Group has always focused on recruiting
overseas to meet the demand of the Group's specialized
departments during the development of more foreign
projects.

- Students at universities and colleges are sponsored
scholarships, especially students who are under difficult
circumstances but trying to improve and get achievements in
learning

- In addition to the Group's official Recruitment website,
https://hoasenjobs.com/, Hoa Sen Group is enhancing the
expansion and development of online recruitment sites such
as Facebook, Llinkedln, etc. Reserved candidate resumes
will be expected to increase to more than 50,000 resumes.
Since then, expanding the source of qualified and
diversified candidates to meet the personnel needs of the
divisions/departments and subsidiaries/factories of Hoa
Sen Group.

- In order to support employees when getting responsibilities
in the distance, Hoa Sen Group has policies including
paying for airfare/transport, food/accommodation, tec. in
order to help the Group have more opportunities to get
closer to labor force.

- Expanding more forms of recruitment such as live
inferviews, online fests, multiplechoice test, professional
tests, English communication skills, etc.

- With the effort and unstoppable efforts in such recruiting
activities, according to the annual survey of the job network
conducted by Career Builder Vietnam cooperating with
Insight Asia Company in the period from December 18,
2017 to January 18, 2018, Hoa Sen Group continues to be
honored "Top 10 most favorite employers" in the domestic
job market. This result has initially affirmed the recruiting
brand of Hoa Sen Group, building the image of the Group
in the minds of candidates, universities, organizations, etc.
contributing to promote Hoa Sen brand into the community.
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TRAINING POLICY

In recent fiscal year, Hoa Sen Group has always been
paying attention to the training and development for human
resources of the organization. The fotal training cost of the
Group in the fiscal year 2018 - 2019 reached more than
VND 3 billion. The Group has successfully organized 355
training courses with more than 10,000 attendees,
including outstanding activities as follows:

Developing Functional Division/Department

°In the fiscal year 2018 - 2019, new employees are
regularly trained to integrate, in which compulsory training
courses such as occupational safety and health, first aid, fire
protection, courses for managers and improve their internal
control ability, improve professional skills, knowledge and
working skills.

*The training program for the title of Business Director of the
Provincial Branch to help the Group find "Pioneer Warriors"
to work in all parts of the country. With the combination of
external training courses to improve management capacity
and internal training topics of the Group to help employees
understand how to operate the system. The Group's training
has contributed to create a team of management with a
strong, passionate and outstanding working ability.

Pioneer Warriors

* With the system of subjects (ISM) specially designed for staffs
at the branches, the professional internal trainers have trained
nearly 500 staffs in the whole system, with 02 phases of
organization:

ePhase 1 offers 6 subjects including Foundation Culture;
Teamwork Spirit; Hoa Sen Culture; Knowledge on products;
Policies; Criterion — Standards.

*Phase 2 provides 5 subjects including Market Exploitation
& Business Planning Skills; Communication & Teamwork
Skills; Sales skills; Debt Control & recovery; Asset control.
°In addition, Department of Training - Recruitment in
conjunction with the Regional Executive Offices has
conducted training and assessment on the capacity of
management trainees through the subjects: Branch
management; Market Exploitation  skills;  Information
analysis and reporting skills; Professional sale skill.

*With the business philosophy of "Helping customers
succeed" through the spirit of service, professionalism and
homogeneity of Distribution Network, visual standard
material "Criterion - Standards " has been created and
developed, from that standardizing the image of
employees, facilities of distribution network and branches in
order fo create new competitive advantages for the Group.
*To develop the Branch Managers team, training activities
have been implemented to improve the management capacity
through the following subjects: Branch management in
accordance with criterion and standards; Creating
Implementing business plan; Tutoring — guiding skills.
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Developing Subsidiaries/Factories

e Carrying out the training for employees of Subsidiaries/-
Factories throughout the fiscal year, including compulsory
training courses such as integration training, first aid, labor
safety, radiation safety, chemical safety, electric safety,
lifting equipment safety, fire prevention and fighting; efc.
training courses to improve skills and capabilities such as
production management, improving mid-level management
capability, 5S - Kaizen, etc. Content of training courses
closely follow the business and production activities of the
Group, has been implemented towards modernization,
highly practical with the combination between the theory
and practice which can helps learners have the opportunity
to study and apply immediately to the practical work.

eAt the same time, aftertraining assessment has been
applied in various forms to all training programs. Particular-
ly for staff at Distribution Network, the Group deploys online
testing on criterion - standards, professional knowledge and
business policies to help staff aware and comply with the
regulations, contributing to the improvement of customer
service quality and brand reputation of Hoa Sen Group.

BUILDING FRIENDLY AND DEVELOPMENT
WORKING ENVIRONMENT

- In addition to building appropriate salary, bonus and welfare policies, working environment is also an important factor for
employees to stick with the business. Therefore, Hoa Sen Group always strives to maintain and build a friendly and united
working environment by organizing activities to associate employees with each other as well as between employees and
the Group.

- In the fiscal year 2018 — 2019, the Labor Union in collaboration with Hoa Sen Group organized arts, sports activities to
celebrate the Group's 18th anniversary as follows:

WITH ALL POLICIES OF SALARY, REWARD, WELFARE AND FRIENDLY, DYNAMIC WORKING
ENVIRONMENT, IN 5 CONSECUTIVE YEARS (FROM 2013 TO 2017), HOA SEN GROUP IS IN
TOP 5 OF BUIDING MATERIALS SECTOR AND TOP 100 VIETNAM BEST PLACES TO WORK AS
THE RESULT OF THE SURVEY “TOP 100 VIETNAM BEST PLACES TO WORK” CONDUCTED BY
ANPHABE AND NIELSEN COMPANY
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PRODUCT
RESPONSIBILITY

The product quality is strictly controlled from input material and on each stage to ensure product process complying with
infernational standard and customer’s quality demands by Hoa Sen Group.

Hoa Sen Group established quality control processes with control indicators, quality standards, application forms, norms, etc.
depends on each specific product and production line in order to control quality of input materials, semi-finished products,
and finished products on each production stage. In addition, employees who are in charge of controlling product quality and
chemical testing are guided to fulfill quality control process of outputs. According to the capacity and actual productivity of
the lines, Hoa Sen Group annually established the Standards of Quality Norms for the main production lines that applies for
the products of both domestic and exported market, which classifies the product as the Class 1, Class 2 and by-products.
All Hoa Sen Group's plants have laboratories which are equipped the most advanced system to ensure the process of
measuring product is most accurate. Moreover, every production stage is under surveillance for the management easily to
supervise, retrieve source and timely prevent any error detected.

Besides, the finished products are packed in conformity with the regulation to ensure the product quality, and labeled clearly
for brand identity in order to meet consumer’s aesthetic demands, rust-proof or non-dented during storage, handling, and
transportation.

PRODUCT QUALITY ENHANCEMENT,
QUALIFY DOMESTIC AND INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS

By investing advanced technology and reforming the lines, Hoa Sen Group did develop
and maintain the integrated controlling system which consists of quality management
system 1SO 9001:2015, environmental management system ISO 14001:2015,
occupational health and safety advisory services ISO 45000:2018 as a mean fo
response to social and environmental responsibility and satisfy customer’s demand.

The products of Hoa Sen Group always attain high quality standard that meet the strict
requirements in top-notch market as United States, Japan, EU, etc.

Additionally, Hoa Sen Group periodically reviews the production process, product
allocation as well as conducts research to improve the technology in order to reduce the

energy, fuel consumption and boost the competiveness of the products.
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COMMITMENT TO CONSUMER

Hoa Sen Group has established warranty policy from 10 to 20 years for the products of Pre-Painted Galvanized Steel Sheet,
Aluminum-Zinc Alloy Coated Steel Sheet and Pre-Painted Aluminum-Zinc Alloy Coated Steel Sheet. In addition, Hoa Sen
Group is willing to receive all inquiries, complaints of product quality through various channels (telephone, email, online
consultation on the website www.hoasengroup.vn) or fill in “Feedback form” to suppose solutions that satisfy customers.

The process of resolving customer feedback of Hoa Sen Group is presented as the following flowchart:

RECEIVING

SALE EMPLOYEE CUSTOMER'S
FEEDBACK
No
REVIEWING "
BRANCH DIRECTOR FEEDBACK
Yo
Customer care division — -
Product quality control
and chemical testing REEEHIIDEEXIC,\II(G
Production division
Supply division
v Yes
Customer care division
Product quality control
and chemical testing AIEIEII)E%E,ZA]IC\IKG
Production division
Supply division
Cause of
vy _Hoa Sen Group
Customer care division PROPOSING P
Branch director SOLUTIONS <
Director of Quality division
. Disagree
Cause of
customer
The Board of APPROVAL
Management
Agree
Customer care division IMPLEMENTING

Branch SOLUTION
Related divisions

Customer care division
Branch ARCHIVING
Related divisions
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ENVIRONMENT
AND ENERGY

HOA SEN

GROUP

MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

Input materials which are used in manufacture are qualified
to the Hoa Sen Group’s general standards. Most of input
material orders are verified and approved by Materials
division and Evaluation division of Hoa Sen Group. The
utilization of materials are controlled and collated among
divisions of production, supply, supervision through daily,
weekly, monthly reports including inventory status report,
material consumption report, and balance report of
materials — finished products to ensure the optimization.
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION
SOLUTIONS OF ENERGY SAVING

Hoa Sen Group always concerns saving of energy consumption within the limitation that is set by the Group.
All Hoa Sen Group's offices, plants perform energy report regularly. Especially, each production line is always tracked and
measured energy consumption in order to detect and adjust timely issues of unreasonable consumption.

Measures of energy savings

Setting up industrial solar

Using industrial inverter Replacing high-pressure Using skylight steel sheet power system fo heat water

for all electric motors at lighting systems with to get natural light in before putting into boiler for

plants. fluorescent lamps. factories for optimizing saving water and electricity
electric consumption. consumption.

3

o

Developing monitor software of electrical consumption
system: The technical division has already finished this
software which operates as follows:

- Determining excess capacity

- Monitoring all devices to realize under loaded,
overloaded state

- Comparing consumption of electrical efficiency to
determine equipment or division which is more efficient
and higher profitable.

- Tracking continuously system and detfecting which
equipment is unstable operation.

6

Administrative  management
operation

- Publishing announcements,
boards to propagate and
require electricity savings in
the Group.

- Examining and reminding
continuously all divisions that
presenting in performance
assessment  report  and
minimizing infringe cases.

7

Planning  production
and delivery schedule
reasonably such as:
limited overtime
working, operating on
peak hours, running
machines alternately in
low season to optimize
electricity consumption.

- Balancing electrical loading on station, electrical board, etc.
- Improving equipment working life for investment
optimization.

- Sending alerts to avoid troubles, analyzing problems that
caused by devices or electric supply, and supporting
quickly, thoroughly for problems.

SOLUTIONS AND IDEAS OF
ENERGY SAVINGS

TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS

- Expanding or adding more windows which installed by
glass, skylight steel sheets to maximize natural light usage.

- Replacing incandescent bulbs to electrical saving compact
lights.

- Installing gutters, covers of lights to increase light reflection
and placing lights at appropriate height.

- Replacing overloaded electrical wire to matching electrical
wire.

- Replacing old, damaged electrical wire to new ones.

- Repairing joints, cosse head, tangential points, knife
switch, connector which are overloaded.

- Allocating  transmission which is balanced on every
production line in accordance with designed capacity of
transformers.

- Implementing reactive power compensation for engines
which are high capacity operations.

- Operating transformers in each appropriate mode (norm
mode, under loaded mode).
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ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS
Regulation of electrical equipment usage

- All electric devices in offices are turned off when leaving

- Lightning system for corridor, security:

eIn summer: Turn on at 19pm and turn off at 5am

eIn winter: Turn on at 18pm and turn off at 6am

- The air condition is set temperature at 25 — 270C and shut
down when leaving.

- The computers are used for working only and un-plugged
when finishing.

- Photocopy machines, printers are used for working only
and un-plugged when finishing.

Tracking and monitoring

- Technical and environment safety division coordinates with
administrative office are responsible to check the compliance
of using equipment in plant and announce on back board
weekly violations of using equipment in each division.

Rewarding and encouraging

- Publishing information of good employee, good behavior in
electric saving.

- Innovative suggests of electric saving in plant.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Hoa Sen Group has functional division in environment which
has high qudlification employees graduated from prestigious
universities around the country. All employees are usually
propagated garbage classification, energy saving regulation
(electricity, water, etc.) during production and office operations
as well as environmental sanitation regulation.

-All Hoa Sen Group’s subsidiaries/plants  perform
environmental impact assessment/ environmental protection
project/  environmental  protection commitment before
operation. During operation, subsidiaries/plants measure and
supervise environment quarterly and report to authorities.
-1SO  sections of subsidiaries/plants always update
environmental legislations to comply and inform to related
divisions. 1SO sections also assess the compliance of legislation
before the Group’s ISO division rechecks every six months.

- To improve supervision and management in environmental
protection, Hoa Sen Group has developed, maintained and
enhanced environment management system in accordance with
ISO 14001:2015 standard which certificated by BUREAU
VERITAS.

- In yearly period or when environment management system
has been modified, Hoa Sen Group identifies environmental
sector fo have good control in significant environmental sector
as the following:

- Waste water is treated in accordance with eligible standard
before gefting in centralized waste water freatment system of
industrial park.

- Emissions are treated in accordance with column B — QCVN
19:2009/BTNMT before discharging into environment.

. Solid waste is classified, collected and transfer for treatment in
accordance with legislation. Scraps are classified at original
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source, each kind of scraps is contained in trash can with
specific label. When trash can is full, it will be transferred to the
company’s garbage house at specific area.

- For hazardous waste, Hoa Sen Group has been issued
certification of owning hazardous waste. When the hazardous
waste volume has changed, the Group also modifies the
certification. In addition, Hoa Sen Group has signed agreement
with functional authorities which have license to transport and
handle waste.

- In factory areq, to allocate harmony building structure, the
Group has used ground for trees, lawns to create beautiful
landscape and contribute much for fresh air.

- In addition, to ensure working environment with high standard
for employee’s health, the Group applies technical solutions to
clear the workshop, reduce noise and equip exhaust fans,
industrial fans. Hoa Sen Group also measures environmental
parameters periodically in accordance with legislation.

OPTIMIZING
ECONOMIC EFFICIENCY

APPLICATION ON MODERN TECHNOLOGY AND
IMPROVEMENT ON PRODUCTION SYSTEM

In order to provide to consumers best quality products which
compete by quality and affirm its position in the market, Hoa Sen
Group always concerns on investment of advanced technology
production lines and equipment, and leads in new technology
application with environment friendly. The detail is as follows:
-In 2007, Hoa Sen Group was the first private enterprise in
Vietnam to invest in Galvanizing line with non-oxidizing furnace
(NOF technology).

- In 2009, Hoa Sen Group was the first enterprise in Southeast
Asia to invest in hot dip galvanizing line with non-oxidizing
furnace (NOF technology).

-In 2010, Hoa Sen Group was the first enterprise to invest
synchronously in centralized blending system, plastic pipe line of
Battenfeld — Cincinnati applied by European technology and
laboratory qualified Japanese standard in order to provide high
quality products with competitive price fo consumers.

-In 2011, Hoa Sen Group completed Phase 1 of Hoa Sen Phu
My Steel Sheet Plant Project. Currently, this is one of the largest
steel sheet plants in Southeast Asia with modern and synchronous
production lines and machinery system.

-In 2017, the Group has deployed the investment in Hoa Sen
Phu My HotDip Galvanized Steel Pipe Plant Project. In the first
phase of the project, Hoa Sen Group has invested in a hotdip
galvanized steel pipe line with a capacity of 85,000 tons/year.
The lines use modern technology imported from Europe. The
output meets the standards of quality, good thickness of coating,

good coating adhesion, highly applicable in many constructions.

ENHANCING PRODUCTION CAPACITY,
MEETING THE DEMAND OF CONSUMERS

In the past fiscal years, Hoa Sen Group has deployed and put
info operation large-scale production projects across the country
in the North-Central-South in order to implement the strategy of
perfecting the production system, improving supply capacity,
meeting consumer demand and contributing to optimize the cost
of fransportation.

Phase 1 of Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi Binh Dinh Plant Project has
officially been put into operation since October 2017 including
03 main production lines: 01 Galvanizing line with capacity of
180,000 tons/year has been operating since September 2017,
01 Color coating line with capacity of 45,000 tons/year has
been operating since June 2017, 01 Slitting line with capacity of
100,000 tons/year has been operating since May 2017. At the
same time, sfarting Phase 2 of the plant, expectedly investing in
05 production lines: 01 Pickling line with capacity of 800,000
tons/year, 01 Cold rolling line with capacity of 350,000
tons/year, 01 Galvanizing line with capacity of 250,000
tons/year, 01 Color coating line with capacity of 150,000
tons/year, 01 Acid recycling line with capacity of 5,000
liters/hour.

With the investment of production lines and modern equipment
according fo European standards of Danieli - ltalia Supplier with
vertical production process and strict inspection, from input
materials to finished products, the plant has produced quality
steel products; meet international standards and strict require-
ments of domestic and foreign markets. It is expected that the
plant will complete both phases by the end of 2018, contributing
significantly to the local budget, creating jobs for about 700
workers. When the plant goes into operation, it will meet the
demand of the Central — Tay Nguyen provinces, at the same time

export to Laos, Cambodia, Thailand, Europe and America.

Besides expanding the plant system in the Central and boosting
production in the South, Hoa Sen Group continues to build the
plant system in the North - one of the key markets of Hoa Sen
Group in the coming time. Therefore, the investment in large
plants in the North is very important in improving the ability to
supply steel sheet, steel and plastic products for the North market
in order to meet the needs of customers in this area.

Hoa Sen Group started the consfruction of Hoa Sen Nghe An
Plant in June 2015 on an area of 45 hectares, the total designed
capacity of 1 million tons of steel sheet and steel products/year.
At present, Hoa Sen Nghe An Plant completed the 1st phase and
has basically completed the 2 phase with putting a series of
production lines into operation, including: O1 Pickling line with
the capacity of 800,000 tons /year, 02 Coll Rolling lines with
the capacity of 800,000 tons / year, 02 Galvanizing lines with
total capacity of 800,000 tons/year, 02 Color coating lines with
the capacity of 240,000 tons / year, 02 Slitting line with the total
capacity 200,000 tons / year, 01 Strimming line with the capac-
ity of 400,000 tons / year. The products of the plant are
available in American and European market. These are difficult
markets which require striclly on product quality and delivery
time. The export of large consignments to these markets is the
most obvious demonstration of Hoa Sen Group’s competitiveness
on infernational market. Up to now, the plant has basically
completed the investment in stages of vertical production process,
from the input material is hot rolled coil fo the output products are
steel sheet and steel products and take full capacity of the plant.
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In addition, Hoa Sen Group has invested in Hoa Sen Ha Nam
Plant in Ha Nam province on an area of 20 hectares, producing
02 main products, including plastic pipes with designed capacity
of 20,000 tons /year and steel pipes with the capacity of
110,000 ton / year.

To continue the production expansion plan, on March 1, 2017,
Hoa Sen Group started the construction of Hoa Sen Yen Bai Steel
Pipe Plant in Tran Yen district, Yen Bai province. The project is
built on an area of 05 hectares, expected to produce two main
products: steel pipes and insulated steel sheet.

Expanding the production system is one of the key strategies of
Hoa Sen Group over the past years. Currently, Hoa Sen Group
owns 11 large plants located across the country in the North -
Central - South. These plants are invested in synchronous
machinery system, applying modern technology to production,
producing products that are consistent in quality and meet
international standards. With the establishment of plants in each
region, Hoa Sen Group will reduce the cost of transportation,
short delivery time; quickly meet market needs in every area.

In addition to expanding its production system, Hoa Sen Group
also focuses on increasing Hoa Sen popularity to every corner of
the country by expanding its branch network and stores.
Currently, Hoa Sen Group owns more than 536 Branches and
Stores (bdn tiéng Viét sai réi) , bringing the best products and
shortest delivery time to the end users in the country.

DIVERSIFY PRODUCT

Hoa Sen Group constantly research new products to meet the
increasingly diverse demands of consumers:

-In 2012, Hoa Sen Group infroduced Mefallic steel sheet
product with the outstanding feature of metallic surface with high
aestheticism.

-In July 2014, Hoa Sen Group launched Hoa Sen wood pattern
steel sheet. The outstanding feature of wood pattern steel sheets
is their surfaces which are coated with the paint of wood pattern.
Therefore, they are highly aesthetic and can be applied to
making outdoor products and furniture which bring the subtlety
and luxury to the houses. Hoa Sen wood pattern steel sheets are
durable, beautiful, luxurious and suitable for construction works
and houses. With superior durability, the wood pattern steel
sheet product may have more than 20 year’s long-lasting usage.

- In August 2014, Hoa Sen Group continued to launch Hoa Sen
wrinkle steel sheet. Wrinkle steel sheets are Galvanized steel
sheets and Pre-painted aluminum-zinc alloy coated steel sheets
with special wrinkle pattern on the surfaces. The outstanding
features of wrinkle steel sheet are their high aestheficism, high
durability, good heat resistance, good moisture resistance, easy
installation, efc. The products are used flexibly for construction
works and houses such as ceilings, walls, roofs, etc.

- Besides famous steel sheet products, Hoa Sen Group dlso
supplies diversified products of galvanized steel pipe and plastic
pipe with superior specifications:

® Hoa Sen steel pipe is produced by modern production lines in
accordance with strict quality control process to meet high quality
standards of JIS G3444 (Japan), JIS G3466 (Japan), ASTM
500M (USA). Hoa Sen steel pipe product has clean, smooth
surface, even thickness, high flexibility and good zinc
adherence.

* Being manufactured by modern production line with the
advanced European technology and the centralized blending
system, the uPVC plastic pipe products are homogeneous and
high quality in accordance with standards of BS 3505:1968/BS
EN 1452-2:2009 (England); AS/NZS 1477:2006 (Ausralia):
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®In March 2016, Hoa Sen Group launched superior HDPE
plastic pipe products. HDPE plastic pipes are manufactured by
advanced technology of Cincinnati (Germany) and strict quality
control process. Hoa Sen Group's laboratory is prepared
modern equipment originated from USA, Germany, Japan,
Canada, efc. Hoa Sen HDPE plastic pipes advantages include
non+oxic, safety for users’ health, long life span, high tightness
(watertight, airtight), leakfree, non-corrosion by acid solutions,
neutral solvent, ability fo resist against extreme weather
conditions. Hoa Sen HDPE plastic pipes are applicable for water
supply, drainage, sewage conveyance, sand pumping, industrial
and agricultural water leading system, and other various
applications.

e In fiscal year 2015 - 2016, Hoa Sen Group also launched
Hoa Sen PPR plastic pipe product. Hoa Sen PPR plastic pipes,
which are manufactured by nonoxic PPR (Polypropylen Random
Copolymer) materials, are absolute safety for users’ health.
Especially, Hoa Sen PPR plastic pipe has heat resistance up to
95°C is used for hot and cold water conveyance in civil and
industrial constructions and solar energy — using pipeline system.
The products also have ability to resist against wide array of
chemicals, and have non<orrosion from acid solutions, alkaline
solution, saline solution, neutral solvent, etc.

e In the fiscal year 2016 - 2017, the Group started fo invest in
Hoa Sen Phu My HotDip Galvanized Steel Pipe Plant. Expected
in March 2018, the project will go into operation and launch the
product “Hoa Sen HotDip Galvanized Steel Pipe”. Hotdip
galvanized steel pipes are superior in the thickness of coating in
comparison with normal galvanized steel pipe. With modern

technology, hotdip galvanized steel pipe line will produce
products having coating mass with equal thickness, ensuring
high corrosion resistance, keeping the quality and sustainablity of
works, machinery and equipment, at the same time maintaining
aesthetics. Hotdip galvanized steel pipe products will have shiny
surface, no need to have a protective coating, environmentally
friendly, especially resistant to severe environmental conditions.

APPLYING ADVANCED MANAGEMENT PROCESS,
PERFECTING MANAGEMENT OPERATION AND MODEL

* Hoa Sen Group defines business management is one of the
most important factors to enhance stable and efficient
economic growth, to keep sustainable development on track
in longterm. In parallel with building strong governance
system based on complying legislations and applying most
advanced governance model in the world, Hoa Sen Group
has issued system of internal policies in order to build
infegrated and decisive governance mechanism.

® In the fiscal year 2016 - 2017, the Group focused on
perfecting and putting ERP system into operation, improving
synchronization and standardization in  professional
operations, creating a premise for the application of new
technologies in order to meet the demand for future
development.

® In the near future, the Group will continue to research and
implement restructuring activities to perfect and improve the
management system. In particular, the Group will focus on
the restructuring of the distribution system under the
Provincial branch model. It is expected that the whole
distribution system management model will be restructured at
the following management levels:

HOA SEN GROUP

)

REGIONAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES

)
—

PROVINCIAL BRANCHES

Y

DISTRIBUTION BRANCH
NETWORK - RETAIL STORE

2 Yah
N
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"Loving Leaf Bag" is a voluntary program implemented nationwide by the Vietnam News Center VTV24 - Vietnam Television
in collaboration with the Ministry of Labor and Social Policy Bank, starting from October 1, 2015. The program with the
mission as a bridge for benefactors to support difficult circumstances across provinces and cities in all over the country,
creating couples to support each other to overcome difficulties.

Accompanied by the "Loving Leaf Bag" in the 3rd year of the program, Hoa Sen Group and other sponsors have accompanied
all the trips of the live TV program "Loving Leaf Bag" in 2019 to bring sharing and hope for a brighter future for children
without access to school across the country. As a community-oriented enterprise, the sponsorship of the program "Loving Leaf
Bag" is one of the activities that contribute to the work of society, demonstrating the community responsibility of Hoa Sen

VTV INTERNATIONAL WOMEN'S VOLLEYBALL CHAMPIONSHIP
HOA SEN PLASTIC PIPE CUP 2019

With the desire to create healthy and professional
- playgrounds, promoting the development of the
W country's sports industry, Hoa Sen Group has become
an annual sponsor for major sports tournaments,
especially  “VTV International Women's  Volleyball
Championship - Hoa Sen Plastic Pipe Cup". In 2019, the

k& BEING CONSISTENT WITH THE BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY OF j&ear anniversary of organizing fhe tournament, wih
“INTERGRITY - COMMUNITY - DEVELOPMENT”, OVER THE Vietnam Volleyball Union and its companion - Hoa Sen
PAST 18 YEAR, HOA SEN GROUP HAS ALWAYS BROUGHT Group, the leading enterprise in the field of steel sheet

HAPPINESS TO SHARE WITH THE COMMUNITIES THROUGH and steel in Vietnam and Southeast Asia, the Organizing
VARIOUS CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES. ” Committee hopes to continue to bring a large and

impressive VTV Cup, creating a large and prestigious
playground for the teams to show their talents,
dedication, fair - play and exciting matches for
Vietnamese sports fans.
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VTV INTERNATIONAL CYCLING TOURNAMENT -
HOA SEN STEEL SHEET CUP 2019

VTV International Cycling Tournament - Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Cup 2019 is an annual international tournament. With
the message of Spreading the love, VTV International Cycling Tournament - Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Cup 2019 started
from Hanoi capital on September 1, 2019, passing through provinces and cities including Bac Ninh, Hai Duong,
Quang Ninh, Hai Phong, Thai Binh, Nam Dinh, Ninh Binh, Thanh Hoa, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh, Quang Tri, Thua
Thien Hue, Da Nang and ended in Hoi An city, Quang Nam province on September 8, 2019 with 1,045km route.
The tournament gathered 06 domestic racing teams with outstanding performance in the past 12 months and 06
international racing teams from clubs with top-class athletes, the race is an opportunity for the Vietnamese bicycle
athletes are allowed to exchange and compete, improve their professional and technical qualifications, help the
Vietnamese bicycle discipline to develop and meet international standards.

In particular, VTV International Cycling Tournament - Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Cup 2019 with the spirit of “Heritage
Journey” to honor, introduce and promote Vietnam's famous cultural and natural heritages throughout the journey.
which the racing teams went through such as Ha Long Bay, Trang An Scenic Complex, Thanh Nha Ho, Phong Nha
Ke Bang National Park, Hue Monuments Complex, Hai Van Quan, Hoi An Ancient Town. In particular, the race
ended on September 8, 2019 in Hoi An, Quang Nam also on the occasion of the 20th anniversary of Hoi An
Ancient Town, My Son Temple Area which was recognized by UNESCO as a World Cultural Heritage and the 10th
anniversary that Cu Lao Cham - Hoi An was recognized as a World Biosphere Reserve. VTV International Cycling
Tournament - Hoa Sen Steel Sheet Cup 2019 is considered to be a healthy, professional and meaningful
playground, while leaving many good impressions with international friends and sports fans in general and cycling
in particular.

HOA SEN GROUP
DONATED 3,000M OF
STEEL SHEET FOR
DIFFICULT FAMILIES IN
BINH BINH PROVINCE IN
THE STORM NO.5

The aftermath of the storm No. 5 - Matmo leaving Binh Dinh
province is extremely heavy, causing great damage to
people and property. In order to support the people to
overcome the consequences of the storm, Hoa Sen Group
decided to donate 3,000 meters of steel sheet to the poor
people whose roof were blown away by the storm and had
no money to repair it. With these practical actions, Hoa
Sen Group wishes to support people in flood and storm
areas, help people soon stabilize their lives and develop
their economy after natural disasters.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ENTERPRISE REGISTRATION 3700381324 8 August 2001

The Company’s Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended several times, the most recent of which
is by Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 3700381324 dated 15 May 2019. The Company’s Enterprise
Registration Certificate and its amendments were issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh
Duong Province.
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] HOA SEN GROUP

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Hoa Sen Group (‘the Company”) presents this statement and the accompanying
separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2019.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements
in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Directors:

(a) The separate financial statements set out on pages 5 to 58 give a true and fair view of the unconsolidated
financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2019, and of the unconsolidated results of operations and
the unconsolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial
reporting; and

(b) At the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Company will not be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying separate financial
statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

*x| TAP DOAN
*\HCA SEN 5

Tran Quoc Tri
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 20 December 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

HOA SEN GROUP

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Hoa Sen Group (“the Company”), which
comprise the separate balance sheet as at 30 September 2019, the separate statements of income and cash flows
for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors on 20 December 2019, as set out on pages 5 to 58.

Management's Responsibility

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System
for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal
control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

3 | ANNUAL REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material

respects, of the unconsolidated financial position of Hoa Sen Group as at 30

September

2019 and of its unconsolidated results of operations and its unconsolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese

Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements ap
financial reporting.

Other Matter

plicable to

The separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2018
were audited by another firm of auditors whose reports dated 28 December 2018 expressed

an unqualified opinion on those statements.

Chang Hung
Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 0863-2018-007-1
Depuly General Director

Nguyen Thanh Nghi
Practicing Auditor Registration
Cerlificate No. 0304-2018-007-1

Ho Chi Minh City, 20 December 2019
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j Hoa Sen Group

L

{ } Separate balance sheet as at 30 September 2019

Form B O1 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
ASSETS Code Note VND VND

CURRENT ASSETS 100 8,353,422,179,749 10,985,778,871,754
(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

Cash and cash equivalents 110 5 222,264,128,540 171,659,888,989
Cash 111 222,120,606,665 171,516,367,114
Cash and cash equivalents 112 143,521,875 143,521,875
Short-term financial investments 120 75,750,000,000 270,387,032
Held-to-maturity investments 123 6(a) 75,750,000,000 270,387,032
Accounts receivable — short-term 130 5,167,377,333,616 7,860,565,817,787
Accounts receivable from customers 131 7 4,634,961,613,860 7,163,248,999,755
Prepayments to suppliers 132 8 60,553,917,594 184,158,011,340
Loans receivable — short-term 135 9(a) 3,660,295,900
Other shortterm receivables 136 10(a) 480,496,148,586 515,431,702,357
Allowance for doubtful debts 137 (8,634,346,424) (5,933,191,565)
Inventories 140 11 2,072,119,656,817 1,787,890,736,309
Inventories 141 2,102,406,071,644 1,806,472,903,289
Allowance for inventories 149 (30,286,414,827) (18,582,166,980)
Other current assets 150 815,911,060,776 1,165,392,041,637
Shortterm prepaid expenses 151 16(a) 78,075,432,104 75,749,637,153
Deductible value added tax 152 732,929,606,602 1,063,819,898,124
Taxes receivable from State Treasury 153 20(b) 4,906,022,070 25,822,506,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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Hoa Sen Group

<"A} Separate balance sheet as at 30 September 2019 (continued)

L

Form B O1 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
ASSETS Code Note VND VND
LONG-TERM ASSETS 200 5,338,121,471,738 5,257,822,222,584
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250 + 260)
Accounts receivable — long-term 210 292,077,985,517 268,984,943,607
Loans receivable — long-term 215 9(b) 68,956,017,357 66,686,721,457
Other long-term receivables 216 10(b) 223,121,968,160 202,298,222,150
Fixed assets 220 1,725,295,312,625 1,961,681,186,678
Tangible fixed assets 221 12 1,441,875,639,868 1,591,695,704,971
Cost 222 3,390,288,246,734 3,260,932,231,963
Accumulated depreciation 223 (1,948,412,606,866) (1,669,236,526,992)
Finance lease tangible fixed assets 224 13 65,309,125,812 81,263,218,413
Cost 225 76,397,768,336 98,947,748,174
Accumulated depreciation 226 (11,088,642,524) (17,684,529,761)
Intangible fixed assets 227 14 218,110,546,945 288,722,263,294
Cost 228 259,599,505,310 320,066,755,310
Accumulated amortisation 229 (41,488,958,365) (31,344,492,016)
Long-term work in progress 240 16,487,785,421 28,307,339,690
Construction in progress 242 15 16,487,785,421 28,307,339,690
Long-term financial investments 250 3,154,345,000,000 2,769,445,646,684
Investments in subsidiaries 251 6(b) 3,138,345,000,000 2,677,776,000,000
Investments in associates 252 6(b) 43,515,000,000
Allowance for diminution in the value 254 6(b) (13,445,353,316)
of long-term financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments 255 6(a) 16,000,000,000 61,600,000,000
Other longterm assets 260 149,915,388,175 229,403,105,925
Longterm prepaid expenses 261 16(b) 128,815,049,868 207,352,425,398
Deferred tax assets 262 17 21,100,338,307 22,050,680,527
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 13,691,543,651,487 16,243,601,094,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 6
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j Hoa Sen Group

L

{ } Separate balance sheet as at 30 September 2019 (continued)

Form B O1 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Hoa Sen Group

<"A} Separate statement of income for the year ended 30 September 2019

L

Form B 02 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014,/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
RESOURCES Code Note
VND VND 30/9/2019 30/9/2018
RESOURCES Code Note VND VND
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 300 7,712,594,884,188  10,859,529,755,393 (Reclassified)
REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND 01 29 44,795,852,916,502  59,977,961,162,366
Current liabilities 310 7,662,216,467,599  10,785,335,064,915 PROVISION OF SERVICES
Accounts payable to suppliers 311 18 1,370,637,850,790 1,111,659,624,255
Advances from customers 312 19 84,802,615,349 199,065,234,433 Revenue deductions 02 29 25,815,045,304 113,760,574,901
Taxes payable to State Treasury 313 20(a) 61,573,960,649 49,437,391,726
Payables to employees 314 46,039,923,293 63,430,563,768 Net revenue (10 = 01 - 02) 10 29 44,770,037,871,198  59,864,200,587,465
Accrued expenses 315 21 92,362,758,133 117,856,182,101 Cost of sales 1 30 42,509,205,331,768  57,061,310,696,192
Other payables - shortferm o3l 2 255,621,047,448 191,432,011,486 Gross profit (20 = 10- 11) 20 2,260,832,539,430  2,802,889,891,273
Shortterm borrowings and finance lease liabilities 320 23(a) 5,706,275,512,506 9,010,977,033,379 Fi Ll o1 31 400,189 675 049 530309 325 068
Bonus and welfare fund 322 24 44,902,799,431 41,477,023,767 F::Z:Z:Zl ;”;:e"r:es o 2 I RISy pondys
Longerm liabilifies 330 50,378,416,589 74.194,690,478 In w{hich: Interest expense 23 399,146,337,196 458,729,805,247
Other payables — long-ferm 337 709,500,000 ) Selling expenses N ‘ 25 33 1,452,918,463,175 1,710,615,254,221
Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 338 23(b) 47,195,880,089 71,352,839,728 General and administration expenses 26 34 UL B2 7 e 494,847,430,766
Provisions — long-term 342 25 2,473,036,500 2,841,850,750 Net operating profi 30 457,188,500,795 521,919 673,593
30 =20 + (21-22)- (25 + 26
EQUITY (400 = 410) 400 5978,948,767,299  5,384,071,338,945 { +(21-22)- (25 + 20))
Other i 31 35 245,868,531,680 52,932,603,565
Owners’ equity 410 26 5,978,948,767,299 5,384,071,338,945 Oth:: 'erfoer:‘:es o o0 953 401 i 80 7R
Share capital 411 27 4,234,694,890,000 3,849,903,280,000 P 240,253, 114,182,
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a 4,234,694,890,000 3,849,903,280,000 s
1£34,074,87%, 1947,743,£0Y, Results of other activit 40 241,328,278,219 51,818,420,814
Share premium 412 151,583,183,521 151,583,183,52]1 40=31.32 O IR BIEAL
Treasury shares 419 (2,459,000,000) (1,343,000,000) Accounting profit before fax 50 698,516,779,014 573,738,094,407
Other equity funds 420 55,626,670,135 60,509,750,556 (50 = 30 + 40)
Retained profits 421 1,539,503,023,643 1,323,418,124,868 Income tax expense — current 51 37 86,459,077,071 57,537,903,508
- Retained profits brought forward 421a 928,395,663,920 818,143,985,703 Income tax expense — deferred 52 37 950,342,220 10,926,051,734
- Profit for the current year 421b 611,107,359,723 505,274,139,165
(NégT_Pg(gF_'g fFTSEQR) TAX 60 611,107,359,723 505,274,139,165
TOTAL RESOURCES =

(440 = 300 + 400) 440

13,691,543,651,487

16,243,601,094,338

20 December 2019

Prepared by:

Sy ~
W

*\ TAP DOAN
“\HCA SEN }

Prepared by:

20 December 2019

=

*\ TAP DOAN
“\HCA SEN

Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan

Tran Quoc Tri

Tran Quoc Tri

General Director

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan
Chief Accountant

Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen
Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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General Director

Accountant Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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)l Hoa Sen Group

Ml (Indirect method — continued)

g } Separate statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 03 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
Code Note VND VND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Accounting profit before tax 01 698,516,779,014 573,738,094,407
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 351,886,248,928 322,385,755,534
Allowances and provisions 03 960,049,390 (25,511,932,453)
Exchange losses arising from revaluation of 04 1,468,280,700 47,305,340,201
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
Profits from investing activities 05 (488,127,106,820) (486,088,302,864)
Interest expense 06 399,146,337,196 458,729,805,247
Operating profit before changes in working 08 963,850,588,408 890,558,760,072
capital
Change in receivables 09 2,571,484,034,504 (2,360,829,298,260)
Change in inventories 10 (295,933,168,355) 3,644,342,779,949
Change in payables and other liabilities i} 517,210,365,393  (2,314,955,937,226)
Change in prepaid expenses 12 76,955,554,774 8,018,371,205
3,833,567,374,724 (132,865,324,260)
Interest paid 14 (405,309,711,905) (457,469,733,777)
Income tax paid 15 (65,569,893,516) (123,097,749,073)
Other payments for operating activities 17 (13,390,811,230) (94,659,631,874)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 3,349,296,958,073 (808,092,438,984)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for additions to fixed assets and other 21 (236,953,833,251) (267,516,192,217)
long-term assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other 22 281,379,640,355 164,810,675,146
long-term assets
Payment for granting loans and term deposits 23 (105,390,000,000) (297,965,882,761)
Collections on loans receivable and term deposits 24 76,870,387,032 116,105,320,725
Payments for investments in subsidiaries 25 (14,766,000,000) (181,954,141,602)
Collections on disposals of investments in other 26 18,018,280,991 156,446,681,583
entities
Receipts of interests and dividends 27 13,147,284,616 5,427,688,553
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 30 32,305,759,743  (304,645,850,573)

ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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Hoa Sen Group

(Indirect method — continued)

Separate statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 03 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014,/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018

Code Note VND VND
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments for shares redemptions 32 (1,116,000,000) (1,343,000,000)
Proceeds from borrowings 33 18,554,179,258,809 26,978,521,614,736
Proceeds from sales and lease back 33 16,652,613,833 57,710,635,046
Payments to settle loan principals 34 (21,860,836,633,450) (25,622,600,226,615)
Payments to seftle finance lease liabilities 35 (36,886,118,070) (14,177,118,427)
Payments of dividends 36 (225,251,900) (350,060,974,500)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (3,328,232,130,778) 1,048,050,930,240
Net cash flows during the year 50 53,370,587,038 (64,687,359,317)
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 60 171,659,888,989 239,918,988,521
the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and 61 (2,766,347,487) (3,571,740,215)
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 70 5 222,264,128,540 171,659,888,989

(70 = 50 + 60 + 61)

Prepared by:

N
W

Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen
Accountant

20 December 2019

*\ TAP DOAN
“\HCA SEN }

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan

Chief Accountant

Tran Quoc Tri
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019
Form B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying separate
financial statements.

1. EPORTING ENTITY
(a)Ownership structure
Hoa Sen Group (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated in Vietnam.

The Company’s share were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange with trading code HSG in
accordance with the Decision No. 117/QD-SGDHCM dated 5 November 2008 issued by the Ho Chi Minh
City Stock Exchange.

(b)Principal activities

The Company’s principal activities are to manufacturing roofing sheets by galvanised steel, zinc alloy, paint
galvanised zinc plating and plating of other alloys; producing steel purlins, galvanised purlins; manufacturing
black steel pipes, galvanised steel pipesand other alloys; manufacturing steel mesh, galvanised steel wire,
steel wire; buying and selling building materials, capital goods and consumer goods; providing warehousing
and transporation services; building industrial and civil construction and producing cold rolled steel coils and
leasing machinery and equipment and other tangible belongings.

(c) Normal operating cycle
The normal operating cycle of the Company is generally within 12 months.
(d)Company structure

As at 30 September 2019, the Company had 16 subsidiaries and 1 associate (1/10/2018: 15 subsidiaries
and 2 associates) listed in the Note 6(b).

As at 30 September 2019, the Company had 4,489 employees (1/10/2018: 4,406 employees).
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a)Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to
financial reporting. The Company prepares and issues its consolidated financial statements separately. For
a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s consolidated financial position, its consolidated results of
operations and its consolidated cash flows, these separate financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(b)Basis of measurement

The separate financial statements, except for the separate statement of cash flows, are prepared on the accrual
basis using the historical cost concept. The separate statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect
method.

(c) Going concern assumption

The seperate financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. As at the balance sheet
date, the Company had significant loans that will require refinancing within the next 12 months (Note 23).
The validity of the going concern assumption fundamentally depends on the Company being able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its activities and to maintain the credit limit granted by financial institutions to enable
the Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to maintain the Company in existence as a
going concern for the foreseeable future.

The management is implementing the restructuring plans for improving the efficiency in the Company’s business
operation as well as continue seeking for additional sources of finance.

At the time of this report, there is no reason for Board of Directors to believe that the Company will not be able
to generate sufficient cash flows from its activities or maintain credit limit granted by financial institutions.

(d)Annual accounting period
The annual accounting period of the Company is from 1 October to 30 September of following year.
(e) Accounting and presentation currency

The Company’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND”), which is also the currency used for financial
statements presentation purpose.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
separate financial statements.

(a)Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at actual rates of
exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at the
buying and selling exchange rates, respectively at the end of the accounting period quoted by the commercial
bank where the Company most frequently conducts transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the separate statement of income.
(b)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are shortterm highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and are held for the purpose of meeting shortterm cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

(c) Investments
(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company’s management has the intention and ability to hold
until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at banks and bank bonds. These investments
are stated at costs less doubtful debts.

(i) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

For the purpose of this separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are initially
recognised at cost which include purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
fo initial recognition, these investment are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance
is made for diminution in investment values if the investee has suffered a loss, except where such a loss
was anticipated by the Company before making the investment. The allowance is reversed if the investee
subsequently made a profit that oftsets the previous loss for which the allowance had been made. An allowance
is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

13 | ANNUAL REPORT
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Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(d)Accounts receivable
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.
(e)Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour and attributable
manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of inventory items, less the
estimated costs of completion and direct selling expenses.

The Company applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.
(f) Tangible fixed assets
(i) Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed
asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its infended use and the costs of dismantling
and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Expenditure incurred after tangible
fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair, maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the
separate statement of income in the year in which the cost is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

e BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES 5 - 50 YEARS
e MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 3 - 10 YEARS
e MOTOR VEHICLES 2 - 10 YEARS
e OFFICE EQUIPMENT 3 - 10 YEARS
e OTHERS 3 - 8 YEARS

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Hoa Sen Group
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(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(g)Finance lease tangible fixed assets

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Tangible fixed assets acquired by way of finance leases are stated at an amount
equal to the lower of fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease,
less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation on finance leased assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
items of the leased assets. The estimated useful lives of finance leased assets are consistent with the useful lives
of tangible fixed assets as described in accounting policy 3(f) {ii).

(h)Intangible fixed assets

(i) Land use rights
Land use rights comprise:
* Those granted by the State for which land use payments are collected;
* Those acquired in a legitimate transfer; and

* Rights to use leased land obtained before the effective date of Land Law (2003) for which payments have
been made in advance for more than 5 years and supported by land use right certificate issued by competent
authority.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of land use rights comprises
the value of the right and any direct attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing the land use rights.
Land use rights with definite term are amortised on a straightline basis over term of land use rights which is
from 14 years to 55 years. Land use rights with indefinite term are not amortised.

(i) Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and
treated as an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straightline basis from 3 to 6 years.

(i) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the cost of construction and machinery which have not been fully completed
or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of construction and
installation.
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(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(j) Long-term prepaid expenses
(i) Advertising panels

Advertising panels are initially recognised at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period
ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(i) Tools and instruments

Tools and instruments include assets held for use by the Company in the normal course of business whose
costs of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed
assets under prevailing regulation. Cost of tools and instruments are amortised on a straight-line basis over a
period ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(iii) Prepaid rental expenses

Prepaid rental expenses comprise prepaid rentals for using warehouse during the Company's production and
business operations and are initially recognised at cost. These costs are recognised in the separate statement
of income on a straight-line basis over lease term ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(iv) Maintenance expenses

The maintenance expenses represent the expenses of repairing and replacing machinery, equipment and
other fixed assets but do not meet the capitalisation requirements of fixed asset. Maintenance expenses are
initially recognised at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(k)Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their costs.
(I) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Severance allowance

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employee who has worked for 12 months or more (“the
eligible employees”) voluntarily terminates his/her labour contract, the employer is required to pay the
eligible employee severance allowance calculated based on years of service and employee’s compensation
at termination. Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on employees’ years of service
and their average salary for the six-month period prior to the end of the accounting period. For the purpose of
determining the number of years of service by an employee, the period for which the employee participated
in and contributed to unemployment insurance in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations and the
period for which severance allowance has been paid by the Company are excluded.

(m)Share capital
(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recognised at par value.
(i) Share premium

Excess of cash receipt from share issues over par value is recorded as share premium. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of shares, net of tax effects are recognized as a deduction from share
premium.

(iii)Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares)

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly aftributable costs, net of tax effects, is recognised as a reduction from equity. Repurchased shares are
classified as treasury shares under equity. When treasury shares are sold for reissue subsequently, cost of the
reissued shares is determined on a weighted average basis. Any difference between the amount received and
the cost of the shares reissued is presented within share premium.
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Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(n)Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
the separate statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in
which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the end
of the accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or seflement
of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(o) Revenue and other income

(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the separate statement of income when significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or possible return of goods. Revenue on sales of
goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting sales discounts stated on the invoice.

(i) Services rendered

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the separate statement of income in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.
No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and the
applicable interest rate.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right o receive dividend is established.
(p) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the separate statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the separate statement of income
as an integral part of the total lease expense.

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except where the
borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which case the
borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets
concerned.

(r) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments. The Company’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments.

(s) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions, or where the Company and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family members of any individual
considered to be a related party.
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING
(a)Business segments

The Company's principal business activities are buying and selling roofing sheets by steel, steel pipes,
building materials. Other activities are asset leasing and service provision. During the year, other activities
accounted for an insignificant proportion of total revenue and business operating results of the Company,
accordingly, the financial information presented in the separate balance sheet as at 30 September 2019
and 1 October 2018 and all revenue, expenses presented in the separate statement of income for the year
ended 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018 are mainly related to the Company’s principal business
activities.

(b)Geographical segments

The Company’s geographical segments are distinguished based on the locations of customers as follows:

Geographical segments

Local Export Total
VND VND VND
Year ended
30 September 2019
Revenue 36,259,554,008,527 8,510,483,862,671 44,770,037,871,198

Cost of sales (34,311,894,762,774) (8,197,310,568,994) (42,509,205,331,768)

1,947,659,245,753 313,173,293,677 2,260,832,539,430

Year ended
30 September 2018

Revenue

Cost of sales

47,554,460,913,811

(45,735,617,545,530)

12,309,739,673,654

(11,325,693,150,662)

59,864,200,587,465

(57,061,310,696,192)

1,818,843,368,281

984,046,522,992

2,802,889,891,273
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Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Cash on hand 42,895,838,820 48,240,229,076

Cash in banks 177,399,908,259 122,549,584,478

Cash in transit 1,824,859,586 726,553,560
Cash equivalents (*) 143,521,875 143,521,875
222,264,128,540 171,659,888,989

(*) Cash equivalents represented term deposits at banks with original terms to maturity of three months or less
from their transactions dates and earned annual interest at rate 5% (1/10/2018: 5%).

6. INVESTMENTS
(a) Held-to-maturity investments
(i)  Held-to-maturity investments — shortterm

Held-to-maturity investments — short-term represented term deposits at banks with original terms to maturnity
of more than 3 months from transaction dates but less than 12 months from the period ended and earned
annual interest rate from 5.5 t0 6.4 % (1/10/2018: 5.3%).

As at 30 September 2019, heldto-maturity investments — shortterm amounting to YND75 billion
(1/10/2018: YND270 million) were pledged at banks.

ANNUAL REPORT
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(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(i)  Held-to-maturity investments — long-term

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Bonds issued by Vietnam Bank for Industry and Trade 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000

Securities Joint Stock Company (*)

Bonds issued by Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural 1,000,000,000
Development - Saigon Branch (**)

Bonds issued by Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank 46,600,000,000
For Industry and Trade (***)

16,000,000,000 61,600,000,000

(*)  Bonds with original term of 10 years, denominated in VND and earned annual inferest at floating rate plus

1.2% (1/10/2018: floating rate plus 1.2%)
(**) Bonds with original term of 7 years, denominated in VND and earned annual interest at floating rate plus 1.2%.

(***) Bonds with original term of 10 years, denominated in VND and earned annual interest at floating rate plus 1%
at 1 October 2018. During the year, these bonds were liquidated.
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Hoa Sen Group

Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019
(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
(i) Hoa Sen International Port Joint Stock Company was incorporated under the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 3502399898 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ba Ria Vung Tau
Province on 5 July 2019, in which the Company owned 49% ownership. As at 30 September 2019, the

Company has not contributed capital to Hoa Sen International Port Joint Stock Company.

(iv) On 6 December 2018, the Company acquired 54% of equity interest of Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock
Company (“Hoa Sen Quy Nhon”), increasing the percentage of equity interest in Hoa Sen Quy Nhon from
45% to 99% at a purchase price of VND33,480 million.

(v}  On 6 December 2018, the Company acquired 50% of equity interest of Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park
Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company (“Hoa Sen Du Long”), increasing the percentage of equity
interest in Hoa Sen Du Long from 45% to 95% at a purchase price of VND 17,350 million.

Movements in allowance for diminution in the value of longterm financial investments during the year were
as follows:

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

13,445,353,316 35,933,075,667
13,445,353,316
(35,933,075,667)

Opening balance
Allowance made during the year
Allowance reversed during the year

(13,445,353,316)

Closing balance 13,445,353,316

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS

(a) Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customers

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

1,193,849,773,641 1,200,868,459,695
891,489,275,891 2,274,374,701,634
709,674,610,157 1,307,539,434,530

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Hoa Sen Steel One Member Company Limited

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liability
Company

Hoa Sen Building Materials Company Limited

Other customers

599,279,619,058
1,240,668,335,113

570,934,978,238
1,809,531,425,658

4,634,961,613,860 7,163,248,999,755
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At 30 September 2019, accounts receivable with carrying value of VND570,000 million and receivable arising from
export bill collection with the value of YND2,300,000 million (1/10/2018: VND570,000 million of trade receivable
and YND2,300,000 million arising from export bill collection) were pledged with banks as security for loan granted
to the Company (Note 23).

(b) Accounts receivable from customers who are related parties

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Subsidiaries

1,193,849,773,641
891,489,275,891
709,674,610,157

1,200,868,459,695
2,274,374,701,634
1,307,539,434,530

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Hoa Sen Steel One Member Company Limited

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liability
Company

Hoa Sen Building Materials Company Limited

Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liabilities Company 350,873,130,558
Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company 18,396,882,422
Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company 120,453,182

599,279,619,058 570,934,978,238

291,904,280,843
15,062,949,385

Company owned by the Company’s Chairman
Hoa Sen Holdings Group - 775,500

The trade related amounts due from the related party were unsecured, interest free and are receivable in 365 days
from invoice date for subsidiaries and 45 days from invoice date for company owned by the Company’s Chairman.

8. PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

(a) Phdi thu coa khach hang chi tiét theo khach hang lén

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Subsidiaries

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company

8,000,000,000
Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liability :

141,210,746,400

Company
Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company : 3,089,692,968
Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One Member Limited : 425,516,000

Liabilities Company

Third parties

Glencore International AG

Vuong Steel Company Limited

Vung Tau Low Pressure Gas Distribution Enterprise
Other suppliers

18,231,447,222
14,070,540,000
11,239,581,644

9,012,348,728

1,781,275,187

9,189,153,750
28,461,627,035

60,553,917,594 184,158,011,340
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9. LOANS RECEIVABLE

(a) Loans receivable - short-term

Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 09 — DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Loans receivable from Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial
Park Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company - a
subsidiary

3,660,295,900

This loan was unsecured, with original term of 12 months and earned annual interest at rate 5.3% (1/10/2018:
5.3%). During the year, this shortterm loan receievable was converted to long-term loan receievable.

(b) Loan receivable - long-term

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Loans receivable from Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock
Company - a subsidiary (*)
Loans receivable from Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial

Park Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company - a
subsidiary (**)

59,386,721,457

9,569,295,900

66,686,721,457

68,956,017,357

66,686,721,457

(*) This loan was unsecured, with original term of 24 months and earned annual interest at rate 8%

(1/10/2018: 8%).

(**) This loan was unsecured, with original term of 24 months and earned annual interest at rate 9%.

10. OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a) Other short-term receivables

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Profit distribution

Advances for purchase of lands

Advances to employees

Receivables from disposals of associate

Interest income from banks deposits and loan receivables
Shortterm deposits

Others

335,992,976,173
45,462,225,000
42,172,559,060

4,138,131,142
47,429,007,100
5,301,250,111

358,392,102,244
90,183,227,000
27,619,762,719
15,665,290,47 4
6,990,313,620
5,713,929,000
10,867,077,300

480,496,148,586

515,431,702,357
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Other short-term receivables from related parties
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30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Subsidiaries

Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock Company

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Integrated Iron and Steel
Complex Investment One Member Limited Liabilities
Company

Hoa Sen Du long Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Cement One Member Limited
Liabilities Company

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Renewable Energy One
Member Limited Liabilities Company

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Hoa Sen Building Materials Company Limited

Hoa Sen Steel One Member Company Limited

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company

Hoa Sen Transportation and Engineering One Member
Limited Liability Company

Other related parties
Hoa Sen Holdings Group

Key management personnel
Mr. Hoang Duc Huy — Deputy General Director

3,240,016,429
923,312,250
898,114,713

89,195,500
16,000,000

16,000,000
215,594,389,876
105,657,512,793

8,123,622,505
6,627,350,999

1,870,000,000

45,474,025,000

6,654,971,231
923,312,250

335,342,389

118,970,000
13,000,000

13,000,000

161,600,175,097
144,875,735,339
34,568,169,073
11,529,995,357
5,818,027,378

91,550,690,256

The other receivable amounts due from the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are receivable on demand.

(b) Other long-term receivables

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Deposits for rental

Others

222,016,729,000
1,105,239,160

202,093,222,150
205,000,000

223,121,968,160

202,298,222,150
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Included in tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND420,590 million which were fully depreciated as at 30 September
2019 (1/10/2018: YND375,601 million), but which are still in active use.

Net book value of idle tangible fixed assets retired from active use and held for disposal amounted to VND18,869 million
as at 30 September 2019 (1/10/2018: 17,634 million).

At 30 September 2019, tangible fixed assets with net book value of VND356,980 million (1/10/2018: YND740,876

million) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Company (Note 23).

13.FINANCE LEASE TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Machinery
and equipment
VND

Motor
vehicles
VND

Office
equipment
VND

Total
VND

Cost

Opening balance

Addition

Transfer to tangible

fixed assets

32,267,433,454
13,389,448,333

(32,267,433,454)

48,043,951,084
9,560,000,000

(13,231,994,717)

18,636,363,636

98,947,748,174
22,949,448,333

(45,499,428,171)

Closing balance

13,389,448,333

44,371,956,367

18,636,363,636

76,397,768,336

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance

11,513,583,443

6,360,216,810

5,961,606,343

7,510,458,649

209,339,975

1,863,636,363

17,684,529,761

15,734,311,822

Charge for the year

Transfer to tangible (17,087,537,128) (5,242,661,931) (22,330,199,059)

fixed assets

Closing balance

786,263,125

8,229,403,061

2,072,976,338

11,088,642,524

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

20,753,850,011

12,603,185,208

42,082,344,741

36,142,553,306

18,427,023,661

16,563,387,298

81,263,218,413

65,309,125,812
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14. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land use Software Total
rights VND VND
VND

Cost

Opening balance

Disposals

273,943,659,765

(60,467,250,000)

46,123,095,545

320,066,755,310

(60,467,250,000)

Closing balance

213,476,409,765

46,123,095,545

259,599,505,310

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance

Charge for the year

23,802,306,103

2,553,074,427

7,542,185,913

7,591,391,922

31,344,492,016

10,144,466,349

Closing balance

26,355,380,530

15,133,577,835

41,488,958,365

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

250,141,353,662

187,121,029,235

38,580,909,632

30,989,517,710

288,722,263,294

218,110,546,945

Included in intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND1,801 million which were fully depreciated as at 30 September
2019 (1/10/2018: YND1,801 million), but which are still in active use.

At 30 September 2019 intangible fixed assets with net book value of YND82,378 million (1/10/2018: YND100,775

million) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Company (Note 23).
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
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Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Transfer to tangible fixed assets
Transfer to intangible fixed assets
Transfer to long-term prepaid expenses
Disposals

28,307,339,690
35,426,731,027
(35,600,067,512)

(11,170,150,833)
(476,066,951)

247,666,367,726
71,050,520,158
(277,353,929,013)
(700,000,000
(9,827,761,767)
(2,527,857,414)

Closing balance

16,487,785,421

28,307,339,690

Maijor constructions in progress were as follows:

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Machinery, equipment waiting for installation
Construction costs
Others

12,381,694,368
1,472,949,719
2,633,141,334

23,206,143,020
1,932,316,670
3,168,880,000

16,487,785,421

28,307,339,690

16.PREPAID EXPENSES

(a) Short-term prepaid expenses

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Advertising expenses

Rental fee

Tools and instruments

Consultancy expenses
Maintenance expenses

Prepaid insurance fee

Other shortterm prepaid expenses

17,509,179,783
47,383,856,353
3,702,503,887
640,750,877
2,600,076,525
324,931,858
5,914,132,821

26,163,164,737
24,362,401,677
9,308,630,023
2,765,970,828
2,577,195,640
1,679,401,673
8,892,872,575

78,075,432,104

75,749,637,153
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30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Advertising pannels

Tools and instruments

Rental expenses

Maintenance expenses

Other long-term prepaid expenses

38,709,350,763
34,804,243,610
24,900,681,838
15,735,657,785
14,665,115,872

47,986,279,155
57,397,992,492
67,919,903,057
23,626,356,355
10,421,894,339

128,815,049,868

207,352,425,398

Movements of longterm prepaid expenses during the year were as follows:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Transfer from tangible fixed assets
Transfer from construction in progress
Transfer to shortterm prepaid expenses
Amortisation for the year

Disposals

Closing balance

207,352,425,398
73,487,584,905
743,974,195
11,170,150,833
(2,827,127,400)
(152,233,598,531)
(8,878,359,532)

216,697,658,464
165,884,767,293

9,827,761,767

(157,599,490,710)
(27,458,271,416)

128,815,049,868

207,352,425,398

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Tax rate 30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Deferred tax assets are recognised for:
Accrued expenses 20% 8,387,596,988 12,107,935,853
Allowances and provisions 20% 7,784,152,250 7,592,142,372
Unrealised profits 20% 3,843,101,926 582,741,890
Foreign exchange differences 20% 559,610,798 714,348,043
Others 20% 525,876,345 1,053,512,369

21,100,338,307

22,050,680,527
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18. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TO SUPPLIERS

(a) Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers

Cost/Amount within payment capacity

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Tata Steel Limited 368,481,486,522

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liability

C 237,095,129,919
ompany

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company 154,131,223,375

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities

C 147,286,762,472
ompany

Other suppliers 463,643,248,502

61,292,574,787

336,200,056,889

137,214,608,808

576,952,383,771

1,370,637,850,790

1,111,659,624,255

(b) Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties

Cost/Amount within payment capacity

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Subsidiaries

35

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Hoa Sen Building Materials Company Limited

Hoa Sen Transportation and Engineering One Member
Limited Liability Company

Companies owned by the Company’s Chairman
Hoa Sen Holdings Group

Hoa Sen Nghe An Investment One Member Limited Liability
Company

154,131,223,375

237,095,129,919

147,286,762,472

48,550,683,122

3,833,634,483

24,421,594

336,200,056,889

61,292,574,787

137,214,608,808

36,513,309,235

15,599,670,164

4,264,268,660

52,819,936

The trade related amounts due to the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are payable within 365 days
from invoice date for subsidiaries and are payable within 45 days from invoice date for companies owned by the

Company’s Chairman.
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19. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND
PT. Great Fortune 11,985,548,861 4,548,500,000

72,817,066,488 194,516,734,433

Other customers

84,802,615,349 199,065,234,433
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OTHER PAYABLES — SHORT-TERM TO RELATED PARTIES
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(continued)

Pledged assets

1/10/2018

Interest rate

30/9/2019

Credit limit

Currency

Lenders

ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

Third parties

Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

4,95% - 6,50% Inventories and land use rights

5,95%
3,00%

VND

ANZ Bank (Vietnam) Limited

Xii.

3,00% Unsecured

usb

Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint-Stock

Bank - Binh Duong Branch

xiii.

5,85% Machinery and equipment

5,85%

VND

Standard Chartered Bank (Vietnam) Limited

- Ho Chi Minh City Branch

XiV.

Related parties

5,00% Unsecured

5,50%

VND

Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock Company - a

subsidiary

XV.

Form B 09 - DN
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(b) Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

53,875,915,280
30,888,530,921

230,087,939,605
51,122,035,158

Long-term borrowings
Finance lease liabilities (c)

84,764,446,201
(37,568,566,112)

281,209,974,763

Repayable within twelve months (209,857,135,035)

Repayable after twelve months 47,195,880,089 71,352,839,728

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM BORROWINGS WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Lenders Note Currency mY:;:i:; 30/9/ 2\?'13 1/10/ 2\?'13
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign (i) VND 2022 52,094,315,280 72,094,315,280
Trade of Vietnam - South Binh Duong

Branch

Asia Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Tan (ii) VND 2020 1,781,600,000 9,396,578,000
Thuan Branch

Viet Capital Bank (iii) VND 2019 9,291,229,500
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank (iv) VND 2019 135,924,771,861

for Industry and Trade - Binh Duong

Industrial Park Branch

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank - (v) VND 2019
Binh Duong Branch

3,381,044,964

53,875,915,280  230,087,939,605

(i) This loan was secured by the land use rights, machinery and equipment and inventories and bore annual interest rate
of 8% (1/10/2018: 8%).

(i) This loan was secured by the motor vehicles and bore annual interest rate ranging from 9.5% to 10.1% (1/10/2018: 8.7%).

(iii)  This loan was secured by the motor vehicles and bore annual interest rate of 10% (1/10/2018: 9%). As at 30
September 2019, this loan has been fully paid.

(iv)  This loan was secured by the land use rights, buildings and structures and machinery and equipment and bore annual
interest rate of 9%. As at 30 September 2019, this loan has been fully paid.

(v)  This loan was secured by the motor vehicles and bore annual interest rate of 8%. As at 30 September 2019, this loan
has been fully paid.

The Company used these long-term borrowings to finance for its purchase of fixed assets.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(continued)

THE FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE FINANCE LEASES ARE::

(¢) Finance lease liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

1/10/2018

30/9/2019

Principal
VND

VND

Interest

Payments
VND

Principal
VND

VND

Interest

Payments
VND

15,786,966,112 38,305,086,689 2,939,201,979 35,365,884,710

1,966,206,713

17,753,172,825

Within one year

952,674,041 15,756,150,448

15,101,564,809 16,708,824,489

1,175,953,307

16,277,518,116

Within two to five years

30,888,530,921 55,013,911,178 3,891,876,020 51,122,035,158

3,142,160,020

34,030,690,941

Form B 09 - DN
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24. BONUS AND WELFARE FUND
MOVEMENTS OF BONUS AND WELFARE FUND DURING THE YEAR WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND
Opening balance 41,477,023,767 61,294,232,467
Appropriation from retained profits 4,092,340,379 53,266,556,487
Reversal of unused fund of prior year 1,702,655,525
Utilisation of fund during the year (2,369,220,240) (73,083,765,187)
Closing balance 44,902,799,431 41,477,023,767

25. PROVISIONS - LONG-TERM

Provisions — long-term represented provision for severance allowanc.
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28.OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
(a) Tai san thué ngoai

THE FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES WERE:

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

168,318,890,487
667,739,890,987
669,893,009,734

120,530,357,667
432,335,802,440
449,691,597,286

Within one year
Within two to five years
More than five years

1,505,951,791,208 1,002,557,757,393

(b) Foreign currencies

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
Original VND Original VND
currency equivalent currency equivalent
USD 1,014,396  23,480,155,726 921,491 21,441,212,800
EUR - - 229 6,193,888
AUD . - 0.54 8,974

23,480,155,726 21,447,415,662

(c) Capital expenditure commitments

At the reporting date, the Company had the following outstanding capital commitments approved for the purpose
of purchasing new machineries that use for the Company's operation:

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

2,076,133,500 12,968,628,192

Approved and contracted
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29.REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND PROVISION OF SERVICES

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered, exclusive of value added tax.

Net revenue comprised:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Total revenue

Sales of merchandise goods
Sales of finished goods
Others

Less revenue deductions
Sales discounts
Sales returns

Sales allowances

Net revenue

28,574,191,796,022
16,174,770,949,499
46,890,170,981

40,327,474,385,158
19,610,603,182,865
39,883,594,343

44,795,852,916,502

59,977,961,162,366

5,9093,686,605
10,758,092,293
9,063,266,406

91,463,945,910
18,018,812,564
4,277,816,427

25,815,045,304

113,760,574,901

44,770,037,871,198

59,864,200,587,465

30.COST OF SALES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Total cost of sales:
Merchandise goods sold
Finished goods sold
Others

Allowance made/ (reversed) during the year

27,843,567,769,023
14,650,169,394,905
3,763,919,993
11,704,247,847

39,027,616,532,190
18,026,161,263,960
11,737,394,894
(4,204,494,852)

42,509,205,331,768

57,061,310,696,192

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Interest income from deposits and loans receivable
Profit distribution from subsidiaries
Realised foreign exchange gains

Income from financial investment

9,558,369,470
336,196,144,385
54,435,161,194

11,895,595,465
358,392,102,244
66,882,399,885
102,139,227,474

400,189,675,049

539,309,325,068

32. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Interest expense
Realised foreign exchange losses
Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Reversal of allowance for diminution of financial
investments

Other financial expenses

399,146,337,196
51,007,238,368
1,468,280,700
(13,445,353,316)

917,028,756

458,729,805,247
129,354,124,623
47,305,340,201
(22,487,722,351

1,915,310,041

439,093,531,704

614,816,857,761

ANNUAL REPORT
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Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND
(Pa phan loai lai)

Labour costs and staff costs
Export expenses

Rental expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
Advertising expenses
Transportation expenses
Outside service

Other expenses

465,422,257,831
342,477,520,100
149,742,260,035
135,231,920,322
104,833,377,549

96,474,932,596

44,103,924,195
114,632,270,547

490,320,212,399
565,192,324,587
100,450,397,373
109,169,791,292
113,452,026,850
127,286,438,613

52,916,530,386
151,827,532,721

1,452,918,463,175

1,710,615,254,221

34.GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND
(Pa phan loai lai)

Labour costs and staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses

Guest receiption expenses
Professional service fees
Outside service

Other expenses

103,024,437,567
36,119,987,900
28,462,957,764
14,244,841,954
9,171,517,683
37,493,678,386
83,304,297,551

198,883,844,466
42,274,183,257
40,582,438,593
18,897,878,597
11,705,699,516
54,108,920,855
128,394,465,482

311,821,718,805 494,847,430,766
35.THU NHAP KHAC
Year ended
30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Gain from disposals of fixed assets
Compensation

Others

142,372,592,965
2,233,381,031
101,262,557,684

16,148,077,681
27,904,180,851
8,880,345,033

245,868,531,680

52,932,603,565
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36.PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS COSTS BY ELEMENTS

Téng doanh thu thé hién t6ng gid tri hang ban va dich vy dé cung cdp, khéng bao gém thué gid tri gia tang.

Doanh thu thuén bao gém:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Raw material costs included in production costs
Labour costs and staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Outside services

Other expenses

13,066,484,527,270
635,988,686,522
351,886,248,928
821,162,641,453
614,699,782,838

16,617,021,783,833
796,124,614,877
322,385,755,534
1,241,247 ,047,448
650,150,547,377

37.INCOME TAX

(a) Recognised in the separate statement of income

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Current fax expense
Current year

Deferred tax expense
Origination of temporary differences

86,459,077,071

950,342,220

57,537,903,508

10,926,051,734

87,409,419,291

68,463,955,242

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at the Company’s tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Tax exempt income

698,516,779,014

139,703,355,803
14,945,292,365
(67,239,228,877)

573,738,094,407

114,747,618,881
25,394,756,810
(71,678,420,449)

87,409,419,291

68,463,955,242
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Under the terms of Income Tax Law, the Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax at the

rate of 20% of taxable profits.

38.SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to the separate financial statements, the Company
had the following significant transactions with related parties during the year:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

SUBSIDIARIES
Hoa Sen Steel One Member Company Limited

Sales of goods

Purchases of goods
Transfer/sales of fixed assets
Sale returns

Purchase returns

Income received

Paid on behalf

Other income

Other purchase

Hoa Sen Building Materials Company Limited
Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Sales of fixed assets

Purchases of fixed assets

Income from leasing of assets

Rental expenses

Sales returns

Income received

Purchase deduction

Hoa Sen Transportation and Engineering One Member
Limited Liability Company

Purchases of goods

Purchases of fixed assets

Income from leasing of assets

Transportation costs

Rental expenses

Income received

10,277,637,796,063
11,771,372,054,729
205,664,635

297,325,320
8,123,622,505
130,869,456,620
2,548,006,364
144,292,898

4,564,914,020,422
3,196,114,481,029
4,771,478,579
1,389,200,000
174,500,000
258,946,015
1,562,510,453
105,647,612,793
607,336,952

33,406,182
2,657,188,816
3,614,419,336

17,253,777,856
176,000,000
203,168,212

13,779,143,441,900
14,995,785,607,702
888,237,430,939
1,980,258,020
2,510,365,445
34,568,169,073
152,580,172,648
4,783,074,700
80,969,500

4,827,327,999,833
3,715,489,723,137
87,000,000
136,202,200
88,409,095
100,000,010
1,329,668,691
144,875,735,339

401,957,962
100,000,000
7,956,000,000
48,534,481,409
607,696,966
5,818,027,378
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Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 09 — DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh Sole Member Limited Company
Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Capital contribution

Income received

Sales of fixed assets

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liabilities
Company

Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Sales of fixed assets
Purchases of fixed assets
Income from leasing of assets
Purchase returns

Purchase deduction

Rental expenses

Capital contribution

Income received

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member Limited
Liability Company
Sales of goods
Purchases of goods
Sales of fixed assets
Sale returns
Purchase returns
Interest income
Capital contribution
Lending loan

Other sale

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liabilities
Company

Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Sales of fixed assets

Sale returns

Income from leasing of assets

Operating lease expenses

Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock Company
Lending loan
Interest income

4,131,136,670
1,488,664,532,969

6,627,350,999
10,000,000

4,375,691,067,150
4,983,188,835,106
1,156,685,588
1,138,870,440

4,851,635,477
251,036,621
372,111,833

215,594,389,876

1,710,398,642,772
1,518,416,136,050
1,747,943,215
275,373,509
611,276,883

350,000,000,000

68,053,769

3,130,344,289
833,780,298,039

71,190,100
323,000,000
78,000,000

22,700,000,000
4,583,178,812

24,296,754,944
1,082,877,495,563
50,000,000,000
11,529,995,357

9,626,602,855,004
7,502,610,322,840
5,913,155,809

38,000,000
6,407,186,748
168,333,118
327,272,724
650,000,000,000
161,600,175,097

1,416,755,238,005
1,224,289,168,009

154,174,786
1,804,591,517
708,702,055
220,000,000,000
132,500,000,000

44,779,573,986
849,169,547,389
2,904,000,000
86,112,315
171,000,000
264,000,000

84,022,894,522
6,103,354,523
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(continued)

Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Lending loan

Capital contribution

Operating lease expenses

Other

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Industrial Park Infrastructure
Investment One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Capital contribution

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan International General
Seaport One Member Limited Liabilities Company
Capital contribution

Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock Company
Borrowing
Interest expense

Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment
Joint Stock Company

Capital transferring

Lending loan

Capital contribution

Interest income

Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One Member Limited
Liabilities Company

Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Lending loan

Interest income

Purchases of fixed assets

283,201,838,656
191,023,808,607

3,417,000,000

2,500,000,000

53,000,000,000
2,764,276,712

5,940,000,000

562,772,324

63,832,107
241,520,896,612

403,345,547,024
49,562,550,487
43,406,984,582
150,000,000,000
1,790,793,080
541,587,113

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

53,000,000,000
1,256,027,397

13,585,000,000
12,160,295,900
4,500,000,000
335,342,389

1,704,016,764
215,951,772,945
10,605,320,725
281,965,103
657,083,010
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Hoa Sen Group
Notes to the seperate financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued) Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

40.CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Year ended
The corresponding figures were derived from the Company’s separate financial statements as at and for the year

ended 30 September 2018.

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified fo conform to the current year’s presentation. A comparision

COMPANY OWNED BY THE COMPANY’S CHAIRMAN of the amount previously reported and as reclassified is as follow:

Hoa Sen Holdings Group

Sales of goods

Purchases of goods

Sales of fixed assets
Purchases of fixed assets
Sales discounts

Sales returns

Income from leasing of assets
Transportation costs
Processing costs

Other sale

Operating lease expenses
Sales allowances

OTHER RELATED PARTIES
Board of Directors

Salary and bonus

Board of Management

Remuneration

2,222,110,174,059
459,762,175,044

4,247,355,470,991
2,131,902,739,532

32,476,307,578
202,978,077,818

40,961,909,490

43,093,355,162
3,595,809,964
1,828,130,909
43,220,427,887
1,146,734,978
635,617,480
447,272,724

2,098,483,579
4,198,466,388
41,633,162,447
910,242,733
1,138,936,694
4,486,071,500
21,245,500

12,037,488,915 16,987,072,159

2,340,000,000 2,270,000,000

39. NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Conversion of trade receivables into investments
in subsidiaries
Net-off trade payables with profits distribution

Net-off proceeds from disposals of fixed assets with proceeds
from sales and lease back

405,377,723,185 880,253,224,847

358,595,270,456
6,296,834,500

529,548,072,432
15,472,446,001
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Year ended

Note 30/9/2018 30/9/2018
VND VND
(déa phén lodi lai) (theo bdo cdo truéc déay)

Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses

25 1,710,615,254,221
26 494,847,430,766

1,493,660,136,661
711,802,548,326

Prepared by:

S\ yp——

T —

——

Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen
Accountant

20 December 2019

*x\ TAP POAN
“\HGCA SEN

Tran Quoc Tri
General Director

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan
Chief Accountant
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] HOA SEN GROUP

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors of Hoa Sen Group (“the Company) presents this statement and the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) for the year ended

30 September 2019.

Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Directors:

(a) The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 5 to 59 give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 September 2019, and of the consolidated results of operations and
the consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to
financial reporting; and

(b) At the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Group will not be able to pay its debts as
and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for issue.

Tran Quoc Tri
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 20 December 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

HOA SEN GROUP

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hoa Sen Group (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
30 September 2019, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the
explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 20 December
2019, as set out on pages 5 to 59.

Management's Responsibility

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System
for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal
control as the Board of Management determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

3 | ANNUAL REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the consolidated financial position of Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries as at
30 September 2019 and of their consolidated results of operations and their consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2018
were audited by another firm of auditors whose reports dated 28 December 2018 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those statements.

)
fite b
Chang Hunf Chun=" Nguyen Thanh Nghi
Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 0B63-2018-007-1 Centificate No. 0304-2018-007-1
Deputy General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 20 December 2019
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Ml Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2019

Form B 01 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
ASSETS Code Note VND VND

CURRENT ASSETS 100 7,355,652,364,016 10,799,699,101,991
(100 =110+ 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

Cash and cash equivalents 110 7 288,707,713,172 492,079,830,667
Cash 111 288,564,191,297 459,271,022,774
Cash equivalents 112 143,521,875 32,808,807,893
Short-term financial investments 120 76,250,000,000 270,387,032
Held-to-maturity investments 123 8(a) 76,250,000,000 270,387,032
Accounts receivable — short-term 130 1,339,263,670,053 2,118,733,369,445
Accounts receivable from customers 131 9 1,049,450,621,720 1,650,639,947,525
Prepayments to suppliers 132 10 135,583,407,831 296,532,254,907
Loans receivable 135 3,660,295,900
Other shortterm receivables 136 11(a) 164,521,607,196 175,861,343,972
Allowance for doubtful debts 137 (10,291,966,694) (7,960,472,859)
Inventories 140 12 4,547,528,637,193 6,606,994,466,635
Inventories 141 4,599,379,745,104 6,647,686,173,500
Allowance for inventories 149 (51,851,107,911) (40,691,706,865)
Other current assets 150 1,103,902,343,598 1,581,621,048,212
Shortterm prepaid expenses 151 17(a) 99,299,504,104 97,836,059,166
Deductible value added tax 152 997,416,186,710 1,453,616,036,730
Taxes receivable from State Treasury 153  20(b) 7,186,652,784 30,168,952,316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2019 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
ASSETS Code Note VND VND

LONG-TERM ASSETS
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250 + 260) 200 9,869,786,099,023 10,455,122,959,627
Accounts receivable — long-term 210 226,761,293,160 202,370,220,436
Other long-term receivables 216 11(b) 226,761,293,160 202,370,220,436
Fixed assets 220 8,642,006,807,601 8,124,639,435,592
Tangible fixed assets 221 13 8,186,719,713,839 7,671,670,211,535
Cost 222 13,134,211,874,310 11,563,782,152,097
Accumulated depreciation 223 (4,947,492,160,471) (3,892,111,940,562)
Finance lease tangible fixed assets 224 14 214,042,830,281 140,153,363,491
Cost 225 237,020,532,992 236,206,835,834
Accumulated depreciation 226 (22,977,702,711) (96,053,472,343)
Intangible fixed assets 227 15 241,244,263,481 312,815,860,566
Cost 228 294,601,902,380 355,069,152,380
Accumulated amortisation 229 (53,357,638,899) (42,253,291,814)
Long-term work in progress 240 576,452,872,180 1,512,774,341,255
Construction in progress 242 16 576,452,872,180 1,512,774,341,255
Long-term financial investments 250 17,000,000,000 98,957,678,001
Investments in associates 252 8(b) 36,357,678,001
Held-to-maturity investments 255 8(a) 17,000,000,000 62,600,000,000
Other long-term assets 260 407,565,126,082 516,381,284,343
Long-term prepaid expenses 261 17(b) 365,534,127,666 475,698,024,116
Deferred tax assets 262 18 42,030,998,416 40,683,260,227
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 17,225,438,463,039 21,254,822,061,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 6



7

"
2

Ml Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2019 (continued)

Form B 01 — DN/HN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 02 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(CARRIED FORWARD)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES Code Note 30/9/2019 1/10/2018 | Year ended
VND VND |
| 30/9/2019 30/9/2018
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 300 11,757,157,277,389  16,103,196,342,693 | Code Note 2019 VND
| (Reclassified)
Current liabilities 310 8,767,419,669,924 12,637,507,361,815 :
Accounts payable to suppliers 311 19 1,379,160,194,955 1,066,621,824,454 | Reve.npe from sal_es of goods and 01 29 28,081,303,783,088 34,570,344,557,164
Advances from customers 312 101,394,195,074 141,297,692,947 | provision of services
Taxes payable to State Treasury 313 20(a) 83,658,990,877 61,518,263,658 :
Payables to employees 314 62,992,350,003 85,096,650,336 :
Accrued expenses 315 21 124,968,889,487 148,220,024,270 | Revenue deductions 02 29 46,528,664,413 128,915,208,903
Other payables — shortterm 319 22 263,879,077,110 213,415,952,496 :
Shortterm borrowings and 320 23(a) 6,706,463,172,987 10,879,859,929,887 :
finance lease liabilities :
Bonus and welfare fund 322 24 44,902,799,431 41,477,023,767 | Net revenue from sales of goods and provision 10 29 28,034,775,118,675 34,441,429,348,261
: of services (10 = 01 - 02)
Long-term liabilities 330 2,989,737,607,465 3,465,688,980,878 3 el
Other payables — long-term 337 709 500,000 ] : Cost of sales 11 30 24,836,155,036,672 30,464,290,088,385
Longferm borrowings and 338 23(b) ER Ll 3.461.976,547.378 | Gross profit (20 = 10- 11) 20 3,198,620,082,003  3,977,139,259,876
finance lease liabilities |
Provisions — long-term 342 25 2,896,254,250 3.712,433,500 | Financial income 21 31 63,164,230,629 179,498,893,481
EQUITY (400 = 410) 400 5,468,281,185,650 5,151,625,718,925 3 Financial expenses 22 32 802,634,741,872 970,732,705,902
Owners’ equity 410 26 5,468,281,185,650 5,151,625,718,925 1 In which: Interest expense 23 745,960,164,920 811,669,226,449
Share capital a2z 4,234,694,890,000  3,849,903,280,000 | - B
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a 4,234,694,890,000 3,849,903,280,000 | Share of profit in associates and jointly 24 514,000,092
Share premium 412 151,583,183,521 151,583,183,521 | controlled entities
Treasury shares 415 (2,459,000,000) (1,343,000,000) 1 .
| Sell 25 33 1,748,882,841,240 2,032,997,514,744
Other equity funds 420 55,626,670,135 60,509,750,556 | eling expenses
Retained profits 421 1,021,280,774,551 1,055,058,327,742 | General and administration expenses 26 34 470,700,688,884 678,624,762,946
- Retained profits brought forward 421a 659,928,641,536 645,824,289,820 |
- Profit for the current year 421b 361,352,133,015 409,234,037,922 :
Non-controlling interest 429 7,554,667,443 35,914,177,106 :
l Net operating profit
TOTAL RESOURCES | {30 =20 + (21 -22)- (25 + 26)} 30 239,566,040,636 474,797,169,857
(440 = 300 + 400) 440 17,225,438,463,039 21,254,822,061,618 |
| Other income 31 35 253,166,267,295 56,900,222,229
3 Other expenses 32 30,663,011,810 2,512,931,184
20 December 2019 :
Prepared b A
reparea by PR 7 CONG TYN2 | Results of other activities 40 222,503,255,485 54,387,291,045
? A < ! (40 =31-32)
= 1
\!@/WM ‘E“ ;g’ADgé: B 3 ,(Axs%:ougt(i)ng iroo)fit before tax 50 462,069,296,121 529,184,460,902
i o - — +
____,_.—-'—'_'_'__._P = \ S :
o 3 Income tax expense — current 51 37 102,045,530,564 95,720,855,600
Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan Tran Quoc Tri | Income tax (benefit)/expense — deferred 52 37 (1,347,738,189) 24,297,904,363
Accountant Chief Accountant General Director :
| NET PROFIT AFTER TAX (60 = 50 - 5T - 52) 60 361,371,503,746 409,165,700,939



Nl Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
< } Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 September 2019
M (Indirect method) Form B 03 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
) Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 30 September 2019 (continued)

Form B 02 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended Year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30/9/2019 30/9/2018 1
Code Note | 30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND : Code Note VND VND
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX (60 = 50 - 51 - 52) 1 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 60 361,371,503,746 409,165,700,939 1
(BROUGHT FORWARD) | Accounting profit before tax 01 462,069,296,121 529,184,460,902
Attributable to: : Adjustments for
Equity holders of the Company 61 361,352,133,015 409,234,037,922 | Depreciation and amortisation 02 1,187,362,709,449 1,019,509,865,101
Non-controlling interest 62 19,370.731 (68,336,983 3 Allowances and provisions 03 12,674,715,631 (22,226,292,468)
1 Exchange losses arising from revaluation
| of monetary items denominated in foreign 04 1,760,428,859 51,970,945,978
. ! currencies
Earnings per share ;
Basic earnings per share 70 38 820 928 | Profits from investing activities 05 (138,884,054,266) (120,258,368,345)
| Interest expense 06 745,960,164,920 811,669,226,449
20 December 2019 | Operating profit before changes in working 08 2,270,943,260,714 2,269,849,837,617
| capital
Prepared by Approved by :
| Change in receivables 09 1,207,687,182,269 (182,952,388,012)
3 Change in inventories 10 2,048,306,428,396 2,250,342,628,951
- : Change in payables and other liabilities 11 389,709,901,418 (2,703,521,975,220)
\:WEHM »-"'}f-;:; o P |
;__‘__d____.__—-———‘ =] e | Change in prepaid expenses 12 109,444,425,707 (52,185,353,089)
Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan Tran Quoc Tri !
Accountant Chief Accountant General Director : 6,026,091,198,504 1,581,532,750,247
3 Interest paid 14 (753,141,518,007) (808,818,426,065)
3 Income tax paid 15 (78,482,788,446) (178,069,805,583)
| Other payments for operating activities 17 (13,390,811,230) (94,659,631,874)
1 Net cash flows from operating activities 20 5,181,076,080,821 499,984,886,725
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Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries

g } Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 September 2019
(Indirect method — continued)

Form B 03 — DN/HN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Year ended
30/9/2019 30/9/2018
Code Note VND VND

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets and other 21
long-term assets

Collections on disposals of fixed assets
Payments for term deposits
Collections on term deposits
Payments for investments in other entities

Collections on investments in other entities

Receipts of inferest

Net cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from sales and lease back
Payments to settle loan principals
Payments to seftle finance lease liabilities

Payments of dividends

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows during the year
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61)

22
23
24
25
26
27

(1,057,985,115,931)

292,129,010,756
(104,750,000,000)
74,370,387,032
(11,581,401,220)
14,928,557,806
6,514,604,449

(2,723,711,086,859)

171,567,456,975
(28,430,682,932)
26,000,000,000
(3,672,266,449)
155,996,581,583
5,714,196,627

30

(786,373,957,108)

(2,393,535,801,055)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments for shares redemptions

32
33
33
34
35
36

(1,116,000,000)
20,572,520,273,479
110,741,661,833
(25,197,752,754,083)
(79,783,030,658)
(225,251,900}

(1,343,000,000)
33,719,297,189,430
84,136,860,047
(31,308,401,099,488)
(47,505,770,325)
(350,060,974,500)

40

(4,595,615,101,329)

2,096,123,205,164

50

61

(200,912,977,616)
492,079,830,667

(2,459,139,879)

202,572,290,834
292,371,319,351

(2,863,779,518)

70 7

288,707,713,172

492,079,830,667

Prepared by

N

——

—_—

Nguyen Thi Thanh Tuyen
Accountant

20 December 2019

*| TAP POAN
*\HCA SEN }

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Lan
Chief Accountant

Tran Quoc Tri
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

1. REPORTING ENTITY

(a)Ownership structure

Hoa Sen Group (“Company”) is incorporated as a joint stock company in Vietnam.

The Company’s shares were listed on Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange with the stock code HSG in
accordance with Decision No. 117/QD-SGDHCM dated 5 November 2008 issued by Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”).

(b)Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are to manufacturing roofing sheets by galvanised steel, zinc alloy, paint
galvanised zinc plating and plating of other alloys; producing steel purlins, galvanised purlins; manufacturing
black steel pipes, galvanised steel pipes and other alloys; manufacturing steel mesh, galvanized steel wire,
steel wire; manufacturing PVC ceiling; buying and selling building materials, capital goods and consumer
goods; providing warehousing and transporation services; building industrial and civil constructions and
producing cold rolled steel coils and leasing machinery and equipment and other tangible belongings.

(c) Normal operating cycle

The normal operating cycle of the Group is within 12 months.

(d)Group structure

As at 30 September 2019, the Group has 16 subsidiaries, 1 associate (1/10/2018: 15 subsidiaries, 2
associates), as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

Jl Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
} Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

Form B 09 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Name

Principal activities

Percentage of

ownership/voting rights

30/9/2019 1/10/2018

Subsidiaries

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member
Limited Liability Company

Hoa Sen Steel Sheet One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Building Materials One Member
Limited Liability Company

Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock Company

Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One
Member Limited Liability Company

Hoa Sen Transportation and Engineering
One Member Limited Liability Company (*)

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Integrated
Iron and Steel Complex Investment One

Member Limited Liability Company

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Industrial
Park Infrastructure Investment One Member
Limited Liability Company

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan International
General Seaport One Member Limited
Liability Company

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Renewable
Energy One Member Limited Liability
Company (**)

Hoa Sen Ca Na - Ninh Thuan Cement One
Member Limited Liability Company (**)

Manufacturing and trading metal
roofing sheets and steel pipe products.

Manufacturing and trading metal
roofing sheets.

Manufacturing and trading in cold
rolled steel products.

Manufacturing steel for building
materials and consumer goods.

Manufacturing and trading in plastic
building materials and steel pipe
products.

Manufacturing and trading in plastic
building materials and steel pipe
products.

Manufacturing and trading in plastic
building materials and steel pipe

products.

Operating a hotel, restaurant services
and commercial center.

Manufacturing and trading in steel pipe
products.

Providing transportation services and
civil, industrial construction projects.

Monuchturing iron, steel, cast iron
products.

Trading in real estate and land use
right for use or rent.

Investing riverport, seaport.

Manufacturing, transmitting and
distributing electricity.

Manufacturing cement, lime and
plaster.

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name

Principal activities

Percentage of
ownership/voting rights

30/9/2019 1/10/2018

Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock Company
Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company

Associates

Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock Company
Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company

Hoa Sen International Port Joint Stock
Company (**)

Trading real estate and provide support
services for trading real estate.

Investing, constructing and trading
industrial park infrastructure.

Trading real estate and provide support
services for trading real estate.

Investing, constructing and trading
industrial park infrastructure.

Providing supporting services related to
fransportation.

99%
95%
45%
45%
49%

(*)

Member Limited Liability Company.

are in the pre-operating stage.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)Statement of compliance

As at 15 June 2019, the Group had completed disoluting of Hoa Sen Transportation and Engineering One
(**) As at 30 September 2019, the Group has not yet contributed capital to these companies. These subsidiaries

As at 30 September 2019, the Group has 6,637 employees (1/10/2018: 7,062 employees).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Stan-
dards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirement applicable to

financial reporting.

(b)Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are prepared on the
accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared using the

indirect method.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(c) Going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. At the balance sheet date,
current liabilities exceeded current assets by VND1,411,767 million (1/10/2018: VND1,837,808 million).
The validity of the going concern assumption fundamentally depends on the Group being able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its activities and to maintain the credit limit granted by financial institutions to enable
the Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to maintain the Group in existence as a going
concern for the foreseeable future.

The management is implementing the restructuring plans for improving the efficiency in the Group’s business
operation as well as continue seeking for additional sources of finance.

At the time of this report, there is no reason for the Board of Directors to believe that the Group will not be able
to generate sufficient cash flows from its activities or maintain credit limit granted by financial institutions.

(d)Annual accounting period
The annual accounting period of the Group is from 1 October to 30 September of following year.
(e)Accounting and presentation currency

The Group's accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“YND”), which is also the currency used for financial
statement presentation purpose.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies that have been adopted by the Group in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of
the latest consolidated annual financial statements.

(a)Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

15 | ANNUAL REPORT
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(i) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as transactions with owners. The difference between the change in the Group’s share of net assets of the
subsidiary and any consideration paid or received is recorded directly in retained profits under equity.

(iii) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial
and operating policies. Associates are accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the income and expenses of the associates, after adjustments to align
the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the
date that significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in associates, the
carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on
behalf of the associates.

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Infra-group transactions, balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent
of the Group's interest in the investee.

(b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at actual rates of
exchange ruling at the transaction dates

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at the
account transfer buying rate and account transfer selling rate, respectively, at the end of the accounting
period quoted by the commercial bank where the Group most frequently conduct transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and are held for the purpose of meeting shortterm cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

(d)Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Group’s management has intention and ability to hold until
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at bank and bonds. These investments are stated
at costs less doubtful debts.

(e)Accounts receivable
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.
(f) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour and attributable
manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of inventory items, less the
estimated costs of completion and direct selling expenses.

The Group applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.
(g)Tangible fixed assets
(i) Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed
asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringin tEe asset to its working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the asset ong restoring the site on which it is located. Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed
assets have been put into operation, such as repair, maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the
consolidated statement of income in the year in which the cost is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.
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(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:
* Buildings and structures 5 - 50 years

® Machinery and equipment 3 - 10 years

® Motor vehicles 2 - 10 years
e Office equipment 3 - 10 years
e Others 3 -8 years

(h)Finance lease tangible fixed assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Tangible fixed assets acquired by way of finance leases are stated at an amount equal to
the lower of fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less
accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation on finance leased assets is computed on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of
items of the leased assets. The estimated useful lives of finance leased assets are consistent with the useful lives
of tangible fixed assets as described in accounting policy 3(g) (ii).

(i) Intangible fixed assetsh

(i) Land use rights
Land use rights comprise:
® Those granted by the State for which land use payments are collected;

® Those acquired in a legitimate transfer; and

® Rights to use leased land obtained before the effective date of Land Law (2003) for which payments have
been made in advance for more than 5 years and supported by land use right certificate issued by competent
authority.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of land use rights comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing the land use rights.
Definite |an<fuse rights are amortised on a straightline basis over a period ranging from 14 to 55 years.
Indefinite land use rights are not amortised.

(i) Software
Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and

treated as an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from
3 to 6 years.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(j) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of construction and machinery which have not been fully completed
or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of construction and
installation.

(k)Long-term prepaid expenses
(i) Tools and instruments

Tools and instruments include assets held for use by the Group in the normal course of business whose costs
of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed assets
under prevailing regulation. Cost of tools and instruments are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period
ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(i) Rental expenses

Rental expenses include prepaid warehouse rentals for use of the warehouse during the Group's business
operations and are initially recognised at cost. Rental expenses are amortised on a straightline basis over
lease term ranging from 2 to 3 years.

(iii) Advertising panels

Advertising panels are recognised at costs and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging
from 2 to 3 years.

(iv) Maintenance expenses

Maintenance expenses of fixed assets represent the cost of repairing and replacing machinery, equipment
and other fixed assets but do not meet the capitalisation requirements of fixed asset. Maintenance expenses
are initially recognised at cost and are amortised on a straightline basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3
years.

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. Goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Cost of goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group's inferest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree. When the excess is negative (gain from bargain purchase), it is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of income

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary is amortised on a straight-line basis not more than 10 years.
Carrying value of goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary is written down to recoverable amount as
management determines that it is not fully recoverable.

In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is not amortised.
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(m)Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their costs.
(n)Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability.
Severance allowance

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employee who has worked for 12 months or more (“the
eligible employees”) voluntarily terminates his/her labour contract, the employer is required to pay the
eligible employee severance olrowonce calculated based on years of service and employee’s compensation
at termination. Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on employees’ years of service
and their average salary for the six-month period prior to the end of the accounting period. For the purpose of
determining the number of years of service by an employee, the period for which the employee participated
in and contributed to unemployment insurance in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations and the
period for which severance allowance has been paid by the Group are excluded.

(o)Share capital

(i) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value.

(ii) Share premium
Excess of cash receipt from share issues over par value is recorded as share premium. Incremental costs
directly aftributable to the issue of shares, net of tax effects are recognized as a deduction from share
premium.

(iii)Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares)
When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly aftributable costs, net of tax effects, is recognized as a reduction from equity. Repurchased shares are
classified as treasury shares under equity. When treasury shares are sold for reissue subsequently, cost of the

reissued shares is determined on a weighted average basis. Any difference between the amount received and
the cost of the shares reissued is presented within share premium.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 20
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(p)Taxation

Income tax on the consolidated profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the end
of the accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or seflement
of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(q)Revenue and other income
(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or possible return of goods. Revenue on
sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting sales discounts stated on the invoice.

(i) Services rendered

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in proportion to
the stage of completion of the transaction. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of
work performed. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consicreration due.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and the
applicable interest rate.
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(r) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income as an integral part of the total lease expense.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except where the
borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which case the
borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets
concerned.

(t) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders (after deducting any amounts
appropriated to bonus and welfare funds for the accounting period) of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

The Group has no shares with impact of potential dilution. Therefore, regulations on presentation of diluted
earnings per share are not applied.

(u)Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related products
or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
The Group's primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments.

(v)Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making Enonciol and operating
decisions, or where the Group and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family members of any individual
considered to be a related party.
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4, SEGMENT REPORTING
(a)Business segments

The Group’s principal activities are buying and selling steel roofing sheets, steel pipes, building materials.
Other activities are asset leasing and service provision. During the year, other activities accounted for an

23

insignificant proportion of total revenue and business operating results of the Group, accordingly, the financial
information presented in the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2019 and 1 Octo{)er 2018 and
all revenue, expenses presented in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 30 September
2019 and 30 September 2018 are mainly related to the Group's principal business activities.

(b)Geographical segments

The Group's geographical segments are distinguished based on the locations of customers as follows:

Geographical segments

Domestic
VND

Oversea
VND

Total
VND

Year ended
30 September 2019

Revenue

Cost of sales

Year ended
30 September 2018

Revenue

Cost of sales

19,382,187,270,908
(16,503,791,346,217)

8,652,587,847,767
(8,332,363,690,455)

28,034,775,118,675
(24,836,155,036,672)

2,878,395,924,691

320,224,157,312

3,198,620,082,003

21,949,332,438,480
(18,962,709,885,251)

12,492,096,909,781
(11,501,580,203,134)

34,441,429,348,261
(30,464,290,088,385)

2,986,622,553,229

990,516,706,647

3,977,139,259,876
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5. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(a)investments in Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock Company

On 6 December 2018, the Group acquired 54% of equity interest of Hoa Sen Quy Nhon Joint Stock
Company (“Hoa Sen Quy Nhon”), increasing the percentage of equity interest in Hoa Sen Quy Nhon from

45% to 99% at a purchase price of VND33,480 million. The principal activities of Hoa Sen Quy Nhon are

trading real estate and providin
2019, acquired activities contri

support services for trading real estate. During 4 months until 30 September
uted a profit of VND2,375 million to the Group's business results.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities on acquisition date:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable — short-term
Other current assets

Long-term work in progress

Net identifiable assets and liabilities

Net asset value purchased

Gain from bargain purchase
Total considerations
Netted-off with liabilities
Cash acquired

Net cash outflow

Pre-acquisition

carrying amounts

VND

678,649,772
55,758,779,407
320,338,282
6,835,649,529

Fair value
adjustments
VND

Recognised value on
acquisition
VND

678,649,772
55,758,779,407
320,338,282
6,835,649,529

63,593,416,990

63,593,416,990

34,340,445,175
(860,445,175)

33,480,000,000
(27,590,000,000)
(678,649,772)

5,211,350,228
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(b)Investments in Hoa Sen Du Long Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock
Company

6. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 6 December 2018, the Group acquired 50% of equity interest of Hoa Sen Du long Industrial Park Additional acquisition of equity inferest in subsidiary

Infrastructure Investment Joint Stock Company (“Hoa Sen Du Long”), increasing the percentage of equity
interest in Hoa Sen Du Long from 45% to 95% at a purchase price of VND17,350 million. The principal
activities of Hoa Sen Du Long are investing, constructing and trading of industrial park infrastructure. During
4 months until 30 September 2019, acquired activities contributed a loss of VND85 million to the Group's
business results.

During the period, the Group acquired additional 25% equity interest of Hoa Sen Yen Bai Joint Stock Company
(“Hoa Sen Yen Bai”) — a subsidiary, increasing the percentage of equity interest from 70% to 95%.

Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at the additional acquisition date are recognised at carrying
amounts. The difference between consideration paid and carrying amounts of net assets at the additional

acquisition date is recognised in retained profits.
The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities on acquisition date: q 9 P

Pre-acquisition Fair value Recognised value Hoa Sen Yen Bai

. . o e VND
carrying amounts adjustments on acquisition
VND VND VND
Cash and cosh equivalents 5,949,008 5,949,008 Net identifiable assets at the additional acquisition date 119,495,776,747
Accounts receivable — shortterm 291,135,520 291,135,520
Inventories 6,770,000 6,770,000 Additional net identifiable assets acquired (Note 26) 29,873,944,187

Long-term work in progress
Current liabilities

Net identifiable assets and liabilities

Net asset value purchased

Goodwill on acquisition
Total considerations

21,318,139,102
(4,439,401,173)

21,318,139,102
(4,439,401,173)

17,182,592,457

17,182,592,457

8,591,296,229

8,758,703,771
17,350,000,000

Change in retained profits on additional acquisition of equity interest in subsidiaries by 126,055,813
the Group (Note 26)

30,000,000,000

Considerations paid

Netted-off with liabilities 26,400,000,000

Net cash outflow 3,600,000,000

Netted-off with liabilities (14,574,000,000) |
Cash acquired (5,949,008) |

Net cash outflow 2,770,050,992

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(*) Good will incurred from acquisition transaction had been fully allocted to oprating expenses during the year.

30/9/2019 1/10/2018

VND VND

Cash on hand 43,581,002,435 49,171,111,805
Cash in banks 243,158,329,276 409,373,357,409
Cash in transit 1,824,859,586 726,553,560
Cash and cash equivalents (*) 143,521,875 32,808,807,893

288,707,713,172 492,079,830,667

(*)  Cash equivalents represented term deposits at banks with original terms to maturity of three months or less
from their transaction dates and earned annual interest rate from 5% (1/10/2018: 5.3%).
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8. INVESTMENTS
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9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS

(a) Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customers

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Isi Steel Co LTD
Other customers

134,835,130,364

914,615,491,356 1,650,639,947,525

1,049,450,621,720 1,650,639,947,525

At 30 September 2019 accounts receivable with carrying value of VND570,000 million and receivable arising from
export bill collection with the value of VND2,300,000 million (1/10/2018: VND916,025 million of trade receivable
and VND2,300,000 million arising from export bill collection) were pledged with banks as security for loan granted to
the Company (Note 23).

(b) Accounts receivable from customers who are related parties

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Companies owned by the Company’s Chairman
Hoa Sen Holdings Group 19,800,000 1,485,707
Hoa Sen Nghe An Investment One Member Limited Liability 13,384,000 132,000,000

Company

The trade related amounts due from the related party were unsecured, interest free and are receivable in 45 days from
invoice date.

10. PREPAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

18,231,447,222
14,070,540,000
19,484,483,231

Glencore International AG 1,781,275,187
Vuong Steel Company Limited

R.E.E Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Joint Stock
Company

Vietnam Kinex Construction Joint Stock Company

Other suppliers

26,464,971,539

14,348,431,632
69,448,505,746

49,006,592,130
219,279,416,051

135,583,407,831 296,532,254,907

29 | ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

Mg Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries

(L -t
Ml (continued)

11.OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a) Other receivables - short-term
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30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Advances for purchase of lands
Advances to employees

Receivables from disposals of associate
Compensation for ground clearing
Shortterm deposits

Others

45,462,225,000
43,061,645,310

21,348,158,000
48,608,966,594
6,040,612,292

90,183,227,000
28,855,016,820
15,665,290,474
20,000,000,000

8,524,361,473
12,633,448,205

164,521,607,196

175,861,343,972

Other short-term receivables from related parties

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Related parties

Hoa Sen Holdings Group Company Limited

Key management personnel

Mr. Hoang Duc Huy — Deputy General Director

1,870,000,000

45,462,225,000

91,550,690,256

The other receivables amounts due from the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are receivable on demand.

(b) Other receivables - long-term

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Deposits for rental

Others

222,016,729,000
4,744,564,160

202,093,222,150
276,998,286

226,761,293,160

202,370,220,436
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Included in tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND849,054 million which were fully depreciated as at 30 September 15.INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

2019 (1/10/2018: YND724,651 million), but which are still in active use.

At 30 September 2019, tangible fixed assets with net book value of YND6,821,624 million (1/10/2018: VND6,375,966
million) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Group (Note 26).

14.FINANCE LEASE TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Machinery Motor Office Total
and equipment vehicles equipment VND
VND VND VND

Cost

Opening balance 145,305,609,552 72,264,862,646 18,636,363,636 236,206,835,834

Addition 145,026,646,893 9,560,000,000 154,586,646,893

Transfer to tangible  (138,806,529,152) (14,966,420,583)

fixed assets

(153,772,949,735)

Closing balance 151,525,727,293 66,858,442,063 18,636,363,636 237,020,532,992

Accumulated depreciation

Land use
rights
VND

Software
VND

Total
VND

Cost
Opening balance
Disposals

308,177,659,765
(60,467,250,000)

46,891,492,615

355,069,152,380
(60,467,250,000)

Closing balance

247,710,409,765

46,891,492,615

294,601,902,380

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposals

34,162,595,531
3,453,969,163

8,090,696,283
7,650,377,922

42,253,291,814
11,104,347,085

Closing balance

37,616,564,694

15,741,074,205

53,357,638,899

Net book value
Opening balance
Closing balance

274,015,064,234
210,093,845,071

38,800,796,332
31,150,418,410

312,815,860,566
241,244,263,481

Included in intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND2,275 million which were fully depreciated as at 30 September

87,619,756,338 2019 (1/10/2018: YND2,275 million), but which are still in active use.

Opening balance

Charge for the year 21,653,782,476 11,777,650,298 1,863,636,363 35,295,069,137

At 30 September 2019 intangible fixed assets with net book value of YND 105,350 million VND (1/10/2018: VND124,649

Transfer to tangible  (102,791,815,515)
fixed assets

(5,579,023,254) (108,370,838,769)

Closing balance 6,481,723,299 14,423,003,074 2,072,976,338 22,977,702,711

Net book value

Opening balance 57,685,853,214 64,040,486,616 18,427,023,661 140,153,363,491

145,044,003,994 52,435,438,989 16,563,387,298 214,042,830,281

Closing balance
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17. PREPAID EXPENSES
16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(a) Short-term prepaid expenses

Year ended

35

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Opening balance

Increases from business combination
Additions during the year

Transfer to tangible fixed assets
Transfer to intangible fixed assets
Transfer to long-term prepaid expenses
Other decreases (*)

Disposals

Transfer assets from subsidiaries to associates

Disoluted subsidiary

1,512,774,341,255

26,839,374,200
708,346,021,883

(1,585,009,466,653)

(18,860,179,511)
(60,000,000,000)
(476,066,951)

(7,161,152,043)

1,333,535,754,767

2,364,471,899,263
(2,141,758,409,901)

(700,000,000
(24,013,447,567)

(2,527,857,414)
(13,540,452,573)
(2,693,145,320)

Closing balance

576,452,872,180

1,512,774,341,255

(*) Other decreases represented prepayment to suppliers to purchase land use rights at the intersection of IC12 Minh Quan
Commune and Bao Hung Commune, Tran Yen District, Yen Bai Province in accordance with Decision no. 2014/STNMT-VPDK
dated 15 December 2016 by the Department of Natural Resouces and Environment Yen Bai Province, which was refunded

during the year.

Maijor constructions in progress were as follows:

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Machinery, equipment waiting for installation

Factories
Hoa Sen Yen Bai project

Ground clearing cost of Hoa Sen Ha Nam project
Maijor maintenance expenses of fixed assets

Others

224,957,322,430
86,859,494,955
219,694,039,271
38,794,072,000
3,865,509,172
2,282,434,352

980,184,817,070
267,221,030,666
215,065,609,415
38,794,072,000
8,198,877,595
3,309,934,509

576,452,872,180

1,512,774,341,255

During the year, borrowing costs were capitalised into the construction in progress equivalent to YND40,640 million, identified
based on capitilisation ratio from 5% to 9% (2018: YND37,863 million, identified based on capitalisation from 5% to 9%).
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30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Rental fee

Advertising expenses
Tools and instruments
Insurance fee
Maintenance expenses
Consultancy expenses

Others

48,587,023,377
17,509,179,783
18,409,533,006
484,984,056
4,924,160,066
640,750,877
8,743,872,939

25,738,770,696
26,546,794,453
22,823,742,673
2,346,408,633
4,776,883,774
2,765,970,828
12,837,488,109

99,299,504,104

97,836,059,166

(b) Long-term prepaid expenses

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Tools and instruments
Rental fee

Ground clearing expenses
Advertising pannels
Maintenance expenses

Others

132,377,002,232
71,457,221,006
78,277,621,218
38,709,350,763
23,475,312,366
21,237,620,081

167,262,012,258
117,850,134,718
79,954,996,131
47,956,945,821
38,556,758,182
24,117,177,006

365,534,127,666

475,698,024,116

MOVEMENTS OF LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES DURING THE YEAR WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Transfer from tangible fixed assets
Transfer from construction in progress
Transfer to shortterm prepaid expenses
Amortisation during the year

Disposals

Closing balance

475,698,024,116
127,211,978,389
743,974,195
18,860,179,511
(2,827,127,400)
(241,251,667,989)
(12,901,233,156)

412,307,081,315
302,669,910,223

24,013,447 ,567

(235,325,662,702)
(27,966,752,287)

365,534,127,666

475,698,024,116
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Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Deferred tax assets are recognised for:

Unrealised profits 21,926,066,092

Accrued expenses 9,022,541,606
Allowances and provisions 8,713,422,216
Foreign exchange differences 559,610,798

Others 1,809,357,704

16,452,678,151
13,990,694,550
8,472,027,114
714,348,043
1,053,512,369

42,030,998,416

40,683,260,227

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TO SUPPLIERS

(a) Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers

30/9/2019
Cost/amount within
payment capacity

1/10/2018
Cost/amount within
payment capacity

VND VND
Tata Steel Limited 368,481,486,522 -
Formosa Ha Tinh Steel Corporation 22,869,689,975 199,152,165,080

Hangzhou Cogeneration (HongKong) Co, LTD

Other suppliers 987,809,018,458

191,161,898,608
676,307,760,766

1,379,160,194,955

1,066,621,824,454

(b) Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties

30/9/2019
Cost/amount within
payment capacity
VND

1/10/2018
Cost/amount within
payment capacity
VND

Companies owned by the Company’s Chairman
Hoa Sen Holdings Group
Hoa Sen Nghe An Investment One Member Co., Lid.

5,931,497,565
2,957,890,162

4,787,482,661
5,226,877,644

The trade payable amounts due fo the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are payable within 45 days from

invoice date.

ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

(continued)

20.TAXES PAYABLE TO AND RECEIVABLE FROM STATE TREASURY

(a) Taxes payable to State Treasury

30/9/2019
VND

Reclassified
VND

Netted-off
VN

Paid
VND

Incurred
VND

1/10/2018
VND

76,622,874,045

3,305,017,004

(7,233,377,391,590)

78,347,372
4,094,140,040
2,785,578,830

(11,902,459
(23,012,686,601)

43,648,986

78,050,590

(1,359,458)

(1,306,377,804,862

8,557,555,275,448

55,517,778,045

Value added tax

(14,849,390,749
(78,482,788,446
(13,827,994,901
(11,541,395,291

14,511,501,282
102,045,530,564

14,545,815,337
11,616,652,955

428,139,298
3,544,084,523

Import-export tax

Corporate income tax

2,024,109,408

Persono| income tax

Other taxes

4,152,384

(1,425,079,374,249) (7,233,377,391,590)  (19,677,282,528) 83,658,990,877

8,700,274,775,586

61,518,263,658

(b) Taxes receivable from State Treasury

Form B 09 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
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21. ACCRUED EXPENSES
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Transportation expenses . 36,448,531,522 :
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Ml (continued)

Interest rate

30/9/2019

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS WERE AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

Pledged assets

1/10/2018

Credit limit

Currency

Lenders

5,50% Inventories

5,50%

300 ty VND

VND

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and
Trade - Ba Ria Vung Tau Branch

Third parties

Xii.

5,60% Inventories

6,40%

VND

Sumitomo Mitsu Bank - Ho Chi Minh City Branch

Xiili.

4,95% - 6,50% Inventories and land use rights

VND 5,95%

ANZ Bank (Vietnam) Limited

Xiv.

Nl Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
} Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

3,00% Unsecured

3,00%

Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint-Stock Bank -

Binh Duong Branch

XV.

from customers

5,50% - 5,80% Inventories and accounts receivable
5,10% - 5,50% Inventories

5,50% - 5,80%

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and ~ USD
Trade - Phu Tai Industrial Park Branch

XV

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

5,10% - 5,50%

VND

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and

Trade - Ha Nam Branch

XVil.

5,85% Machinery and equipment

5,85%

VND

Standard Chartered Bank (Vietnam) Limited

- Ho Chi Minh City Branch

XVviii.

Nl Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
By Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

<
| &
Ml (continued) Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(b) Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities

30/9/2019
VND

1/10/2018
VND

Long-term borrowings

Finance lease liabilities (c)

Repayable within twelve months

3,5683,459,745,822

124,502,217,778

4,135,888,386,927

93,543,586,603

3,707,961,963,600

(721,830,110,385)

4,229,431,973,530

(767,455,426,152)

Repayable after twelve months

2,986,131,853,215

3,461,976,547,378

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(continued)

THE FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE FINANCE LEASES ARE:

(c) Finance lease liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT
Fiscal year 2018 - 2019

1/10/2018

30/9/2019

Principal
VND

VND

Interest

Payments
VND

Principal
VND

VND

Interest

Payments
VND

5,147,253,819 71,821,064,792

9,017,291,389 52,697,686,849 76,968,318,611

61,714,978,238

Within one year

Nl Hoa Sen Group and its subsidiaries
< } Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2019

21,722,521,811

22,839,973,936 1,117,452,125

71,804,530,929

6,187,268,196

77,991,799,125

Within two to five years

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014,/TI-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

15,204,559,585 124,502,217,778 99,808,292,547 6,264,705,944 93,543,586,603

139,706,777,363
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MOVEMENTS OF BONUS AND WELFARE FUND DURING THE YEAR WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Opening balance
Appropriation from retained profit (Note 26)
Reversal of unused fund of prior year

Utilisation of fund during the year

41,477,023,767
4,092,340,379
1,702,655,525

(2,369,220,240)

61,294,232,467

53,266,556,487

(73,083,765,187)

Closing balance

44,902,799,431

41,477,023,767

25. PROVISIONS - LONG-TERM

Provisions — long-term represented provision for severance allowance. Movements of provision for serverance allowance during

the year as follows:

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018

VND VND

Opening balance 3,712,433,500 4,946,315,250
Provision reversed during the year (816,179,250) (1,233,881,750)

Closing balance

2,896,254,250

3,712,433,500
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28.OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
(a) Lease
THE FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES WERE:

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND

Within one year 174,713,166,239 127,001,614,095

Within two fo five years 691,810,008,358 464,341,637,708

More than five years 936,592,994,134 690,309,362,270

1,803,116,168,731 1,281,652,614,073

(b) Foreign currencies

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
Original VND Original VND equivalent
currency equivalent currency
usD 1,173,918 27,171,115,558 1,300,047 30,255,550,850
EUR - - 229 6,193,888
AUD - - 0.54 8,974
27,171,115,558 30,261,753,712

(c) Capital expenditure commitments

At the reporting date, the Group had the following outstanding capital commitments approved for the purpose of
purchasing new machineries that use for the company’s operation:

30/9/2019 1/10/2018
VND VND
Approved and contracted 435,509,258,887 960,466,484,424
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29.REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND PROVISION OF SERVICES

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered, exclusive of value added tax.

NET REVENUE COMPRISED:

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Total revenue

Sales of finished goods
Sales of merchandise goods
Others

Less revenue deductions
Sales discounts

Sales allowances

Sales returns

Net revenue

15,030,026,425,745
12,986,899,010,659
64,378,346,684

18,305,584,471,715
16,226,374,169,708
38,385,915,741

28,081,303,783,088

34,570,344,557,164

23,659,787,569
9,171,395,550
13,697,481,294

107,925,224,496
4,354,455,644
16,635,528,763

46,528,664,413

128,915,208,903

28,034,775,118,675

34,441,429,348,261

30.COST OF SALES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Total cost of sales:
Finished goods sold
Merchandise goods sold
Others

Allowance made during the year for inventories

12,572,298,284,011
12,236,475,821,882
16,221,529,733
11,159,401,046

16,100,942,436,400
14,344,645,503,779
4,960,676,206
13,741,472,000

24,836,155,036,672

30,464,290,088,385
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31.FINANCIAL INCOME

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Interest income from deposits and loans receivable
Interest income from financial investment

Realised foreign exchange gains

Other financial income

5,777,871,781

57,382,872,754
3,486,094

5,714,196,627
102,139,227,474
71,645,469,380

63,164,230,629

179,498,893,481

32. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Interest expense

Realised foreign exchange losses

Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Reversal of allowance for diminution of financial investments
Other financial expenses

745,960,164,920
53,997,119,337
1,760,428,859

917,028,756

811,669,226,449
139,120,987,276
51,970,945,978
(33,943,763,842)
1,915,310,041

802,634,741,872

970,732,705,902

33. SELLING EXPENSES

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Labour costs and staff costs
Export expenses
Transportation expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses

Advertising expenses

Ovutside service

Other expenses

522,045,890,893
348,900,692,741
173,731,390,239
160,562,421,184
150,613,054,991
104,833,777,549

93,322,072,588
194,873,541,055

558,262,139,647
565,999,087,040
242,295,552,021
129,444,945,883
101,856,042,602
114,127,564,790
112,412,613,044
208,599,569,717

1,748,882,841,240

2,032,997,514,744
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34.GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018

VND VND

(Pa phan loai lai)

Labour costs and staff costs 161,329,163,316 279,167,507,341
Depreciation and amortisation 62,332,518,169 57,823,386,166
Rental expenses 33,393,007,713 46,932,844,724
Guest receiption expenses 15,927,101,970 20,000,778,643
Business frip expenses 6,145,283,909 27,568,945,159

Professional service fees
Outside service
Other expenses

10,504,877 ,967
54,431,875,120
126,636,860,720

14,196,618,786
84,648,406,050
148,286,276,077

470,700,688,884

678,624,762,946

35.0THER INCOME

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018

VND VND

Gains from disposals of fixed assets 133,106,182,485 14,531,056,069

Compensation 11,903,268,643 27,495,810,933
Gain from bargain purchase 860,445,175

Others

107,296,370,992

14,873,355,227

253,166,267,295

56,900,222,229

36.PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS COSTS BY ELEMENTS

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Raw material costs included in production costs
Labour costs and staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Outside services

Other expenses

19,695,126,527,602

928,732,894,854

1,187,362,709,449
1,570,894,855,005

919,372,729,606

20,637,165,889,138

1,201,586,419,867
1,019,509,865,101
2,199,477,887,113
1,255,823,599,675
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37. INCOME TAX

(a) Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Year ended

30/9/2019
VND

30/9/2018
VND

Current fax expense
Current year
Over provision in prior years

Deferred tax (benefit) /expense
Origination of temporary differences

111,147,114,682
(9,101,584,118)

95,720,855,600

(1,347,738,189)

24,297,904,363

100,697,792,375 120,018,759,963
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended
30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at the Company's tax rate

Effect of different tax rates in subsidiaries
Non-deductible expenses

Tax incentives

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Over provision in prior years

462,069,296,121

92,413,859,224
(10,814,897,914)
19,557,409,092
(25,950,324,403)
34,593,330,494
(9,101,584,118)

529,184,460,902

105,836,892,180
(8,056,940,190)
29,357,952,102
(27,661,557,507)
20,542,413,378

100,697,792,375

120,018,759,963
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(c) Applicable tax rates

Under the terms of Income Tax Law, the Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax rate of 20%
of taxable profits. Subsidiaries have obligations to pay the government income tax at rates ranging from 10% to 20%
of taxable profits, detail as follows:

® Hoa Sen Binh Dinh One Member Limited Liabilities Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax
at the rate of 20% of taxable profits. This subsidiary is exempt from income tax for 2 years starting from the first
year it generates a taxable profit and entitled to a 50% reduction in income tax for the 4 succeeding years.

* Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Limited Liability Company and Hoa Sen Nhon Hoi - Binh Dinh One Member
Limited Company have an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 10% of taxable profits for the
first 15 years of opearation and the usual income tax rate for the succeeding years. These subsidiaries are exempt
from income tax for 4 years starting from the first year it generates a taxable profit and entitled to a 50% reduction
in income tax for the 9 succeeding years.

* Hoa Sen Ha Nam One Member Limited Liability Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax at
the rate of 17% of taxable profits for the first 10 years from 2016 and the usual income tax rate for the succeeding
years. This subsidiary is exempt from income tax for 2 years starting from the first year it generates a taxable profit
and entitled to a 50% reduction in income tax for the 4 succeeding years.

® Hoa Sen Phu My One Member Limited Liability Company and Hoa Sen Yen Bai Building Materials One Member
Liability Company has an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 17% of taxable profits for
the first 10 years from the first year companies generate revenue and the usual income tax rate for the succeeding
years. These subsidiaries are exempt from income tax for 2 years starting from the first year it generates a taxable
profit and entitled to a 50% reduction in income tax for the 4 succeeding years.

e Other subsidiaries have an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.
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38.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 September 2019 was based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders after deducting the amounts appropriated to bonus and welfare fund for the
accounting period and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows:

(i) Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Net profit for the year 361,352,133,015 409,234,037,922

Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund (*) (14,454,085,321) (16,369,361,517)

Net profit aftributable to ordinary shareholders 346,898,047,694 392,864,676,405

(*) Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund are estimated at 4% of the Group’s profit after tax. This appropriation
rate is the same as the actual rate approved by the shareholders in the previous period.

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018

VND VND

Number of shares Number of shares
Restated (**)

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 384,856,028 349,996,683
Effect of repurchase of treasury shares (43,358) (134,300)
Effect of bonus shares issued after 30 September 2018 = 34,993,645
Effect of bonus shares issued after 30 September 2019 38,479,161 38,485,603
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 423,291,831 423,341,631
the year
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Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND VND
Restated (**) As previously stated

Basic earnings per share 820 928 1.090

(**)The restatement represented the impact of bonus shares issued after the yearend and for dividend payments.
Basic earnings per share decreased from VND1,090/share to VND1,021 /share as result of bonus shares issued
after 30 September 2018 and basic earnings per share decreased from VND1,021/share to VND928/share as
result of bonus shares issued after 30 September 2019.

39. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following significant transactions with related parties during the year:

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

COMPANY OWNED BY THE COMPANY’S CHAIRMAN
Hoa Sen Holdings Group

4,260,734,635,552
Purchases of goods 424,424,089,519
Income from leasing of assets 4,198,466,388
Other sale 5,333,866,590
Sales of fixed assets 32,476,307,578
202,978,077,818
36,378,797,956 -
3,364,556,991 44,875,174,015
Transportation expenses 50,923,795,458 48,851,726,662
Operating lease expenses 5,977,669,234 539,338,900
Sale return 3,014,517,004 3,595,809,964

6,753,479,410,892
2,131,904,449,532
1,828,130,909
2,415,025,724
40,961,909,490
1,515,541,822

Sales of goods

Purchases of fixed assets
Purchases of tools and instruments
Sales discounts

Hoa Sen Nghe An One Member Co., Ltd.
Transportation expenses 37,507,194,539 64,778,733,985
Income from leasing of assets 312,000,000 360,000,000

OTHER RELATED PARTIES
Board of Directors
12,037,488,915

Salary and bonus 18,380,164,144

Board of Management

Remuneration 2,340,000,000 2,270,000,000
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40.NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Year ended

30/9/2019 30/9/2018
VND VND

Conversion of accounts receivable from customers into 68,564,000,000
equity inferest in subsidiary
Net-off proceeds from disposals of fixed assets with 43,844,985,060 29,681,479,462
proceeds from sales and lease back
Purchases of fixed assets and construction in progress not 174,866,812,780 282,686,249,792
yet paid

41.CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The corresponding figures were derived from the Group's consoliated financial statement as at and for the year

ended 30 September 2018.

Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified to conform to the current period'’s presentation. A comparision
of the amount previously reported and as reclassified is as follows:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year ended

30/9/2018 30/9/2018
Note VND VND
(as reclassified) (as previously reported)

Selling expenses 25 2,032,997,514,744 1,816,042,397,184
General and administration expenses 26 678,624,762,946 895,579,880,506

20 December 2019
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